Putting the Community First BJA|R|NIE|T]

LONDON BOROUGH

MEETING
PERFORMANCE AND CONTRACT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DATE AND TIME

TUESDAY 11TH NOVEMBER, 2014
AT 7.00 PM

VENUE
HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4AX

TO: MEMBERS OF PERFORMANCE AND CONTRACT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
(Quorum 3)

Chairman: Councillor Anthony Finn

Vice Chairman: Councillor Sury Khatri

Councillors

Geof Cooke John Marshall Shimon Ryde
Alison Cornelius Arjun Mittra Daniel Seal
Kathy Levine Ammar Naqvi

John Marshall Reema Patel

Substitute Members

Councillor Paul Edwards Councillor Alison Moore Councillor Gabriel
Councillor Dr Devra Kay Councillor Caroline Stock Rozenberg
Councillor Lisa Rutter

You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached.
Andrew Nathan — Head of Governance

Governance Services contact: Anita Vukomanovic 020 8359 7034
anita.vukomanovic@barnet.gov.uk

Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039

ASSURANCE GROUP




ORDER OF BUSINESS

Item No Title of Report Pages
1. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 1-4
2. Absence of Members
3. Declarations of Members Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and
Non-Pecuniary Interests
4. Report of the Monitoring Officer (if any)
5. Public Questions and Comments (if any)
6. Members' Items (if any)
a) Members Item - Councillor Cooke - Thin Client Model 5-8
7. The Barnet Group - Annual Report 9-52
8. Quarter 2 Monitoring Report 2014/15 53 - 162
9. Committee Forward Work Programme 163 -170
10. Any Other Items that the Chairman Decides are Urgent

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets. If you wish to let
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Anita
VVukomanovic 020 8359 7034 anita.vukomanovic@barnet.gov.uk. People with hearing
difficulties who have a text phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942. All
of our Committee Rooms also have induction loops.

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed
custodians. It is vital you follow their instructions.

You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts.




Do not stop to collect personal belongings

Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some
distance away and await further instructions.

Do not re-enter the building until told to do so.




This page is intentionally left blank



Decisions of the Performance and Contract Management Committee
1 September 2014

Members Present:- AGENDA ITEM 1

Councillor Anthony Finn (Chairman)
Councillor Sury Khatri (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Geof Cooke Councillor Ammar Naqvi
Councillor Kathy Levine Councillor Reema Patel
Councillor John Marshall Councillor Shimon Ryde
Councillor Arjun Mittra Councillor Gabriel Rozenberg (In place of

Alison Cornelius)

Apologies for Absence

Councillor Alison Cornelius Councillor Daniel Seal

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED that the minutes of the last meeting be as a correct record.
ABSENCE OF MEMBERS

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Alison Cornelius, who was
substituted for by Councillor Gabriel Rozenberg

DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND
NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS

Councillor Agenda ltem Interest
John Marshall 7 — Quarter 1 Monitoring | Non pecuniary interest
Performance Report | as Councillor Marshall is
2014/15 a Council appointed
Director of  Barnet
Homes
Arjun Mittra 7 — Quarter 1 Monitoring | Non pecuniary interest
Performance Report | and Councillor Mittra’s
2014/15 mother has a tenancy
with the Council

REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (IF ANY)

There were none.



PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS (IF ANY)

Details of the questions asked and the published answers were provided with the agenda
papers for the meeting. Verbal responses were given to supplementary questions at the
meeting.

Officers undertook to provide further information to a public questioner in relation to
supplementary question 12 (Street Scene) on the number of formal and informal
representations received over the last 12 month in relation to parking.

Mr. Derek Dishman gave a public comment on Agenda Item 7 — Quarter 1 Monitoring
Performance Report 2014/15 in relation to parking matters. Members asked questions
on the comment, which were responded to by Mr. Dishman.

MEMBERS' ITEMS (IF ANY)
There were none.
QUARTER 1 MONITORING PERFORMANCE REPORT 2014/15

The Head of Programmes and Resources and the Deputy Chief Operating Officer
introduced the report, which set out delivery performance of the council. This includes
both contracts and non-contracted services.

Following discussion, Officers undertook to circulate additional information to Members
of the Committee.

Councillor Geof Cooke MOVED the following motion, which was SECONDED by
Councillor Arjun Mittra:

“To refer the Quarter 1 car park usage shortfalls to the Asset, Regeneration and Growth
Committee to consider in the context of town centre vitality, and to the Policy and
Resources Committee to consider in the context of Business Rates.”

Votes were recorded as follows:

Agreed

5
Against 5
Abstentions 0

Following a tie, the Chairman used his casting vote. The vote was lost.

Councillor Geof Cooke MOVED the following motion, which was SECONDED by
Councillor Shimon Ryde:

“That slippage on the Depo Relocation Project from Mill Hill East to Pinkham Way be
drawn to the attention of the Assets, Regeneration and Grown Committee.”



Votes were recorded as follows:

Agreed 10
Against 0
Abstentions 0

The motion was carried.

RESOLVED that:-

1) The Committee agree the following referrals to thematic Committees:

COMMITTEE REFERRAL
Adults and Safeguarding None
Assets, Regeneration and | None
Growth

Children, Education, Libraries | None

and Safeguarding

Community Leadership None

Environment

To ensure, during finalisation of the
Parking Policy, the reduction in the
usage of off-street parking is considered.

Housing

To ensure, during finalisation of the
Housing Strategy, the financial pressure
relating to temporary accommodation is
considered.

2) The Committee note the Quarter 1 2014/15 revenue budget and capital
position contained in paragraphs 1.11 and 1.14 as set out in the report;

3) The Committee note the Agency Costs for the Quarter 1 2014/15 as
detailed in paragraph 1.15 of the report;

4) The Committee note the Transformation Programme position as at the
30 June 2014 as detailed in paragraph 1.16 of the report;

5) The Committee note the Treasury position outlined in paragraph 1.17 of

the report;

6) The Committee note the projected £21.987m capital slippage of the
outturn at Quarter 1 2014/15, as outlined in Appendix C of the report;

7) The Committee note the additional information requested at committee
on the 23 July 2014; the average time in Emergency Temporary
Accommodation, as set out in Appendix H of the report.

8) Slippage on the Depot Relocation Project from Mill Hill East to Pinkham
Way be drawn to the attention of the Assets, Regeneration and Grown

Committee

9) Officers be requested to provide the Committee with additional
information outside of the meeting on the following topics:




How elected Members can comment on the draft parking policy;

To provide a breakdown of Barnet schools (by school type) of the
Ofsted ratings;

Detail on the level of support offered to schools;

Confirmation as to whether the analysis for the decision to buy the
recycling fleet lease vehicles was made over a five or seven year
period;

Further information on the TUPE costs for Re — for the Priority
Intervention Team (PIT) and Cemetery and Crematorium Team
changes;

Confirmation as to whether the “Narrowing the Gap” indicator set out
in the report was based on the total number of children eligible, or
the number of children that actually take up the support;

The rate of recycling that the Borough would need to achieve in 2020
to be producing the same tonnages of waste [sent to landfill] whilst
incorporating population increases;

Confirmation of the confirm Number of Private Rented Sector lettings
achieved in Quarter 1 2014/15.

COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Committee considered the Forward Work Programme as set out in the report.

The Chairman noted that at the Committee’s last meeting on 23 July 2014, the
Committee requested that a report on School HR be included in the work programme for
the September 2014 meeting. That Chairman advised the Committee that it would be
more timely to receive the report at the November 2014 meeting, as the schools would
have returned by that point.

RESOLVED that the Committee note the Forward Work Programme.

ANY OTHER ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT

There were none.

The meeting finished at 9:50 pm



Putting the Community First BJA[R|N|E|T

LONDON BOROUGH

AGENDA ITEM|6a

Performance and Contract
Management Committee

11 November 2014

Title | Member’s Item — Thin Client Model

Report of | Head of Governance

Wards | All

Status | Public

None
Enclosures

Anita Vukomanovic, Governance Team Leader
Officer Contact Details | Email: anita.vukomanovic@barnet.gov.uk
Tel: 020 8359 7034

Summary

The report informs the Performance and Contract Management Committee of a Member’s
Item and requests instructions from the Committee.

Recommendations
1. That the Performance and Contract Management Committee’s instructions in
relation to this Member’s item are requested.

www.barnet.gov.uk




1.1

1.2

2.1

3.1

4.1

5.1

5.1.1

5.2

5.2.1

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED

Councillor Geof Cooke has requested that a Member’s ltem be considered on
the following matter:

“Given the various legal and governance failures that have arisen as a result
of not having legal expertise in-house to monitor and assess the quality of
advice provided by the HB Public Law shared service based in LB Harrow,
would officers please provide the committee with an update and assessment
of how the thin client model is operating across council contracts and services
where it is in operation.”

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

No recommendations have been made. The Performance and Contract
Management Committee are therefore requested to give consideration and
provide instruction.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED
Not applicable.

POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION

Post decision implementation will depend on the decision taken by the
Committee.

IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION
Corporate Priorities and Performance

As and when issues raised through a Member’s ltem are progressed, they will
need to be evaluated against the Corporate Plan and other relevant policies.

Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT,
Property, Sustainability)

None in the context of this report.

Legal and Constitutional References

The Council’s Constitution Meeting Procedure Rules (section 6) states that a
Member, including appointed substitute Members of a Committee may have
one item only on an agenda that he/she serves. Members items must be
within the term of reference of the decision making body which will consider
the item.

There are no legal references in the context of this report.



5.4

5.41

5.5

5.5.1

5.6

5.6.1

6.1

Risk Management

None in the context of this report.

Equalities and Diversity

Member’s Items allow Members of a Committee to bring a wide range of
issues to the attention of a Committee in accordance with the Council’s
Constitution. All of these issues must be considered for their equalities and
diversity implications.

Consultation and Engagement

None in the context of this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Email to Governance Officer, dated 30 October 2014.



This page is intentionally left blank



Putting the Community First BJA[R|N|E|T

LONDON BOROUGH

AGENDA ITEM|7

Performance and Contract
Management Committee

11" November 2014

Title | The Barnet Group Annual Report 2013/14

Housing & Environment Lead Commissioner / Adults &

Report of Communities Director

Wards | All
Public

Status

Appendix A — The Barnet Group Limited Annual Report
Enclosures | Strategic Report and Financial Statement year ending 31%
March 2014

Declan Hoare, Lead Commissioner Housing & Environment
declan.hoare@barnet.gov.uk

Dawn Wakeling, Adults & Communities Director
dawn.wakeling@barnet.gov.uk

Officer Contact Details | Tracey Lees, Chief Executive, The Barnet Group
tracey.lees@thebarnetgroup.org

Tim Campbell, Contract Manager, LBB
tim.campbell@barnet.gov.uk

Summary

This report provides the financial position of the Barnet Group for the year ending March
2014, and asks the Committee to note the Annual Report. The financial year 2013/14 was
The Barnet Group’s second full year of operation. The result for the year is a loss of
£871,000, before taking into account adjustments required in relation to pensions. After
adjustments for pensions and taxation, the group recorded a net loss of £2.558 million.

Recommendations
1. The Committee is asked to note The Barnet Group Annual Report 2013/14.

www.barnet.gov.uk




1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED

1.1 The Performance and Contract Management Committee is required to
approve the Barnet Group Annual Report.

N

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 To allow council scrutiny of the annual report provided by The Barnet
Group.

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED
3.1 None
4, BACKGROUND

4.1 The Barnet Group is a Local Authority Trading Company, wholly owned by
the London Borough of Barnet. It has two subsidiary organisations, Barnet
Homes Limited and Your Choice (Barnet).

4.2 Barnet Homes is an Arm’s Length Management Organisation (ALMO),
providing the Housing Management service to 11,000 tenants and 4,000
leaseholders living in Council-owned properties. Barnet Homes also
provides the Council’'s Homelessness and Housing Advice Service.

4.3  Your Choice (Barnet) provides specialist care and support to adults with a
range of physical and learning disabilities.

5. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION
5.1 This will be dependent on the feedback received from the committee.
6. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION

6.1  Corporate Priorities and Performance

6.1.1 This report presents the annual report, strategic report and financial
statement of the Barnet Group for the year ended 31%* March 2014.

6.1.2 The Barnet Group trades through its subsidiary organisations. The
principal source of income for Barnet Homes is the management fee from
the London Borough of Barnet. The principal source of income for Your
Choice (Barnet) is the fee from the London Borough of Barnet based on
the use of the services.

6.1.3 The Barnet Group provides services to support Council policies and
procedures.

6.1.4 Robust budget and performance monitoring are essential to ensuring that
there are adequate and appropriately directed resources to support
delivery and achievement of Council priorities and targets as set out in the
Corporate Plan.

6.1.5 Relevant Council strategies and policies include the following:



o Corporate Plan 2013-14:

http://www.barnet.gov.uk/downloads/download/264/corporate plan

e Medium Term Financial Strategy:

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s13295/Budget%20report%20F

eb%20Cab%20v5.pdf

¢ Risk Management Strategy:
http://www.barnet.gov.uk/downloads/download/1049/risk_management
strategy

e Council’s Constitution:

http://www.barnet.gov.uk/info/1291/council _constitution/793/council co
nstitution

6.1.6 The priorities of the Council are aligned to the delivery of the Health and
Wellbeing Strategy:

http://www.barnet.gov.uk/downloads/download/1056/barnet health an
d wellbeing strateqy

6.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT,
Property, Sustainability)
6.2.1 The financial performance for the Barnet Group for 2013/14 is provided in

the attached Appendix A.

6.2.2 The financial year 2013/14 was The Barnet Group’s second full year of
operation. The result for the year is a loss of £871,000 before adjustments
for pensions. After adjustments for pensions and taxation, the group
recorded a loss of £2.558 million.

6.2.3 The Barnet Group has reported that one-off restructuring costs contributed
to the loss.

6.3 Legal and Constitutional References
6.3.1 Under the Council’'s Constitution (Annex A, Responsibility for Functions),
the Performance and Contract Management Committee has, amongst

others, the following responsibilities:

Monitoring of Performance against targets by Delivery Units and
Support Groups including Customer Support Group; Re; the Barnet
Group Ltd (including Barnet Homes and Your Choice Barnet); HB
Public Law; NSL; Adults and Communities; Family Services;
Education and Skills; Street Scene; Public Health; Commissioning
Group; and Assurance.

Approve the Annual Report of the Barnet Group Ltd.

6.3.2 The Performance and Contract Management Committee is being asked to
note the Annual Report rather than approve it. The reason for this is that the
Articles of Association of The Barnet Group Limited authorise its directors to
be responsible for the management of its business and to exercise all the
powers of the company, and there has been no special resolution approved
to require approval of the annual report by the shareholders. Under the
Companies (Model Articles) Regulations 2008, Schedule 1, which apply to
the Articles of Association of The Barnet Group Limited, ‘the shareholders
may, by special resolution, direct the directors to take, or refrain from taking,
specified action.’

11



6.4 Risk Management

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.4

The Barnet Group trades through its subsidiary companies and the
majority of risks sit with them.

Barnet Homes and Your Choice (Barnet) are responsible for their own
register for risks identified within their business and management
processes. LBB record risks pertaining to its corporate objectives in the
Council’s risk management system (JCAD). A small number of risks may
be joint risks, i.e. a shared risk where both parties have a role in managing
the risk. Joint risks are recorded in the Council’s risk management system
(JCAD) with the responsibilities and actions of each party clearly defined.
All risks are monitored through regular performance review meetings, as
part of business as usual and escalated whenever required including new
emerging risks and/or any serious risk incidents that occur.

Quarterly contract performance reporting includes significant joint and
operational risks (both with a rating of 12 or more using LBB’s scoring
methodology) and are included in the performance summary for Barnet
Homes and for Your Choice (Barnet) provided to Performance and
Contracts Monitoring Committee.

6.5 Equalities and Diversity

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

6.5.4

6.5.5

The Barnet Group is required to support the Council in meeting its public
sector equality duty (as set out in the Equality Act 2010).This means
having due regard to the need to:

a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act;

b) advance equality of opportunity between those who share a relevant
protected characteristic and those who do not;

c) foster good relations between those who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not.

The ‘protected characteristics’ referred to are: age; disability; gender
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief, sex and
sexual orientation. The duty also covers marriage and civil partnership, but
to a limited extent.

Effective contract management is vital to ensuring that the Council’s duties
under the Equality Act 2010 are supported by its partners.

Equality performance is monitored by collecting data on service usage,
customer feedback and specific performance indicators. Where service
changes affecting residents or service users are proposed, equality impact
assessments will be undertaken, and where needed, these will include
consultation with residents or service users.

The Barnet Group’s objective is to ensure that services are provided fairly
to all the communities they serve and that all employees have equal
opportunities.

6.6 Consultation and Engagement

6.6.1

6.6.2

The Annual Report of the Barnet Group has been reviewed and approved
by the Barnet Group Board.

The Barnet Group Board consists of a Chair appointed by the London
Borough of Barnet, plus 11 members including 2 Councillors appointed by
the Council, and members from Your Choice (Barnet) and Barnet Homes
including residents.

12



Company No. 07873964

The BarnetGroup Limited
Annual Report
Strategic Report
Financial Statements

Year ended 31 March 2014

13



Contents

1. Company information
2. Report of the Directors

3. Strategic Report

4, Independent Auditors’ report to the members of Barnet Homes Limited
5. Statement of Comprehensive Income

6. Statement of Financial Position

7. Statement of Cash Flow

8. Statement of Changes in Equity

9. Accounting policies and explanatory notes to the financial statements

Page

16

18

19

20

21

22

14



1. Company Information

Directors

Terry Rogers (Chair)
Nigel Turner

Sharon Slotnick
Councillor John Marshall
Councillor Ross Houston
Tracey Lees

Changes since last annual report:

Directors - Resigned
Troy Henshall

Chief Executive Officer

Executive Officers

Company Secretary

Registered Office

Registered Number

Auditors

Bankers

Tracey Lees

To
12 November 2013

Derek Rust (Director of Operations)
Troy Henshall (Director of Growth & Development)
Helen Astle (Interim Corporate Services Director) December 2013 to

March 2014

Karen Patten (Interim Director of Care & Support) December 2013 to

April 2014

Julie Riley (Director of Care & Support) April 2014 to date

Troy Henshall

1255 High Road
Whetstone
London

N20 OEJ

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Grant Thornton House
202 Silbury Boulevard
Milton Keynes

MK9 1LW

Santander UK PLC
T54 Ground Floor Ops
Bridle Road

Bootle

Liverpool

L30 4GB

15



2. Report of the Directors

The Board is pleased to present the financial statements of The Barnet Group Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2014.

Principal activities

The Barnet Group Limited (the 'Company’) is a Local Authority Trading Company (LATC) created in
2012 and has two subsidiary organisations; Barnet Homes an Arms Length Management
Organisation (ALMO) and Your Choice (Barnet) a LATC.

Barnet Homes is owned indirectly by the London Borough of Barnet (the 'Council') via The Barnet
Group, and commenced its operations on 1 April 2004. The Council has delegated the management
of its housing stock to the Company under Section 27 of the Housing Act 1985 (as amended by the
Housing and Urban Development Act 1993). Under that delegation the Company is responsible for
the following functions:

o Maintenance of the Council’s residential stock including stock investment decisions and
procurement, planned maintenance and responsive repairs

° Housing management of the Council’s residential stock, including rent collection, leasehold

management, enforcement of tenancy and lease conditions, managing voids and estate

management

Home ownership services

Calculation and collection of leasehold charges

Financial management of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Services under the Supporting People programme

Tenant involvement and resident participation

From 01 April 2012, the Councils homelessness service transferred into Barnet Homes meaning that
Barnet Homes is now also responsible for homelessness assessments, acceptances and
procurement of property. The management agreement was amended to include these
responsibilities.

The original ten year management agreement expired 31 March 2014 and continuation of the
services was agreed via a one year delivery plan. Discussions are underway in respect of a new
management agreement anticipated to be for a ten year period which should be concluded during
2014/15.

Barnet Homes Limited is a subsidiary of The Barnet Group, a wholly owned local authority trading
company of London Borough of Barnet. Barnet Homes became part of The Barnet Group on 01
February 2012 and The Barnet Group acts as an agent for Barnet Homes Ltd in transacting with the
Council. In substance, the company operates as an ALMO per its original structure on 1 April 2004,
but is under the direct ownership of The Barnet Group. London Borough of Barnet is the ultimate
controlling party.

Your Choice (Barnet) Limited is owned indirectly by the London Borough of Barnet (the 'Council’) via
The Barnet Group, that commenced its operations on 1 February 2012 delivering specialist care and
support to adults with a range of physical and learning disabilities. These services were transferred in
order to enable to become more cost effective and compete in the Adult Social Care marketplace.

Your Choice Barnet services include:

e Rosa Morison day service for adults with profound and complex learning and physical disabilities

o Flower Lane Autism Service helping people on the autism spectrum to gain confidence and
become more independent.

o Valley Way respite centre for adults with complex learning disabilities, physical disabilities, autism
or challenging behaviour

4

16



e Community Space day service offering community support, activities and care for adults with a
wide range of learning disabilities

o Supported Living helping people with learning disabilities to live as independently as possible in
their own home.

e Barnet Independent Living Service for adults with a range of physical and sensory impairments

Results for the year

The result for the year is a loss of £871,000 before taking account of the adjustments required in
relation to pension. After the adjustments for pensions and taxation we recorded a net loss of £2.558
million for the year, with the increased loss position as a result of pension accounting transactions of
£1.687 million.

Directors
There was one Director change over the 2013/14 year, with Troy Henshall resigning on 12
November 2013 at the Group Annual General Meeting.

The names of the Directors who served during the year can be found on page 3.

3« party indemnity provision for directors
Directors had provision via The Barnet Group Limited Insurance policy for Officials Indemnity,
Personal Accident and Directors & officers.

Disabled persons

The Barnet Group is committed to equality and diversity and our goal is to embed it into our practices
and everything we do. We want to provide the best possible service and value the contribution our
employees make to achieving this. Our objective is to ensure that services are provided fairly to all
the communities we serve and that all our existing and future employees have equal opportunities.

For our residents and service users we will:

o Understand that some groups of people experience more disadvantage than others and will
target our services to meet particular needs

o Treat all service users with dignity and respect

o Consult and involve service users in planning the delivery of services

o Do our best to engage with hard to reach groups to get their views

As an employer we will;

o Take positive action to develop a workforce that reflects the communities we serve

Employee information

We aim to achieve and promote equality of opportunity in all aspects of our recruitment, training,
policy and practice and to facilitate a working environment where employees feel safe, supported,
able to challenge, feel engaged with the organisation and where any discrimination is dealt with
effectively.

All applicants with disabilities receive fair treatment and are considered solely on their ability to do the
job, taking into account any reasonable adjustments required. We also ensure appropriate training for
employees with disabilities as for other employees.

We strive to ensure that our resources support the delivery of our business plan and to this end we

are committed to developing our people to deliver our business aims. In keeping with our culture we
value feedback from our employees on people management issues. The Chief Executive holds

17



regular “meet the CEO" sessions with cross sections of different staff to hear their views directly on
management and service related issues. It is recognised that effective leadership is critical to
achieving our aspirations and so we have invested considerably in developing our leadership
capability and focussing on our leadership values which are build around our core values. We also
continue to invest in our staff through our performance management process.

The employee awards, designed around our Core Values continued in 2013/14 at our employee
conference and there were many excellent examples of our staff living our values.

Our continued robust management of sickness absence has also seen sickness absence remain low
at 8.3 days (average sickness absence per staff member) by the end of March 2014 in Barnet Homes
Limited and from 15.3 days in 2012/13 down to 12.5 days in Your Choice (Barnet), resulting in us
maintaining our non cashable efficiencies.

As a learning organisation we value the experiences that new employees bring and continue to
engage their integration into the organisation through a well structured induction programme. Our
existing staff are also encouraged to make suggestions on how we can improve as an organisation
and our Innovations Fund makes it possible for staff to test their ideas.

Our comprehensive internal communication strategy aims to encourage two way communication
within the organisation and enhances learning and development. Initiatives have included the Chief
Executive's fortnightly newsletters, a regular staff newsletter, Managers’ Corporate Brief, Lunch and
Learn Sessions open to all staff, corporate induction for new staff and a staff recognition scheme.
Managers also meet regularly with recognized trade unions both informally and formally, for the
purposes of furthering involvement, consultation and negotiation and the we hold monthly staff group
meetings in Barnet Homes Limited and Your Choice (Barnet) Limited

We aim to achieve and promote equality of opportunity in all aspects of our recruitment, training,
policy and practice and to facilitate a working environment where employees feel safe, supported,
able to challenge, feel engaged with the organisation and where any discrimination is dealt with
effectively.

All applicants with disabilities receive fair treatment and are considered solely on their ability to do the
job, taking into account any reasonable adjustments required. We also ensure appropriate training for
employees with disabilities as for other employees.

Charitable donations
The Barnet Group Limited and Your Choice (Barnet) Limited made no charitable donations in the year
ending 31 March 2014. Barnet Homes donated £975 in the year ending 31 March 2014.

EU Political donations and expenditure

No political donations or expenditure were made by the Group or its subsidiaries in the year ending
31 March 2014.

Donations to non-EU political parties

No political donations or expenditure were made by the Group or its subsidiaries in the year ending
31 March 2014.

Payment policy
The Group pays suppliers where possible within suppliers’ credit terms. Payments to suppliers were
made on average within 28 days of receipt of the invoice, compared to 30 days in 2012/13.

Awareness of relevant audit information

The Directors of The Barnet Group Limited can confirm that at the time of approving this report there
is no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware and that we have taken all
necessary steps to ensure we are aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
auditors were also aware.

18



Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the
directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs and profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the directors are required to:

° select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

¢ make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

o state whether applicable IFRSs have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

e  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and

explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial

position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the

Companies Act. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for

taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors confirm that:

e  so far as each director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company'’s
auditor is unaware; and

e the directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware
of that information.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors Remuneration Report

The Directors are defined as being the members of The Barnet Group's Main Board. The Directors
received emoluments for the first time from July 2010 and were entitled to reimbursement of
incidental expenses incurred when attending board meetings and other formal events in their capacity
as board members. The Directors are not entitled to pension benefits. These are the only transactions
with directors of the Company.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Due to the application of IAS19, the Group's pension deficit of £28.957m is recognised in full on the
consolidated statement of financial position. However, the London Borough of Barnet has fully
guaranteed the deficit in respect of Barnet Homes Limited at the point of its incorporation (on 1 April
2004). Furthermore, the London Borough of Barnet has also guaranteed the pension deficit in respect
of Your Choice (Barnet) Limited at the point that the employees were transferred to Your Choice
(Barnet) {(on 1 February 2012). The Directors have reviewed the company’s forecasts for next the
financial year from the date of formally approving the annual report and financial statements.
Therefore the Board consider preparation on a going concern basis to be appropriate.

International Accounting Standard 19 relates to the assessment of the employer’s liability in respect
of the pension scheme, which has the impact of increasing or reducing the pension deficit on the
Statement of Financial Position. This is an accounting rule which shows the current estimate of future
pension costs and has no impact on the company's current liquidity.

7

19



In addition, the London Borough of Barnet has provided a letter of comfort to the Directors of Barnet
Homes Ltd, setting out its intention to fund Barnet Homes Limited's ongoing operational cash flow
requirements from the point of incorporation onwards via the timing of the payment of the agreed
monthly management fee. Therefore the Board considers preparation on a going concern basis to be
appropriate.

Auditors

Grant Thornton UK LLP has expressed their willingness to remain in office. In accordance with
s485(4) of the Companies Act 2006 as resolution to reappoint Grant Thornton UK LLP as auditors will
be proposed at the Annual General meeting to be held on 3 November 2014.

Approval and signature
The report of the Directors was approved by the Board on 22 September 2014 and signed on its
behalf by

20



3. Strategic Report

Review of results

The Financial Year 2013/14 was The Barnet Group’s second full year of operation. Before taking
account of the adjustments required in relation to pensions, a loss of £871,000 was made on the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. After the adjustments for pensions and taxation we recorded a
net loss of £2.558 million for the year, with the increased loss position as a result of pension
accounting transactions of £1.687 million. The Barnet Group’s usable revenue reserve as presented
in the Statement of Financial Position is £1.445 million.

The activities carried out between The Barnet Group and London Borough of Barnet has been
recognised by Her Majesty's Customs and Excise as non-trading for corporation tax purposes. These
activities are therefore not subject to corporation tax.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The Barnet Group is a non trading parent company and therefore the majority of the risks sit within
the individual companies within the Group.

Barnet Homes’ Management Agreement with the Council was for a ten year period to April 2014, with
a break clause at 31 March 2009 which was not exercised although some revisions were made to the
Agreement and again from April 2012 to reflect the transfer of the homelessness service. A new
long term management agreement is yet to materialise although discussions are ongoing and
services are currently contracted via an annual service delivery plan.

Our principal source of income is the management fee from the London Borough of Barnet, which is
paid monthly in advance in accordance with the Agreement. The fee is set in advance, and the main
risk to the Company is that it is not able to deal with inflationary pressures in excess of that allowed
for or is unable to maintain levels of income collection due to the economic situation. This has
caused an impact with public sector pay increases now being reintroduced and pension auto
enrolment also having an impact. The Council is also embarking on a five year savings programme
aimed at delivering over seventy million of efficiencies of which Barnet Homes will have to contribute
its own share.

The levels of stock managed under the Agreement will reduce as the Council’s regeneration
programme gains momentum and right to buy (RTB) increases. With RTB exceeding 100 units per
year and rising, the Company is assessing opportunities to replace this loss of activity with new
business. However the present economic climate has led to uncertainty around the regeneration
timetable and a need for investment in the management and maintenance of properties that was not
previously planned. We continue to work closely with the Council and its development partners in
seeking to improve our service to residents on these estates.

The reform of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) has not presented the risks originally anticipated,
but the reform of Welfare is beginning to see an impact on arrears and the major changes such as
direct payments are yet to be introduced. Pension auto enrolment was introduced in late 2013/14
and it had an impact on the Company’s expenditure budgets but the HRA is projecting a strong 30
year model that will enable new build properties to be developed in the Borough. Council financing
continues to be under significant pressure and Barnet Homes can expect to face more significant
efficiency demands alongside rising costs in the coming years.

Homelessness presentations and acceptances are not significantly different from previous years but
access to properties has seen a significant reduction causing increases in emergency and temporary
accommodation. There has been a significant increase in outer London private sector rents and
Barnet now has the most expensive rents in outer London meaning significant expenditure is now
being incurred.

Your Choice (Barnet)’ contract with the Council has exercised its option to extend the current contract
for a two year period and therefore the current contract will now run until February 2017. Our principal

9

21



source of income is the fee from the London Borough of Barnet, which is now paid monthly in arrears
based on the use of our services.

The move to this payment method and wider cost reductions in the sector meant that Your Choice
(Barnet) had to put in place a series of cost saving activities in 2013/14. These changes were
completed on 1 April 2014 although discussions are still ongoing with the union in respect of the final
changes, a 9.5% pay reduction for employees, to try and find alternative savings. These discussions
have led to a ballot for industrial action and we await the next steps of this process.

The Adult Social Care marketplace is extremely challenging with reviews of service users and the
rates paid generally resulting in reduction of income. If this trend continues it could impact our ability
to attract and retain good employees. The recent pay reduction was put in place to ensure we can be
competitive in the marketplace on both the rates being paid but also our employees salaries and
wider terms and conditions.

It is widely accepted that Local Authority budgets for services like those delivered by Your Choice
(Barnet) will face more significant cuts in the coming years and Your Choice (Barnet) will need to
further align its costs with the market, without affecting quality of services. In addition Your Choice
will need to ensure it has sufficient financial strength to repay the loan made by Barnet Homes in
2013.

Health and Safety and safeguarding of our employees and our service users is a major activity,
especially as the majority of our service users have a significant range of disabilities.

Key financial performance indicators
The key performance indicators for our subsidiary organisations are set out as follows:

Barnet Homes Limited

Our robust financial management has ensured that our expenditure was broadly in line with budget
and that we were able to divert resources during the year to areas where they were most needed. On
capital expenditure we are working to a five year programme and so fluctuations compared to budget
are expected between financial years.

Key Performance Target 2014 2013 2012 2011
Indicator
Percentage of +/-2% of budget | +0.14% -1.09% -0.47% -1.40%
expenditure to budget
on housing
management
Percentage of +/- 2% of budget | +0.27% +0.30% +0.02% -0.01%
expenditure to budget
on repairs and
maintenance
Percentage of +/- 2% of budget | -2.10% -11.51% -0.26% -5.42%
expenditure to budget
on capital programme

The key performance indicators (KPIs) used to monitor achievement of the company’s key objectives
is set out below. The Board and London Borough of Barnet agree targets each year that are designed
to manage development and deliver continuous improvement as outlined in the management
agreement. The key performance indicators do not impact on the company’s operational and financial
status. Despite a challenging time rent arrears continues to be a strong performance area for us and
our lettings performance is now amongst the best in London.

10

22



Demand Indicators: 2012/13 2013/14 | % Change

Households in temporary accommodation (TA) at | 2,372 2,401 +1%

end of period (includes clients in emergency TA)*

Number of new TA admission 846 824 -3%

Number of housing need applications received 2,459 2,705 +10%

requiring investigation

Number of homeless presentations 1,131 1,079 -5%

Number of homeless acceptances 591 670 +13%

Number of homeless preventions completed 449 894 +99%

Contextual Figures: March March % Change
2013 2014

No' households in emergency accommodation 635 471 -26%

No’ households in Bed & Breakfast (B&Bs) 8 0 n/a

Significant progress was achieved in 2013/14 with costs stabilising and the number of households in
emergency accommodation falling significantly to 471. This has been in-part due to the success of a
number of mitigating actions in place including an increase the number of our emergency
accommodation suppliers, recruiting more affordable providers, with the number of providers now
increasing to 446. This is also helping to create competition amongst providers and has meant that
Barnet Homes has been able to secure some affordable supply, whilst also minimising increases in
cost.

Overall, lettings performance has been strong with the 19.5 day target for average re-let times for all

properties being met. This year’s performance of 18 days also represents an improvement on last
year's 19.1 days.

Allocations & lettings

Average Re-let Times 2012/13 | 2013/14 | % Change | 2013/14
Target
All Barnet Homes 19.1 18.0 -6% 19.5
Non-Regeneration 15.0 18.3 +22% 15.0
Regeneration 22.9 15.3 -33% 23.0
Hostels 13.8 14.4 +4% 13.56
Sheltered 46.4 32.8 -29% 50.0

Arrears as % debit. Result: 2.40% (vs. target 2.39%)

.00
280
2.80%
2.70% |
2.60%
2.50%
2.40%

& laget (Quaiters)

11

23



2 Year Flexible Tenants: Result: 84.6% (vs. target 70.0%)

95.0%
90 0%
85.0% |
80.0%
75.0%
70.0%
65.0%
60.0%
55.0%
50.0%

Akl Imllﬂ

1“\"

s‘ & >
o ¥ ¥ p d@ . go é& & qaé‘" ¢'

& Target (Months)

Responsive Repairs Satisfaction: Result: 97.0% (vs. target 90.0%)

100.0%

$7.5%

95.0%

92.5% |

90.0%

87.5%

65.0%

82.5%

80.0% *

IIIIIIIIIIn

§
\" ’f“ .,? Yf” \‘&" "f . & eéo ‘xJ
F ¢
- Target (Months)

First Time Fix: Result: 78.9% (vs. target 78.0%)

80.0%
77.5%
75.0%
72.5%
70.0%
67.5%

;\ o Pig o P o ‘* o
& & w" ﬁ" @" & g
o,é“ép o S *é& d & =

- Target {Months)

The First Time Fix graph represents the percentage of jobs completed on the first visit to the property.

12

24



Your Choice (Barnet) Limited

Because of the significant changes we made in 2013/14 and the delay in implementing the changes,

the actual outturn against the annual budget has seen high levels of variations. The one off
restructuring expenditure has materialised in significant variations against budget in respect of the

following areas:

e Voluntary redundancy costs

e Pension strain costs for redundant staff
e Additional agency staff costs

Key Performance Target 2013 2014
Indicator

Percentage of +/-2% of budget | +2.97% +11.86%
expenditure to budget

Percentage of income +/-2% of budget | +1.39% -1.55%
to budget

The facilities within our services are generally modern and very well equipped and our staff are

dedicated and provide high quality services. It is obviously important for the success of Your Choice
to more effectively utilise the available facilities. Even where we are close to capacity small changes

to the facilities or changes in working practices should allow us to further expand capacity.

Service % Utilisation | Target
Barnet
Independent
Living Service 90.00% 95.00%
(BILS)
Community
Space 98.20% 95.00%
Flower Lane 97.60% 95.00%
Rosa Morison 99.00% 95.00%
Supported Living 97.80% 95.00%

Valley Way

In addition our respite service Valley Way saw an overall void rate of 27% in 2013/14, with Mondays
to Thursdays at 32% and Friday to Sunday at 22%.

2013/14 saw improvements in utilisation for all of our services and we saw a positive number of
referrals for our services which resulted in 30 new customers over the year.

13

25



Indicator description éou1 tz{u:' : . 2013114
Number of referrals from within the 15 (YBoaurrngtt;mce 30
London Borough of Barnet BILS 0
Percentage (%) of total 29% -
Number of referrals from other Local 22 Community Space | 4
Authorities Flower Lane 5
Percentage (%) of total 42% Rosa Morison 7
Number of other referrals (e.g. self) 15 Supported Living 1
Percentage (%) of total % 29% Valley Way 13
Outcomes

Indicator description 2013/14

Outturn
Moved on to lower dependence service 0
Moved on to higher dependence service 9
Moved on for another reason 7
Total number of service users who have 16
moved on

The annual reviews for each service user measured outcomes across 9 generic areas. Eighty
percent (80%) of the total outcomes were met, with 12% not applicable to all service users. The
remaining 8% were split between outcomes not met and no service review occurring.

In the year the company only received one complaint and had eight safeguarding incidents of which
one was upheld.

Future Developments

Barnet Homes was successful in a tender to deliver Early Intervention and Prevention mentoring
programmes for children and has also delivered the first Council owned Housing for over 20 years in
2013 with initial 3 houses built in Muswell Hill, North London. A further programme of 38 properties is
underway and due for completion in the next eighteen months. Barnet Homes is also working with
the Council, the Greater London Authority (GLA) and Re (the joint venture between Capita and
Barnet Council) to explore further new build opportunities and is in exploring the creation of two new
Registered Providers to enable it to maximise its development capability.

Barnet Homes also successfully tendered for alarm monitoring services from the London Borough of
Brent and these services are now live. Barnet Homes has also partnered successfully with the
London Credit Union to support financial inclusion and Future Gov. in order to roll out Casserole, a
service to support isolated older people.

Barnet Homes commenced its All Systems Go project in 2012 which went live in 2013/14 replacing all
of its major IT systems. Further work will be undertaken on these systems over the next eighteen
months to deliver further improvements to our services.

Your Choice (Barnet) is now part of The Barnet Group Care & Support division which brings together
all of the services within Your Choice (Barnet) and the Assist and Sheltered Housing services within

Barnet Homes Ltd. The working together, sharing best practice and opportunities for synergies is
significant and will enable the Group to bid more robustly.

14

26



The Care & Support Directorate now has a Director lead and following the completion of the cost
saving programme, Your Choice (Barnet) is well placed to compete for new business and is aiming to
deliver a minimum 2% growth over the next 12 months. We are seeing more referrals to our services
than ever before and growth within each service is beginning to take shape.

Approval and signature

The strategic report of the Directors was approved by the Board on 22 September 2014 and signed
on its behalf by

Terry Rogers, Chair

15

27



Independent auditor's report to the members of The Barnet Group
Limited

We have audited the financial statements of The Barnet Group Limited for the year ended 31 March
2014 which comprise the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of financial position, the consolidated statement of cash flow, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, the company statement of comprehensive income, the company balance sheet
and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union.

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 7, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB's) Ethical Standards for
Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting
Council’'s website at www.frc.org.uk/apb/scope/private.cfm.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31
March 2014 and of its loss for the period then ended,;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

¢  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report for the financial
year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

16

28



Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

o the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

¢ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

¢ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

John Corbishley

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Milton Keynes

17

29



The Barnet Group Limited
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 March 2014

Notes 2014 2013
£000 £'000
Revenue 3 52,469 48,928
Employee benefits expense 13 (17,231) (17,908)
Retirement pension obligation (175) (1,273)
Depreciation 8 (172) (184)
Amortisation 8 (101)
Other expenses 4 (36,030) (30,524)
Operating (loss)/profit (1,241) (960)
Finance income 7 1,377 1,791
Finance costs 7 (2,677) (2,964)
(Loss)/Profit before tax (2,540) (2,133)
Income tax expense (19) (22)
(Loss)/Profit after tax (2,558) (2,155)
Other comprehensive Income
Actuarial profit/(loss) on pension scheme 4,953 1,509
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,395 {646)
Total comprehensive income Is attributable to:
London Borough of Barnet 2,395 (646)
Reconciliation of total loss for the year after tax
2014 2013
£'000 £'000
(Loss)/profit for the period (871) 359
(Loss)/profit from IAS19 pension fund accounting entries (1,687) (2,514)

Total (loss)! profit for the year after tax (2,558) (2,155}




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 March 2014

Note 2014 2013
£000 £'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Tangible Assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 488 348
Intanglble Assets
Computer Software & Development 8 1,384 548
1,872 896
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 9 14,707 8,975
Short term investment 1 - 506
Cash and cash equivalents 10 3,725 8,919
18,432 18,401
Total assets 20,304 19,298
EQUITY and LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Revenue reserve (excluding IAS 19 provisions) 1,445 2,316
Pension fund (28,957) (32,223)
Retained eamings (27,512) (29,907)
Total Equity (27,512) (29,907)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Pension and other employee abligations 28,957 32,223
Provisions 14 194 268
29,151 32,491
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 18,644 16,692
Current tax liabilities 21 22
18,665 16,714
Total liabilities 18,665 49,205
Total equity and liabilities 20,304 19,298

The financial statements were authorised and approved by the Board on 22 September 2014 and signed on its behalf by:

Terry Rogers, Chair

Company Number: 07873964

31



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended 31 March 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/ (loss) before tax

Interest income

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Loss on disposal of non-financial assets
Change in pension assets

Change in pension liabilities

Actuarial loss on pension scheme
Change in provisions

Taxes paid

Other

Net cash from operating activities

Net changes in working capltal:
Change in trade and other receivables
Change in trade and other payables
Change in other employee obligations
Total changes in working capital

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received

Purchases of equipment

Increase in short Term Investment

Net cash used In Investing activities

Net (decrease) /increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Note

-~

23

23

2014 2013
£000 £000
(2,540) (2,133)
(40) (72)
172 184
101 -

2 37
(6,388) (6,388)
3,123 7,304
4,953 1,509
(74) (38)
(22) (20}
(713) 472
(5,.732) (3,296)
1,868 5,835
84 (3)
(3.780) 2,536
40 72
(1,248) (692)
507 (506)
(701) (1.126)
(5.194) 1,883
8,919 7,037
3,725 8,919

32



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
as at 31 March 2014

Total retained

Revenue Reserve Pension Fund eamings
(excl IAS19 provisions)
£'000 £'000 £'000
Balance as at 1 April 2012 1,957 (31,217) (29,260)
Profit/ (loss) for the year 359 359
(Increase)/ decrease in retirement pension obligation (2,516) (2,516)
Other comprehensive income:
Actuarial loss on pensions scheme 1,509 1,509
359 (1,007) (648)
Balance as at 31 March 2013 (2,316} (32,223) (29,907)
Balance as at 1 April 2013 (2,316) (32,223) (29,907)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (871) (874)
Increase in retirement pension obligation (1,688) (1,688)
Other comprehensive income:
Actuarial gain on pensions scheme 4,953 4,953
Total comprehensive income for the year (871) (28,957) 2,392
Balance as at 31 March 2014 (3,187) (28,957) (27,515)

33



Company Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 March 2014

for the period

ending
Note 2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Revenue - -
Employee benefits expense - -
Retirement pension obligation - .
Depreciation - -
Other expenses 3 (38) (36)
Operating (loss)/profit (38) (36)
Finance income 4 8 3
Finance costs (1) -
(Loss)/Profit before tax (31) (33)
Income tax expense 9 1 (1)
(Loss)/Profit after tax (31) (34)
Other comprehensive income
Actuarial profit/(loss) on pension scheme - -
Total comprehensive Incorne for the year {31) (34)
Total comprehensive income is attributable to:
London Borough of Bamnet (31) (34)
Reconciliation of total ioss for the year after tax
for the period
ending
2014 2013
£'000 £'000
(Loss)/profit for the period (31) (34)
(Loss)/profit from 1AS19 pension fund accounting entries - -
Total (loss)/ profit for the year after tax (31) (34)

34



Company Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 March 2014

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY and LIABILITIES
EQUITY

|Revenue reserve
Total Equity

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Current tax liabilities

Total ilabiiities

Total equity and liabilitles

The financial statements were authorised and approved by the Board on 22 September 2014 and signed on its behalf by

Terry Rogers, Chair

Company Number: 07873964

Note

16
17

2014 2013
£'000 £'000
9,526 7,712
1,854 2,51
11,380 10,223
11,380 10,223
(65) (34)
(65) (34)
11,444 10,257
1 -
11,445 10,257
11,445 10,257
11,380 10,223

35



Accounting policies and explanatory notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2014

1. General information and statement of compliance with IFRS

This is The Barnet Group's second accounting period .The Barnet Group is a local authority controlled company of the London Borough of Barnet limited by
shares. The Company is incorporated and domiciled in England. The address of the registered office is Barnet House, 1255 High Road, Whetstone,
London N20 OEJ. The company's registration number is 07873964.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the

European Union and as developed and published by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Implementation of new accounting standards and policies

The financial statements have been prepared using accounting policies specified by those IFRSs that are in effect at 31 March 2014.
The significant accounting policies that have been applied in preparation of the financial statements are summarised below.

These accounting policies have been used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements.

New standards and interpretations currently in issue but not effective for accounting periods commencing on 1 April 2013 are:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective 1 January 2015)

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (effective 1 January 2013**)

IFRS 11 Joint Arangements (effective 1 January 2013**)

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (effective 1 January 2013**)

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (effective 1 January 2013)

IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised June 2011) (effective 1 January 2013)

IAS 27 (Revised), Separate Financial Statements (effective 1 January 2013**)

IAS 28 (Revised), Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective 1 January 2013**)

Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income - Amendments to 1AS 1 (effective 1 July 2012)

e Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Amendments to IFRS 7 (effective 1 January 2013)
e  Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Amendments to IAS 32 (effective 1 January 2014)

*  Mandatory Effective Date and Transition Disclosures - Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 (effective 1 January 2015)
*  Govemment Loans - Amendments to IFRS 1 (effective 1 January 2013)

s |FRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine (effective 1 January 2013)

e  Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle (effective 1 January 2013)

e  Transition Guidance - Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 (effective 1 January 2013)

e Investment Entities - Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (effective 1 January 2014)

** Note: EU mandatory effective date is 1 January 2014 not 2013. Also Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets - Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes (IASB
effective date 1 January 2012) has a mandatory EU effective date of periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013.

As of 8 April 2013, the following standards and interpretations are in issue but not yet adopted by the EU:

e IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective 1 January 2015)
e Investment Entities - Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (effective 1 January 2014)

36



Presentation of financial statements
The financial statements are presented in accordance with IAS 1 presentation of financial statements (Revised 2007).
The Company has elected to present the statement of comprehensive income in one statement: the 'statement of comprehensive income'.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

These financial statements are for the year ended 31 March 2014 and are presented in Pounds Sterling rounded to the nearest
thousand.

The principal accounting policies of the Company are set out below and have been consistently applied to all years presented in
these financial statements.

The principal accounting policies have remained unchanged from prior year except where stated.
Basis of consolidation

The company was incorporated on 7 December 2011 and is controlled by the London Borough of Barnet . On 1 February 2012, the company
became the sole member of Barnet Homes Limited, a company previously controlled directly by the London Borough of Barnet. The services
provided by Barnet Homes Limited remained unchanged, however, these services are now carried out under an agreement between The London
Borough of Barnet and The Barnet Group Limited, who in turn have a management agreement with Barnet Homes Limited.

The Barnet Group Limited also holds 100% of the issued share capital of Your Choice (Barnet) Limited, a company which was also incorporated

on 7 December 2011. On 1 February 2012, the London Borough of Barnet transferred certain services over to Your Choice Barnet Limited under a
contract between The London Borough of Barnet and The Barnet Group Limited, who in turn have a management agreement with Your Choice (Barnet )
Limited.

The Directors considered the above restructuring to represent a business combination between entities under common control. This is because the
London Borough of Barnet remained the ultimate controlling party of Barnet Homes Limited and therefore in substance, no change in control

had occurred. Business combinations between entities under common control are outside the scope of IFRS 3 Business Combinations (revised 2008)
and therefore acquisition accounting does not apply. The directors are therefore required to develop a suitable accounting policy under which to account
for such a transaction.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors have adopted a policy of applying capital reorganisation accounting as this best represents the
substance of the transactions which have taken place. In applying the capital reorganisation accounting, the consolidated balance sheet presented
in the financial statements incorporates the assets and liabilities of Barnet Homes Limited at their pre-combination carrying amounts, without any
fair value adjustments.

Golng concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Due to the application of 1AS19, the Group's pension deficit of £28.957m (2013: £32.223m) is recognised in full on the consolidated statement of financial

position. However, the London Borough of Barnet has fully guaranteed the deficit in respect of Barnet Homes Limited at the point of its incorporation (on 1
April 2004). Furthermore, the London Borough of Barnet has also guaranteed the pension deficit in respect of Your Choice Barnet Limited at the point that
the employees were transferred to Your Choice Barnet (on 1 February 2012).

In addition, the London Borough of Barnet has provided a letter of comfort to the Directors of Barnet Homes Ltd, setting out its intention to fund Barnet
Homes Ltd's ongoing operational cash flow requirements from the point of incorporation anwards via the timing of the payment of the agreed monthly
management fee. Therefore the Board considers preparation on a going concern basis to be appropriate.

Revenue

Revenue represents the value (excluding value added tax) of services supplied and management fee to which the Group was entitled in respect of the
financial year. The Group's main source of income is the management fee received from London Borough of Barnet in line with the approved management
agreement also based on payment by usage for the adult social services arm of the business. The leve! of the annual management fee has been

negotiated with the Council for a § year period ending in Year 2016/17, and thereafter will be negotiated either on an annual basis or over a longer period
for the housing management arm of the business.

Sundry income is recognised so as to match revenue to the cost of delivering the relevant services in the same accounting year.

Grants received in respect of resident participation and other projects have been credited to the statement of comprehensive income in the same period as
the expenditure to which they relate. Any surplus grant is held in deferred income as a current liability unti! such time that it is used to pay for future
expenditure in relation to that project.

Interest income
Interest received on bank deposits is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable. Any
interest receivable that is due has been accrued accordingly.

Operating expenses
Operating expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income upon utilisation of the service or at the date of their origin.

37



Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historic cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided on all
property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to write off the costs on a straight-line basis over their expected useful
lives (with no charge in the year of acquisition) as follows:

Vehicles, plant & equipment: 5 years
Furniture, fixtures & fittings: 5 years
Computer equipment and software: 3 years

The Group elected to change its estimation of the expected useful economic live for computer equipment and software from 3 years to

5 years from the current financial year. Assets purchased and the outstanding balances on existing assets are now depreciated over a 5 year period.

Any obsolete assets with a net book value will have all costs written off immediately to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The profit or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Leases

All current leases are treated as operating leases. Payments on operating lease agreements are recognised as an expense on a straight
line basis over the lease term. Associated costs are expensed as incurred.

38



Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the financial
asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value, except for financial assets and financial liabilities carried
at fair value through profit and loss, which is measured initially at fair value

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured subsequently as described below.

Financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into categories upon initial recognition.

The category determines subsequent measurement and whether any resulting income and expense is recognised in profit or loss
or in other comprehensive income.

All financial assets are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting date. Financial assets are impaired when there is
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets are recognised in profit and loss and are presented within finance cost', ‘finance
income' or ‘other financial items’, except for impairment of trade receivables which is presented within ‘other expenses’.

Loans and receivables

All of the Groups financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost. A provision for impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cashflows.
Movements in the provision for doubtful debts are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Generally, this results in their recognition at their nominal value less any allowance for any doubtful debts.



Financial liabilities
Financia! liabilities include borrowings and trade and other payables.

Financia! liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the entity after deducting all of its financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities are contractual obligations to pay cash or other financial assets and are recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are recorded initially at fair value, net of direct issue costs.

Financia! liabilities are recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest related charges recognised as an expense in finance
cost in profit or loss. Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are charged to profit or loss on an
accruals basis using the effective interest method, and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the
period in which they arise.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost.
Generally, this results in their recognition at their nominal value.

Income tax

The relationship between the Group and the London Borough of Barnet has been recognised as one of mutual trading. Consequently, any activities
between the Group and the London Borough of Barnet are not liable to corporation tax. Albeit not under a direct ALMO Structure, HM Revenue and
Customs states that in substance the Group's trading activities are that of an ALMO, therefore profits and losses incurred as a result, fall outside the scope
of corporation tax. Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax where applicable. The corporation tax currently
payable is based on the taxable profit for the year from taxable ordinary activities, which have been generated from trading with third parties and investment
income (interest received).

Deferred tax is provided on timing differences that have arisen but not reversed by the statement of financial position date, where the timing differences
result in an obligation to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, in the future. Timing differences arise because of differences between the treatment of
certain items for accounting and taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as more likely than not that they will
be recovered. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods when the timing differences are expected to reverse,
based on tax rates and law enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and other short term liquid resources.
Deposits are repayable on demand if they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty.

Short term liquid resources are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value. They comprise term deposits with financial institutions.

Short term investment

Cash invested in fixed deposit accounts to obtain a higher rate of interest, with a notice period, which are not readily convertible to cash and
with no maturity date are classified as short term deposits.

Equity and reserves
Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits.

Post employment benefits and short term employee benefits

During the year, the Group operated a contributory defined benefit statutory pension scheme covering its present and past employees. International
Accounting Standard 19 (IAS19) requires the net pension asset or liability of a company's pension scheme to be recognised in full on the statement of
financial position. Accordingly, the Group's full net pension liability has been recorded in the consolidated statement of financia! position of The Barnet
Group Limited. The Company does not have any employees and therefore does not operate a pension scheme.

The regular service cost of providing pension benefits to employees during the year, the costs or gain of any benefits relating to past service, together with
the loss on settlements and curtailments is charged to "Employee salaries and benefits" in the statement of comprehensive income in the year. Past service
costs or gain arises when the Group awards additional discretionary benefits. A change in benefits may result in either a past service cost or a past service
gain. Loss on settlements and curtailments arise as a result of some members transferring from another employer over the year, and as a result of the early
payment of accrued pensions on retirement on the grounds of redundancy or early retirement.

Interest on the pension scheme liabilities is charged to "Finance costs" in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year.

The expected return on the assets of the pension scheme during the year is based on the bid value of the assets at the start of the financial year and is
recognised within "Finance income” in the statement of comprehensive income in the year.

40



Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions and contingent liabilities are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the Directors' best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the statement of financial position date, and are discounted to present value where the
effect is material. The Group has no contingent assets.

Significant management judgements in applying accounting policies
When preparing the financial statements, management undertakes a number of judgements, estimates and assumptions about recognition and
measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The actual results are likely to differ from the judgements, estimates and assumptions made by management, and will seldom equal estimated results.

Information about the significant judgments, estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on the recognition and measurement of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses is provided below.

Defined benefit liability

Management estimates the defined benefit liability annually with the assistance of independent actuaries;

however, the actual outcome may vary due to estimation uncertainties. The defined benefit liability of £28,957,000

(2013: £32,223,000) is based on standard rates of inflation and mortality. It also takes into account the Company's specific anticipation of

future salary increases. Assumptions are set with reference to market conditions at the year end. The discount rate is the annualised yield at the
25 year point on the Merill Lynch AA rated corporate bond curve which has been chosen to meet the requirements of 1AS19 and with consideration
of the duration of the Employer’s liabilities. Estimation uncertainties exist as the anticipated assumptions could vary.

Provisions

Provisions are mainly in relation to insurance excess on public liability claims, staff redundancy costs and disrepair claims.

The disrepair provision is based on Management's estimate of all potential outstanding claims at the year end (many of which originated in prior years). The
estimate includes potential legal and compensation costs. It is possible that some of the claims may take several years to process through the legal
system. Estimation uncertainties exist particularly with regard to the timing and amount of expenditure.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date based on the expected utility of

the assets to the Group. The carrying amounts are analysed in note 9. Actual results, however, may vary due to technical obsolescence, particularly
for software and IT equipment.

41



3. Revenue
Revenue is attributable to the principal activities of the Group and arises solely within the United Kingdom

2014 2013

£'000 £'000
Management fee pald by the London Borough of Barnet in respect of:
Bamet Homes housing management and suppont services 37,725 33,687
Bamet Homes repairs and maintenance 7,800 8,050
Your Choice Bamet adult social care services 4,522 5,369
Your Choice Bamet repair fund - 26
Total fee recelved from London Borough of Barnet 50,047 47,132
Capital works camied out directly by Bamet Homes 1,118 802
Total income from the London Borough of Barnet 51,165 47,934
Other operating income 1,304 993
Total revenue 52,469 48,928
4. Other expenses

2014 2013

£'000 £'000
Housing, estate, hostel repairs & maintenance 8,317 8,061
Third party landlord and temporary accommodation costs 14,240 9,463
Agency Staff 3,860 2,880
Information Technology 1,198 1,300
Grounds Maintenance 610 613
Utility 1,517 1,533
Legal 705 683
Auditors remuneration - statutory audit 44 41
Auditors remuneration - for other services 22 20
Other 5,517 5,930

36,030 30,524

The other services provided by the auditors relate to corporation tax compliance, online services to file the statutory accounts with HMRC and
other tax advisory work.



5. Loss for the year

The loss for the year has been arrived at afier charging the following,

2014 2013

£000 £'000
Depreciation of property, piant and equipment 273 184
Employee salaries and benefits 17,231 17,908
Auditors remuneration - statutory audit 35 11
Auditors remuneration - for other services 11 20
6. Commitments under operating leases
Group

2014 2013

£'000 £'000
Within one year 129 63
Later than one year but within five years 98 72

227 135

The Group leases several vehicles under operating leases from the Council. The vehicle ieases vary from a period of less than one year to two years
with a fixed lease and overhead cost for the same period. There is an annual service level agreement with the Council to cover the lease of the vehicles
The total number of vehicies with operating leases in 2014 is 16 (2013: 16)

In addition the company leases several printers, photocopier machines, water coolers and one washing machine under operating leases from other organisations.
The plant and equipment leases vary from a period of less than one year to ene and a half years. There are annual contracts for some of the operating

leases and others have a notice period attached to them. The total number of plant and equipment with operating lease in 2014 is 17 (2013: 7).

Company

The Company does not have any commitments under operating ieases.

7. Finance income and finance cost

2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Finance income:
- bank deposit and short term investment interest 40 72
- return on retirement benefit scheme assets 1,338 1,719
1,377 1,791
Finance cost - interest on retirement benefit obligation (2,677) (2.964)
8. Tangible Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Group
Vehicles, Fumiture,
plant & fixtures & Computer
equipment fittings equipment Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Gross carrying amount
Balance 1 Aprit 2013 111 272 979 1,362
Reclassifications - - 27 27
Additions 26 5 254 285
Disposals (2) - - (2)
Balance 31 March 2014 135 277 1,260 1,672
Depreciation and impairment
Balance 1 April 2013 46 256 712 1.014
Charge for year 18 5 149 172
Disposals (2) - - (2)
Balance 31 March 2014 63 262 861 1,185
Carrying amount 1 April 2013 65 16 267 348
Carrying amount 31 March 2014 73 15 399 488

At the balance sheet date the group was committed to purchasing £184,850 of fixed assets.



Intangible Assets

Group

Gross carrying amount
Balance 1 April 2013
Reclassifications
Additions

Disposais

Balance 31 March 2014

Amortisation
Balance 1 April 2013
Charge for year
Disposals

Balance 31 March 2014

Carrying amount 1 April 2013

Carrying amount 31 March 2014

Computer
Software &
Development Total
£'000 £'000
548 548
(27)
964 964
1,485 1,485
101 101
101 101
548 548
1,384 1,384

44



9. Trade and other receivables

Group

2014 2013

£'000 £'000
Amounts receivable within one year:
Trade receivables, gross 267 244
Provision for doubtful debt (6) (5)
Trade receivables 261 239
Amounts due from the London Borough of Bamnet 12,861 7.061
Financial assets 13,122 7.300
Other debtors 6 140
Prepayments and accrued income 1,579 1,536
Non-financial assets 1,585 1,676
Trade and other receivables 14,707 8,975
The trade receivables ageing analysis is as follows:

2014 2013

£'000 £'000
Current
0-30 days 12,720 7,016
31-60 days 69 27
> 60 days 333 257

13,122 7,300

The Group's management considers that all of the above financial assets that are not impaired or past due for each of the reporting dates under review
are of good credit quality.

Company
2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Amounts receivable within one year:
Amounts due from the London Borough of Barnet 8,808 7,042
Amounts due from subsidiaries 714 640
Financial assets 9,522 7,682
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income 4 30
Non-financial assets 4 30
Trade and other receivables 9,526 772
The trade receivabies ageing analysis is as follows:
2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Current
0-30 days 9,027 1,183
31-60 days 267 6,471
> 60 days 228 28
9,522 7.682

The Group's management considers that all of the above financial assets that are not impaired or past due for each of the reporting dates under review
are of good credit quality.



10. Cash and cash equivalents

Group
2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Bank accounts 2,705 6,805
Cash in hand 9 6
Short term deposits 1,011 2,108
3,725 8,919
Short term deposits represents cash held in the bank for 3 months fixed depaosit account, with a maturity date.
Company
2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Bank accounts 1,854 2,51
1,854 2,51
11. Short Term Investment
Group
2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Short term investments - 506

("013: Short term investment (£0.507 million) represents cash held in the bank in a 95 days notice fixed rate deposit account, with no maturity date).

12. Equity

12.1 Share Capitai

The Barnet Group is a company limited by shares, with 100 £1 shares owned by The London Borough of Barnet.
The Barnet Group is a local authority controlled trading company under the control of London Borough of Barnet.

The ultimate parent entity is London Borough of Barnet by virtue of its controiling interest in The Barnet Group Limited The largest and smalilest group in which the
results of the company are consolidated is that headed by The Barnet Group Limited.

13. Employee remuneration
13.1. Employee benefits expense

2014 2013

£'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 13,241 13,999
Social security costs 1,037 1,136
Pensions costs 2,953 2,773
17,231 17,908

Directors' salary costs are inciuded in total employee costs.

Barnet Homes Limited undertook a restructure in the Housing Options and Business Improvement service areas during the course of the financial year.

In this financial year, wages and salary costs include redundancy costs of £278,302 (2013: 265,091) and pension costs include early retirement pension strain costs
of £98,777 (2013: £105,365).



13.2. Employees

The average number of permanent employees (excluding agency staff) employed by the Group during the year was:

Service

Chief Executive Office
Business Services Directorate
Operations Directorate

Future Jobs Fund

Non Executive Directors

14. Pension and other employee obligations

2014 2013
2 2

61 57
398 439
1 -

7 "
469 509

47



15. Provisions

Group

Insurance claims

Disrepair claims

Other provision

Total provisions

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Carrying amount at 1 April 2013 121 38 110 268
Utilised - (37) (98) (135)
Released (36) (&)} (11) (48)
Increase in provisions - - 109 109
Carrying amount at 31 March 2014 85 0 108 194

Insurance claims are provisions in respect of public liability claims which are outstanding at 31 March 2014. The Group's

liability is restricted to the amount of the claim or the policy excess, whichever is the greater. The policy excess is currently £2,500.
Disrepair claims are estimates relating to outstanding disrepair cases. The Group has provided for any such chailenges where at the

end of the year it is more likely than not that there is an obligation to be settled.

Other provision is the redundancy and early retirement pension strain costs for five staff £108,548 (£2013: 109,742) as a result of organisational restructure.

Company

The company had no provisions at 31 March 2014 (2013: nil)

48



16. Trade and other payables

Group

Current:

Trade payables

Amount owed to the London Borough of Bamet
Financial liabilities

Other payables
Other taxation and social security
Accruals and deferred income

2014 2013
£000 £'000
293 3,893
863 2,441
1,156 6,334
114 37
1,380 1,801
15,994 8,520
18,644 16,692

The Group aims to pay all suppliers within the contract or invoice payment terms and within the limits set by the iate payment legislation.

Company

Current:

Trade payables

Amount owed to subsidiaries

Amount owed {o the London Borough of Barmet
Financial liabilities

Other payables

Other taxation and sacial security
Accruals and deferred income

17. Income Tax Expense

2014 2013
£'000 £'000
44 27
7,431 5,890
739 774
8,214 6,691
32
3,184 3,539
15 26
11,445 10,257

49



18. Financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the statement of financial position relate to the following categories of assets and liabilities:

Group

Financial assets

Loans and receivables:
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalent
Short term investments

Financiat liabilities

Financial liabilities measured to amortised cost:

Trade and other payables

Company

Financial assets

Loans and receivables:
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalent

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured to amortised cost
Trade and other payables

Note

10

12

Note

10
1"

2014 2013
£'000 £'000
13,122 7,300
3,726 8,919
B 507
16,848 16,725
1,156 6,334
2014 2013
£000 £000
9,522 7,682
1,854 2,51
11,376 10,193
8,214 6,691

50



19. Related party transactions
19.1 Transaction with controlling party/reiated parties

2014 2013

£'000 £000
Invoices to London Borough of Barnet 88,756 74,208
Invoices from London Borough of Bamet 3,927 4,349
Amount owed to London Borough of Barmet 737 774
Amount owed by London Borough of Barnet 8,803 7,061
Invoices to London Borough of Bamet Pensions - -
Invoices from London Borough of Barnet Pensions 95 122
Amount owed to London Borough of Barmnet Pensions 2 2

Amount owed by London Borough of Bamet Pensions - -

The London Borough of Bamet owns 100% of the share capital of the Bamet Group Ltd. The Bamet Group Ltd owns 100% of the share
capital of Your Choice (Bamet) Ltd. The Bamet Group Ltd is the sole member and guarantor of Barnet Homes Ltd, a company limited by
guarantee. The London Borough of Bamet contracts with The Barnet Group Ltd for the provision of Adult Social Care Services and
Housing Management Services. The Bamet Group Ltd then contracts on a back to back basis with Your Choice (Bamet) Ltd and Bamnet
Homes Ltd in respect of Adult Social Care Services and Housing Management Services respectively. As a result, The Barnet Group Ltd
receives the management fee from The London Borough of Barnet on behalf of Barnet Homes Ltd and Your Choice (Bamet) Limited. It
also invoices for ad hoc services on behalf of the two companies and for the capital works programme carried out by Bamet Homes on
behalf of the London Borough of Barnet.

As at 31 March 2014, The Bamet Group Ltd owed £737,000 to The London Borough of Bamet in respect of expenses on behalf of Barnet

Homes Ltd and The Barmet Group was owed £8,803,000 by the London Borough of Bamet in respect of management and other fees in
respect of services provided by the Group.

All outstanding balances with these related parties are due to be settled in cash. None of the balances are secured

20. Key Management Personnel

20.1 Non Executive Directors

The Non Executive Directors are defined as being the members of the Groups Main Board's who are not executive officers of the Group. The Non Executive Directors
received emoluments for the financial year and were entitled to reimbursement of incidental expenses incurred when attending board meetings and other formal events in
their capacity as board members. The Non Executive Directors are not entitied to pension benefits.

These are the only transactions with the Non Executive Directors of the Group.

2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Salaries 33 37
Incidental expenses 2 3
35 40
20.2 Executive Directors
2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Salaries 351 395
Performance Bonus 13 8
Social security costs 43 48
Pensions costs 63 78
Car Lump Sum - 1
470 531

The Executive directors are defined as being the members of the Group's Main Board's who are executive officers of the Group.
The Executive Directors consists of the Chief Executive Officer, Director of Operations and Director of Business Services (see Company Information - page 3 )
Three of the executive directors have retirement benefits accruing under the defined benefit pension scheme in respect of qualifying services.

21. Contingent Assets and Liabilities

At 31 March 2014, a possible liability existed as a result of Connaught Ltd going into administration in relation to the Groups pension deficit for staff

transferred from Bamet Homes Limited to Connaught Ltd in prior years. The Local Authority Pension Scheme could make a claim to Bamet Homes in respect of
the pension deficit not met by Connaught Ltd.



22. Financial instrument risks
Risk r gernent and objectives and policies

22.1 Interest rate sensitivity

Other than cash heid in bank accounts, all of the Group's cash and cash equivalents are fixed rate, fixed term
deposits, and so are not sensitive to variations in interest rates.

22.2 Credit risk analysis

The Group's principal financial assets are bank balances, cash and trade and other receivables. Liquid funds are placed with financial institutions with high credit ratings, as assigned

by credit rating agencies. The Group’s primary credit risk relates to its fee receivables. The amount presented in the statement of financial position are net of provisions for doubtful

receivables. An aliowance for impairment is made where there is an identified loss event which, based on past experience and management's forecasts, is evident of a reduction in the
recoverability of the cash flow. See note 2 above for further information on impairment of financial assets that are past due. The Groups risk in relation to its income receivable is low

as the main income is receivable from London Borough of Bamet. Placement of liquid funds are currently with multiple banks, which is considered a low risk, and management

prioritised the diversification of liquid assets.

22.3 Liquidity risk analysis

The Group manages its liquidity by carefully monitoring and reviewing the cash cycle and credit control efficiency. Control of the Trade Receivables element involves a
fundamental trade-off between the cost of providing credit to customers and the additional net revenue that can be earned in doing so. We aim to keep the former to a
minimum with effective credit control policies which will require setting and enforcing credit terms, efficient invoicing and statement generation and prompt query resoiution,
by continuous review of the receivables position by generating an ‘aged receivables' report and effective monitoring and collection procedures. The credit periods granted
vary between suppliers with usual terms. Cash flows from trade and other receivables are contractually due within 28 days. Trade creditors and other payables are aiso
monitored to ensure that payments are made in a timely manner to avoid any interest charges or penalties. Payment terms range between 14 days to 28. A settlement
policy is in place so that invoices are properly authorised for payment to ensure they are paid when due. Cash is the controlling element. The first control concerns efficient
banking so that ail monies received are banked immediately, making payments in the most efficient way and ensuring that any surplus balances are put to interest earning
use. The fundamental aspect is cash flow control and ensuring funds are available when needed. This is achieved by preparation of monthly forecasts for comparisons with
actual results. The Company is not affected by gearing as it does not owe any money to any financial institutions in the form of debt or borrowings and is therefore highly

liquid.

23. Capital management policies and procedures

The Group's capital management objective is to maintain its assets in order to ensure ability to continue to provide improved quality of service to the residents at an
affordable price and sustain itself as a going concern. As the Group is not set up for profit it continues to strive to maintain a balance between liquidity and provision of vaiue
for money services. The main capital making owned by the Group are liquid cash and cash equivaient and cash held in standard time deposit accounts. The Group

continues to monitor this investments with the Bank to ensure its going concem is not at risk.

The capital for the reporting period under review is as summarised below:

2014 2013

£'000 £'000

Cash & cash equivalent 3,726 8,919
Short term investments 0 507
3,726 9,426

52



Putting the Community First EEE

LONDON BOROUGH

AGENDA ITEM

Performance and Contract
Management Committee

11 November 2014

Quarter 2 Budget and Performance

itl Monitoring 2014/15
Report of Deputy Chief Operating Officer
Wards All
glaat:‘e added to Forward 1 April 2014
Status Public
Appendix A Performance Report
(including performance methodology)
Appendix B Revenue Monitoring by Delivery Unit
Appendix C  Capital Monitoring Programme Outturn by
Programme
Appendix D Capital Programme Funding Adjustments
Enclosures Appendix E Transformation Programme

Appendix F Prudential Indicator Compliance

Appendix G Investments outstanding as at 30
September 2014

Appendix H  Corporate Risk Register
Appendix | School HR Update
Appendix J Single Person Discount

Officer Contact Details

Paul Thorogood — Assistant Director of Finance, CSG
Finance Service Paul.Thorogood@capita.co.uk

Tom Pike — Head of Programmes and Resources, LBB
Tom.Pike@barnet.gov.uk

Claire Symonds — Commercial & Customer Services Director,
LBB Claire.Symonds@barnet.gov.uk

www.barnet.gov.uk

8



Summary

This report provides the delivery and financial performance of both contracts and non-
contracted services under paragraph 1.6. Additional overview on the contract performance
can be located in Appendix A at section 2.6.

The Council’s historic performance can be accessed from www.barnet.gov.uk/performance,
within this page there is also a link to the quarterly reporting explanatory note. A brief
methodology explanation is also contained under section 6 of Appendix A.

Delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan

The Corporate Plan sets the strategic objectives for 2013-2016 focusing on three main
priority areas; promote responsible growth, development and success across the borough;
support families and individuals that need it, promoting independence, learning and well-
being; and improve the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London Borough
of Barnet as a place to live, work and study. Targets are in place to encourage
improvement against these priority areas.

There are a number of successes to report from quarter 2 of 2014/15, including: increased
educational attainment at Early Years Foundation Stage with 65.5% of children achieving a
‘good level of development’ and pupils making two levels progress in reading and writing
between key stage 1 and 2 increased to 93.3% and 93.8%; there were 2,633 eligible
recipients of NHS health checks; over 99% of eligible adult social care customers were
receiving self-directed support; there were 190 private rented sector lettings achieved
against a target of 158; the successful completion of programmed works on roads and
footpaths continued in quarter 2.

Of the Corporate Plan Indicators (CPls) that reported in quarter 2; 73.9% were rated as
green, 21.8% as green amber and 4.3% as red (there were none rated red amber).
Specific challenges are highlighted in section 1.4.2.

The key challenge from quarter 2 is the number of households in emergency
accommodation increased from 486 to 511 in September 2014 - coupled with rising costs.
A number of national-level changes in how GCSE performance is calculated have impacted
on all authorities. Barnet schools saw a provisional decline in GCSE results. Provisional
attainment results for the 2013/14 academic year reflect a reduction in the percentage of
pupils achieving 5 or more A* to C GCSE'’s including English and Maths from 71% to
66.3%. Our provisional data suggests the Council’'s performance is in the top 10%
nationally.

Customer experience

The introduction of two new contact centres — one in Coventry run by CSG in April 2014
and one in Barnet run by Re from May 2014 — have brought changes that will deliver
benefits to the customer.

Within quarter 2, the satisfaction with service provided through the customer the CSG
contact centre has steadily increased, standing at 88% in quarter 2. Barnet Homes’
customer satisfaction levels continue to be very high with most services achieving above
90% satisfaction.

There has also been a continuation of a high proportion of phone calls answered by
customer services (CSG) and Re from quarter 1, with CSG continuing to answer over 78%

54



of calls in under 20 seconds.

Contract monitoring

Detailed assessment of the contracts monitored through the quarterly monitoring report
(Re, CSG, Barnet Homes, Parking & Infrastructure and HB Public Law) are outlined in
paragraph 1.8 (Delivery Performance) with an overview for each contract (including Your
Choice Barnet) at Appendix A section 2.6. The full individual performance reports can be
accessed from www.barnet.gov.uk/performance with the most recent quarter at
www.barnet.gov.uk/currentperformance.

Key challenges

There were a number of key challenges in quarter 2 2014/15 that require the council to
deliver high level improvement plans: The budget monitoring position across the Council
requires plans to be in place to deliver to agreed budgets; the creation of Delivery Unit
workforce plans to be produced to address the agency usage across the Council; to deliver
the Parking Improvement Plan, including agreement of a new Parking Policy, following
consultation committee; the related parking budget challenge; and the relocation of the
Council’'s Depot against tight timescales.

Delivery performance

The direction of all Delivery Units (internal and external) in 2014/15 is guided by a set of
priorities. A summary of progress against these priorities is provided in section 1.7-
Commissioning Priorities, with a qualitative view of progress provided by the Council's
Lead Commissioners. Each Delivery Unit also has a set of operational performance
indicators — in addition to Corporate Plan targets. Across all these performance indicators,
82.6% are on target. A summary of successes and challenges is provided in section 1.8 -
Delivery Performance.

Benchmarking

The Council reviews its performance against other local authorities using the Local
Government Association benchmarking tool. This data shows that Barnet is above the
England benchmark (single tier and county councils) for 85.7% of service indicators.

Benchmarking of the Council’'s planned spend over 2014/15 illustrates Barnet is continuing
to provide services more efficiently and at lower cost than the London average, across 8 of
the 9 services within the sample. Spend on Highways and Transport Services is above the
London average at £29,113 compared to £22,583 per kilometre of road network.

Programmes

Within the Transformation programme, progress has been made across a number of
projects. For Health and Social Care Integration, significant progress has been made and a
business case was prepared for Adults and Communities Committee, in October. For the
Education and Skills project, work is underway to produce a final Outline Business Case for
Children, Education, Libraries and Safeguarding Committee in January 2015. A Full
Business Case was submitted for the Early Years services to Children’s, Education
Libraries and Safeguarding Committee at the end of October.

The Capital programme is rated as green. A number of projects have progressed
positively, such as practical completion has taken place at Mill Hill East primary and the
opening ceremony for the Orion primary took place in September. The Depot relocation
project has improved from red to amber rated. The Menorah Foundation project has also

55



improved from a red to green rating, as a robust process is underway to procure a new
contractor which is on schedule for the contractor to be mobilised at the end of October.

The Regeneration programme overall is rated as green. The Brent Cross project has made
good progress including the commencement of the Brent Cross South procurement
process. Progress has been made in Colindale with the commencement of the tube station
works and the submission of the housing zone bid to Greater London Authority.

Three cross-cutting projects are also underway. Firstly, Connecting with Barnet aiming to
improve interactions with customers, reporting that a new transparency portal has been
implemented and new approach to consultation is in place. Secondly, the Smarter Working
programme, which seeks to embed more agile working practices, reduce costs office
accommodation and promote flexibility, and enable a significant saving. Progress was
made, with initial proposals for office accommodation developed during quarter 1. Thirdly,
the Unified Reward project, which aims to develop a new pay and reward model for the
Council.

Risk summary

All corporate risks are monitored by allocated officers and reviewed regularly to ensure the
level and mitigating actions are suitable. Two new risks have been added to the Corporate
Risk Register since the beginning of 2014/15 — a strategic risk regarding the potential
impacts of a safeguarding incident and a commissioning risk regarding a potential
inconsistent application of commissioning activities.

There has also been an increase in the risk rating of the homelessness risk following the
increase in the number of homeless households and the rising costs of temporary
accommodation. The full Corporate Risk Register is available in Appendix H.

Budget outturn

The quarter 2 forecast outturn general fund expenditure (after reserve movements) is
£290.511m which is an adverse variance of £3.739m (1.3%) against the revised budget of
£286.412m. This position is before a movement of £1.020m from contingency which will be
proposed to the Policy and Resources Committee in December 2014. Assuming agreed
this will reduce the adverse variance to £2.719m. (see 1.11 table 5)The equivalent quarter
in quarter two in the prior year, 2013/14, was £3.509m - the final outturn for 2013/14 was
an under spend variance of £0.120m.

The quarter 2 forecast expenditure during 2014/15 on the Council’s capital programme is
£117.707m, £85.725m of this relates to the general fund programme and £31.982m for the
HRA capital programme. This is a variance of £31.396m against the latest approved
budget of £149.103m, an increase of £9.933m (£21.463m in quarter 1 2014/15).

Treasury Outturn
The Council has been compliant throughout quarter 2 2014/15 with the set Prudential
Indicators and has not breached its Affordable Borrowing Limit.

Investment Performance

At the end of quarter 2, the total investments deposited were £229.287 million, achieving
an average annual rate of return of 0.70 per cent against a benchmark average (London
Interbank Bid Rate - LIBID) of 0.34 per cent.

56



Recommendations

1. The Committee is asked to agree the following referrals to thematic

committees:

COMMITTEE REFERRAL

Policy and Resources To note the current capital slippage and to
address the capital forecasting and profiling
process to ensure less slippage between
years.

Adults and Safeguarding None

Assets, Regeneration and Growth | To note the concern of the Performance and
Contract Management Committee of the
tight timescales for the relocation of the
Depot when considering the update report at
the next meeting of the committee.

Children, Education, Libraries and | To note the current academic performance

Safeguarding when considering the Education and Skills
options.

Community Leadership None

Environment To note, during finalisation of the Parking

Policy, the increasing number of
transactions and to be aware of the variation
from budget in the Special Parking Account.

Housing To note the increasing homelessness levels
and rising accommodation costs as part of
the finalisation of the Housing Strategy.

General Function Committee To note the requirement of Delivery Units to
complete workforce plans by the end of
2014/15 to outline appropriate levels of
agency resourcing.

2. The Committee is asked to note the quarter 2 2014/15 revenue budget and
capital position contained in paragraphs 1.11 and 1.14.

3. The Committee is asked to refer to Policy and Resources Committee the
request for the funding of pressures on permit income within the Special
Parking Account (£1.020m) be funded from contingency, as outlined in section
1.11.

4. The Committee is asked to note the Agency Costs for the quarter 2 20134/15
as detailed in paragraph 1.16.

5. The Committee is asked to note the Transformation Programme position as at
the 30 September 2014 as detailed in paragraph 1.17.

6. The Committee is asked to note the Treasury position outlined in paragraph
1.18.

7. The Committee is asked to approve the projected £31,136m capital slippage of
the outturn at quarter 2 2014/15, as outlined in Appendix C.

8. The Committee is asked to note the additional information requested at
committee on the 23 July 2014; HR Schools update, as set out in Appendix I.

57



9. The Committee is asked to note the additional

regarding Single Person Discounts, as set out in Appendix J.

information requested

10.The Committee are asked to refer for approval the write off of Sundry debt of

£0.166m as set out in table 14 to the Policy and Resources Committee.

WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED

1.1 This report outlines the quarterly position of the Council’'s performance against
the priorities outlined in the Corporate Plan, the delivery performance of major
contracts, performance of internal Delivery Units and the budget position.

1.1.1 The performance of Delivery Units is measured across a number of areas:

e The Corporate Plan’s measures of success, measured as Corporate Plan
Indicators — successes and challenges are highlighted in section 1.4.

e Commissioning Priorities, the success of activities specified for internal
Delivery Units to deliver the commissioned priorities — these are outlined in
section 1.7.

e Delivery performance indicators which measure the success of the delivery
of key services — successes and challenges are outlined in section 1.8.

1.2 The past three years of performance information is available at:
www.barnet.gov.uk/performance with the most up-to-date version available

from

www.barnet.gov.uk/currentperformance. To further increase

transparency of the Council’s performance; the performance results from each
quarter are published on the Council’s data portal https://open.barnet.gov.uk/.

1.3 Key challenges
There were a number of key challenges in quarter 2 2014/15 that require the
council to implement or continue to deliver improvement actions:

The Council’s monitoring position: the forecasted overspends across a
number of Delivery Units, including known areas of pressure, currently
exceed the Council’s agreed budget.

Workforce planning: the council requires Delivery Units to finalise their
workforce plans by the end of 2014/15.

Depot relocation: the timescales for provision of the council’'s depot are
tight. An update report will be presented to Assets, Regeneration and
Growth Committee at the next meeting of the committee.
Homelessness: the increasing number of homelessness households
and increasing costs associated with the provision of emergency
temporary accommodation has resulted in large forecast variation from
budget.

Parking:

o Taking due regard to the responses received from the public
consultation on the draft Parking Policy, to propose a final
Parking Policy for agreement alongside the continued
improvement across the parking service.

o There is expected to be a £2.187m shortfall largely due to
reduced permit income of £1.020m (resulting from a judicial

58



1.4

1.41

1.4.2

review), £0.467m additional contract payments to ensure
contractually required enforcement and a £0.606m reduction in
PCN income due to anticipated reduced volumes. However, a
35% cost reduction in parking tariffs at certain locations across
Barnet as well as the introduction of contactless payments in 59
locations has resulted in an increase of over 50,000 transactions
or 158% up from last quarter. This has resulted in a complex
challenge to be addressed.

A proposed set of referrals of the above challenges is outlined in
Recommendation 1.

Corporate Plan successes and challenges
The following is an overview of the successes and challenges across the
Corporate Plan:

e Promote responsible growth, development and success across the
borough;

e Support families and individuals that need it- promoting independence,
learning and well-being, and;

e Improve the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London
Borough of Barnet as a place to live, work and study.

Successes
There are a number of successes across Barnet for quarter 2 2014/15, these
have been highlighted as:

For the academic year 2013/14, there has been an increase in the
percentage of children achieving a ‘Good level of Development’ in
Early Years Foundation Stage Profile from 60% to 65.5%.

The percentage of pupils making two levels progress in reading and
writing between Key Stages 1 and 2 increased to 93.3% and 93.8%.
There has been a significant improvement in the number of eligible
people receiving NHS health checks in the first quarter of Public Health
reporting with 2633 against a target of 1150.

Over 99% of eligible adult social care customers receiving self-
directed support.

An increase in the number of carers receiving support services from
30.3% to 33.9%.

There were 190 private rented sector lettings achieved from April 2014
to September 2014, exceeding the target of 158.

A continued reduction in the level of domestic burglaries in August 2013
to July 2014 to 19.75 per 1,000 households compared to a target of 22.
Barnet has seen a reduction of first time entrants to the Youth Justice
System from 337 to 286.

All planned resurfacing and maintenance work on roads and footpaths
were completed during quarter 2 2014/15.

Challenges
There are some performance issues that required the implementation of an
improvement plan following quarter 2 2014/15:

59



1.5

e The number of households in emergency accommodation increased
from 486 to 511 in September 2014.

e The percentage of pupils achieving 5 or more A* to C GCSE’s including
English and Maths provisionally declined from 71% to 66.33% in the
academic year 2013/14. GCSE results have fallen nationally as a result of
various changes to the curriculum and examination arrangements — most
notably that only the first examination attempt is counted. Barnet’s results
fell in line with the national trend for 5 or more A*-C including English and
Maths. Final results will be available as part of the quarter 3 2014/15
monitoring report. Provisional data suggests the Council will remain within
the top 10% of local authorities for GCSE results.

The following challenges are those that are emerging or have continued to

decline in quarter 2 2014/15:

e The percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and
composting narrowly missed the 41.94% target with an outturn of 41.88%
in April to June 2014. Notably though, this is an improvement on the
previous collection regime’s performance from the same period last year
(35.99%).

e There has been a decrease in the percentage of draft committee
reports and delegated power reports being cleared in 5 working days
from 96.1% to 92.5%. Of the 9 reports where clearance took longer than
5 days, one took 17 days due to complexity, the others took between 6
and 9 days to clear.

Other challenges experienced by Barnet are in relation to schools. There has
been a decline in pupil referral unit (PRU) judged as good or better by Ofsted
from 100% to 66% (2 out of 3 schools). In addition to declining overall GCSE
results, the gap has widened between Special Educational Needs pupils and
their peers from 44.9% to 45.5% achieving 5 A* to Cs including English and
Maths. The gap has also widened between Free School Meal pupils and their
peers from 21.8% to 26.4%. The percentage of statutory statements
completed within statutory timescales were 64% against a target of 100%.

Customer experience

Resident Perception Survey

The most recent Spring Residents Perception Survey results were reported to
the Performance and Contract Management Committee in quarter 4 2013/14.
Overall the Residents Perception Survey showed that Barnet are significantly
above the national average for satisfaction of the local area and the way the
council runs things. The next survey result will be reported as part of the
quarter 3 2014/15 monitoring report in February 2015.

Full survey results are available from
http://engage.barnet.qgov.uk/consultation-team/residents-perception-survey-
2014/consult_view. Details are available for individual Delivery Units reports at
www.barnet.gov.uk/currentperformance

Quarter 2 Customer Experience report
Satisfaction with customer services has steadily improved — both on the
telephone with 88% of respondents satisfied with more people than ever

60



responding to the survey, and at Barnet Homes and Burnt Oak with 79% of
respondents satisfied with the service they have received. Barnet Homes call
centre has particularly high satisfaction levels — over 90% for the majority of
services.

Mystery shopping of council services, conducted by council staff from across
different service areas which involve measuring experience against a number
of scenarios shows 81% success in call resolution which is a key driver for
customer satisfaction success.

Calls to the Barnet telephone contact centre have continued to be answered
quickly. 78.1% were answered within 20 seconds.

1.6 Performance against the Corporate Plan
Table 1 below provides a breakdown of the RAG (red, amber or green) rating
of the Corporate Plan Indicators, expected to report in quarter 2, by each
Delivery Unit.

Table 1: Corporate Plan Indicator by Delivery Unit

Total no. No. of RAG ratings
of indicators Positive/
Delivery Unit Corporate | expected to neutral

Negative
Direction

Plan report in Direction of of Travel

indicators quarter 2 Travel
2014/15

Adults and
Communities 10 6 4 2
Children’s
Education and 6 4' 3 -
Skills
Family Services 5 32 2 -
Commissioning
Street Scene 3 1 - 1
Public Health 4 4 2 1
Barnet Homes 2 2 - 1
R 5 5° 4 1
Parking and
Infrastructure 2 2 3 2
17 5 0 1

Total 11 27 1

ota (73.9%) (21.8%) (0%) (4.3%) 8 8

! One indicator will not be RAG rated until the final results are available in quarter 3 2014/15.

% One indicator is for monitoring purposes only and will not be RAG rated.

’ Re reported five indicators, two of which are for monitoring purposes and will be RAG rated in quarter 4
2014/15.

61



Of the Corporate Plan Indicators (CPls) that reported in quarter 2, the balance
of met and missed targets was 73.9% were rated as green, 21.8% green
amber, and 4.3% of Corporate Plan Indicators were rated as red (none were
rated as red amber).

The focus of Barnet during 2013/16 Corporate Plan period is to remain an

attractive and successful London borough where people want to live, become

an enterprising place and support people that need it. Against the Corporate

Plan strategic objectives:

e Promoting responsible growth, development and success across the
borough achieved 80% of performance indicators on target.

e Support families and individuals that need it - promoting independence,
learning and well-being achieved 61.5% of performance targets.

e Improve satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London
Borough of Barnet as a place to live, work and study achieved 75% of
targets being met.

See section 2.4 of Appendix A for full detail.

1.7 Commissioning Priorities
For 2014/15, Lead Commissioners have defined a set of five commissioning
priorities, which are underpinned by a set of commissioning priority indicators
and activities. Lead Commissioners and Delivery Units have agreed a RAG
rating for each Commissioning Priority, based on a qualitative assessment.
Table 2 outlines the RAG rating for the Commissioning Priorities by area:

Table 2: Commissioning Priorities by Lead Commissioner

RAG ratings Direction of Travel®

e Positive/ Negative

neutral DoT DoT

- 5 -

N/A N/A

Later Life (Adults
and Commun|t|es)
Schools, Skills and
Learning (Children’s
Education and
Skills)

Family &
Community
Wellbeing (Family
Services)
Environment
(Street Scene and
Parking &
Infrastructure)

Public Health

(Public Health) -

Total 9 - 20* -

* Public Health reported against commissioning priorities for the first time this quarter.



A total of 16 out of 25 Commissioning Priorities achieved a green rating in
quarter 2 2014/15. Of the indicators that reported, 64% of the RAG ratings
were Green with the remainder (36%) rated as Amber (indicating
improvement required).

Later Life (Adults and Communities)

One commissioning priority remained amber in quarter 2 2014/15; sufficiency
and quality of the social care delivery workforce. The amber rating is due
to scheduling delays in the second phase of the Adults transformation. Other
activities were carried out including a new set of staff standards and the
launch of the Quality Assurance Framework. Two commissioning priorities
went from amber to green; health and social care integration including
through Better Care Fund (BCF); and delivery of the new vision for adults
social care. The positive direction of travel is as a result of clarification of the
work programme and leadership for the new vision of adult social care and
several elements of the integration care model now being in operation and the
BCF is underpinned by a full business case.

Schools, Skills and Learning (Children’s Education and Skills)

There are 3 out of 5 commissioning priorities that are rated as amber in
quarter 2 2014/15; ensure LA monitoring and challenge of all schools is
robust and focussed to drive a rise in attainment; challenge schools to
raise attainment of vulnerable pupils particularly those on Free School
Meals and Looked After Children; and develop alternative model of delivery
to deliver medium term financial strategy (MTFS) savings. These priorities
remain amber from quarter 1 as a result of schools rated as good and
outstanding not being at the required level and attainment gaps for vulnerable
children remaining wider than expected. The project for an alternative delivery
model is on track however impact of savings cannot yet be realised.

Family & Community Wellbeing (Family Services)

There are 4 out of 5 commissioning priorities that are rated as amber inquarter
2 2014/15; ensure social care, youth offending and children’s centres practice
is ‘inspection ready’ and safeguarding arrangements are effective and
robust; review and re-model social care, placements and permanence;
implementation of the early years review following full business case sign
off, determine the future of early intervention services and in particular the
Family Focus team; ensure there is sufficient budget to meet the council’s
thresholds for quality and safety following MTFS implications. All four
remain amber due to the nature of the service; there is extensive monitoring
and checking processes in place through programme boards and assurance
meetings to ensure safeguarding is effective and robust. The Looked After
Children transformation programme is in delivery phase and a revised
recruitment process is being implemented, and the support offer has been
consolidated and further strengthened to improve placement stability.
Implementation of the early years review will commence once the full
business case has been completed and the redesign of early intervention
services began its consultation phase. The Delivery Unit continues to face
challenges with delivery of MTFS savings, the transformation programme is in
place to manage this.

63



1.8

Environment (Street Scene and Parking & Infrastructure)

Two out of five commissioning priorities remained amber in quarter 2 2014/15;
enhance Passenger Transport service delivery offer, customer
experience, coherence of service offer and reduce costs; and increased
satisfaction with parking services and establish a coherent, co-ordinated
customer facing service. There were challenges achieving a green due to a
delay in remodelling of transport arrangements and there were some technical
issues with the parking database in quarter 2, although the parking policy
began public consultation during the quarter. Reducing the volume of waste
sent to landfill and increasing efficiency of collection improved as a result of
improvement in waste and recycling services. Street cleansing resources are
being utilised to test cleansing pilots on the ground in order to sustain borough
cleanliness.

Public Health (Public Health)

All commissioning priorities were rated as on target this quarter. All areas of
the school nursing and health visiting review are on track ahead of the
assuming responsibilities for Health visiting services in 2015. The necessary
governance framework and working groups are being put into place and
dialogue with NHS England have begun. Fit and Active Barnet campaign is
in place to encourage active residents and an inclusive section has been
added to the website to encourage people with disabilities. An options paper
is in development as part of introducing the new self-care programme in
partnership with the Barnet Clinical Commissioning Group. Public Health are
on track to present the local sexual health strategy for Barnet to the Health
and Wellbeing board which proposes collaborative approach to the future of
GUM commissioning as part of the re-procurement of sexual health
services. The service continues to work with West London Alliance to co-
design a pilot on mental health and employment intending to move people
back to work more quickly as part of the priority to support other areas of
the council that influence the wider determinants of health.

The full detail can be found in individual Delivery Unit reports on
www.barnet.gov.uk/performance with the most recent quarter at
www.barnet.gov.uk/currentperformance.

Delivery Performance

Delivery Units report on performance, finance and risks in detail in individual
reports available here. In addition to the Corporate Plan Indicators, Delivery
Units each have a set of Key Performance Indicators (KPls) to measure the
success of the delivery of key services. The overall delivery performance for
quarter 2 2014/15 for each Delivery Unit is outlined in Table 3 below:

64



Table 3: Delivery Performance Indicators by Delivery Unit

RAG ratings Direction of Travel*

No. of
Delivery Unit Positive/ Indicators

neutral Negatlve reported
oT
DoT

Adults and

Communities 6 2 12
Children’s /

Education and ,. 6 1 11
Skills ” ‘

Family S . .

Services KPlIs reported as part of Commissioning Priority Indicators.

KPIs reported as part of internal contract monitoring and Commissioning Priority

Street Scene X
Indicators.

Parking & 9%
A 7%
N %%

VD 404 n/a n/a 17
7777
Inf £ %%
as c e S T
ntrastructur %%

(82.6%) (6.7%) (2%)  (8.7%)

*The Direction of Travel indicates the performance compared to the last time it was reported. Various
KPIs did not report a direction of travel due to reporting for the first time.

The table above illustrates that of the Delivery Performance Indicators
expected to report in quarter 2 2014/15 — a large majority of indicators met
their target (83.1%).

The Council uses an escalation approach which highlights where there are
performance challenges within Delivery Units, whether an internal or external
Delivery Unit. This approach ensures that the areas are subject to challenge
and action planning. This approach is also used to highlight the successes
across the Council.

There are a number of successes across Barnet Delivery Units for quarter 2

2014/15, these have been highlighted as:

e The estates service in CSG successfully delivered six primary school
projects with all schools being occupied in September 2014.

e HB Public Law received a Law Society Award for Practice Management
during quarter 2.

e The total number of homeless preventions completed by Barnet Homes
exceeded the target of 350 for April 2014 to September 2014 with an
outturn of 384.

e Barnet exceeded the outer London averages for costs per week for people
with learning disabilities and physical disabilities under 65 on care
services.

65



1.9

1.10

e In CSG, there were 0.23% pay errors across quarter 2 compared to 6.12%
last quarter, meeting the target.

e There was a reduction from 26% to 25% of people reporting that they were
very or fairly worried about Anti-Social behaviour in their area.

e Barnet are in the top percentile in England for the proportion of people with
needs relating to sexually transmitted infections who have a record of
having an HIV test at first attendance at 99% (excluding those already
diagnosed HIV positive).

e Compliance with planning application statutory timescales achieved
88.2%, exceeding the target of 75%.

There were also some challenges experienced across Barnet Delivery Unit

KPls for quarter 2 2014/15 which include:

e Current arrears as a percentage of the total owed (debit) in Barnet Homes
increased from 3.05% to 3.45% with a total sum of £2,047,202 compared
to £1,800,503 last quarter.

e Temporary accommodation arrears as a percentage of the total owed
(debit) in Barnet Homes increased from 5.55% to 6.49%, an increase of
17% to £994,824.

e Percentage of calls answered by the CSG contact centre within 20
seconds were 78.1%, a small decline since quarter 1 and missing the 80%
target.

Benchmarking

Local Authorities review and compare performance with other council’s
through benchmarking of common performance indicators. The Headline
Report of the Local Government Association (LGA) public benchmarking tool
— LG Inform — ranks Barnet across 14 service indicators. Barnet was above
benchmark in 85.7% of service indicators (12 out of 14). See appendix A,
section 4 for full detail.

The two services highlighted as below benchmark are:

e Overall satisfaction of people who use services with their care and support
in 2013/14 is illustrated as below the Unitary/County Council benchmark
with Barnet appearing in the bottom 3™ quartile. It is to be noted that the
current release is based on provisional data.

e Barnet remained below the England benchmark for Social-care related
quality of life (2013).

Programmes

Within the Transformation programme, progress has been made across a
number of projects. The overall assessment is that the programme is amber.
There are no red rated projects. For the Health and Social Care Integration,
significant progress has been made and a business case was prepared for
Adults and Communities Committee, though challenges remain over the
delivery of required financial benefits. For the Education and Skills project,
work is underway to produce a final Outline Business Case for Children,
Education, Libraries and Safeguarding in January 2015. A Full Business

66



1.1

Case was submitted for the Early Years services to Children’s, Education,
Libraries and Safeguarding Committee at the end of October.

The Capital programme is rated as green. A number of projects have
progressed positively, such as practical completion has taken place at Mill Hill
East primary and the opening ceremony for The Orion primary took place on
the 24th September. The Depot Relocation project has improved from red to
amber rated. The Menorah Foundation project has also improved from a red
to green rating, as a robust process is underway to procure a new contractor
which is on schedule for the contractor to be mobilised at the end of October.

The Regeneration programme overall is RAG rated as green with good
progress being made across all schemes. Two projects, Brent Cross
Cricklewood and Colindale have improved from amber to green ratings. The
Brent Cross project has made good progress including the commencement of
the Brent Cross South procurement process. Progress has been made in
Colindale with the commencement of the tube station works and the
submission of the housing zone bid to Greater London Authority.

In addition to above a number of Delivery Unit Transformation programmes
are underway. Within Adults and Communities, there has been significant
progress in developing plans to meet the requirements of the Care Act,
procuring a new ICT system for the service is underway, with planned go-live
in 2015. Within Family Services, projects to improve performance, provide
effective management information and transform service delivery are
progressing. For Street Scene, a programme was set up in quarter 1 to co-
ordinate a number of projects in the service area, including achievement of
savings in 2015/16, embedding new strategies and delivering efficiencies.
Three cross-cutting projects are also underway. Firstly, Connecting with
Barnet aiming to transform interactions with customers, reporting that a new
transparency portal has been implemented and new approach to consultation
is in place. Secondly, the Smarter Working programme, which seeks to
embed more agile working practices, reduce office accommodation and
enable a significant saving. Progress was made, with initial proposals for
office accommodation developed during quarter 2. Thirdly, the Unified
Reward project, which aims to o develop a new pay and reward model for the
Council. Where preparatory work accelerated significantly during quarter 2
with a plan in place to complete the project within the timescales set by
Committee.

Quarter 2 Revenue Monitoring

Table 4 below provides a summary of the 2014/15 quarter 2 forecast analysis
compared to the revised budget position. The quarter two forecast outturn
general fund expenditure (after reserve movements) is £290.511m which is an
adverse variance of £3.739m (1.3%) against the revised budget of
£286.412m.

Note that the overall over spend projected at quarter 2 in the prior year,
2013/14 was £3.509m. The final outturn for the prior year was an under spend

67



variance of £0.120m. A breakdown of revenue monitoring by each delivery
unit is set out in Appendix B and summarised in the table below.

Table 4: 2014/15 Revenue Quarter 2 Analysis — Summary

Adults and Communities 89,669 90,762 91,503 741 0.8
Assurance 4,005 4,057 3,990 (67) (1.7)
Children's Education 7,183 7,120 7,455 335 4.7
Children's Family Senice 48,228 50,359 50,647 288 0.6
Commissioning Group 6,668 7,284 7,284 - 0.0
Streetscene 15,650 15,747 15,944 197 1.2
Parking & Infrastructure (1,657) (1,032) 1,143 2,175 (210.8)
Public Health 14,302 14,335 14,296 (39) (0.3)
HB Public Law 1,782 1,952 2,126 174 8.9
Barnet Group 3,338 4,254 5,209 955 22.5
Re 766 1,030 1,302 272 26.4
CSG 22,153 22,922 23,070 148 0.6
Central Expenses 74,324 67,621 66,181 (1,440) (2.1)
Service Total 286,412 286,412 290,151 3,739 1.3
Allocations agreed from GF Balances

GF Balances as at 01/04/14 (15,950)

Forecast GF Balances as at 31/03/15 (12,211)

Directors are accountable for any budget variations within their services and
the associated responsibility to ensure costs and income are managed within
agreed budgets. To ensure this is successfully achieved, it is essential that
Directors develop action plans for all significant emerging variances, with the
aim of ensuring that overall expenditure is kept within their total budget
available.

Housing Revenue Account

LBB Retained 175 175 0 (175) (100.0)
HRA Regeneration 1,126 1,126 1,326 200 17.7
HRA Other Income and 1,549 1,549 1,536 (13) (0.8)
Expenditure (net)

Support Senvice recharges 576 576 576 0 0.0
Interest on Balances (80) (80) (80) 0 0.0
HRA Surplus/Deficit for the year (3,346) (3,346) (3,346) 0 0.0
Total 0 0 12 12 100.0

Please see table 6 for the impacts to the Housing Revenue Account Balances

68



Dedicated Schools' Grant

Childrens Social Care (DSG) 426 428 464 36 8.5
Early Intervention & Prevention 6,173 5,966 4,739 (1,226) (20.6)
(DSG)

Education (DSG) (6,599) (6,393) (8,109) (1,716) (26.8)
Schools Funding DSG 0 0 0 0 0.0
Total 0 0 (2,906) (2,906) (100.0)

Please see table 7 for the impacts to the Dedicated Schools Balances

Impact on Balances

Table 5: General Fund Balances

General Fund Balances brought

forward 1 April 2014 (15,950)
Budgeted Use of Balance 0
Outturn Variation 3,739
Proposed contingency SPA permit

income (1,020)
Forecast General Fund Balances 31

March 2015 (13,231)

The Council’s overall General Fund balance position has improved slightly
since quarter 1 (by £0.591m). It will be proposed to the Policy and Resources
committee that the pressures on permit income within the Special Parking
Account (£1.020m) be funded from contingency on a recurring basis. If
agreed, the Council’'s General Fund Balances are still forecast to fall below

the recommended level of £15m, and forecast to be £13.231m.

Further, it will be proposed to the Policy and Resource Committee that any
impacts of an inflationary pay award for all staff will also be funded from
contingency. Service recovery plans are being put in place by Delivery Units
to ameliorate any significant budget variances and bring the forecast level of
balances back up to the recommended level.

Table 6: Housing Revenue Account Balances

Housing Revenue Account Balances brought (14,831)
forward 1 April 2014 ’
Budgeted Use of Balance 3,346
Outturn Variation 12
Forecast Housing Revenue Account (11,473)
Balances 31 March 2015 ’

69



The in-year Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is showing a £0.012m deficit
position for the 2014/15 financial year. The projected deficit is largely due to
anticipated unrecoverable regeneration staffing expenditure, as a
consequence of exceeding the private developer agreement (PDA) value, off-
set by anticipated under spends of £0.175m within other staffing budgets.

Table 7: Dedicated Schools Grant Balances

DSG Balances brought forward 1
April 2014 (3,678)
Budgeted Use of Balance 2,333
Outturn Variation (2,9095)
Forecast DSG Balances 31 March
2015 (4,250)

Brought forward balance

The brought forward balance at 1% April 2014 (£2.333m) is made up of
£1.312m from 2013/14 financial year and £2.366m from 2012/13. In February
2014 the Schools Forum agreed to distribute the 2012/13 under spends in
2014/15 as follows:

£1.100m to schools and academies at £23.00 per pupil
£0.300m to early years providers at £0.02 per hour
£0.250m for closure costs at St Mary’s High School
£0.548m for nursery school transitional funding
£0.135m contingency.

In October 2014 the Schools Forum agreed to distribute the 2013/14
underspend (£1.333m) in 2015/16 as follows:

e £0.445m for nursery school transitional funding
e £0.888m for funding growth in school places from September 2015

In year variance

The projected in year under spend is £2.905m, this is due to £1.156m
anticipated under spends mainly in the take up of the two-year old offer within
Early Intervention and Prevention and £1.748m under spend relating to top up
funding in high needs due to more up to date information from out of borough
schools and the reduction in the use of more expensive placements. This may
be needed in full or part to fund any shortfall in the 2015/16 budget, or carried
forward for distribution to schools or other priorities in 2016/17.

70



The projected Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) balance at year end is
expected to be £4.250m.

One key reason for this is the change in funding methodology for 2-year-olds.
Until now funding has been based on target numbers. As actual numbers
have lagged behind targets there has been an under spend. From 2015/16
places will be funded based on actual take-up as shown in the January
census. This is expected to reduce funding levels by £2m compared to
2014/15.

Another pressure comes from the nursery schools’ subsidy - the four nursery
schools are paid a premium of £890,000 over and above the income
generated from ‘free entitlement’ places. This represents 70% more per place
than is paid through the Early Years Single Funding Formula (EYSFF) to other
Early Years providers (nursery classes and the PVI sector). The subsidy has
been funded from the DSG underspend in the ‘Dedicated Schools Grant'.
This is unsustainable due to the other pressures on the DSG budget but a
transitional subsidy is proposed for the next 2 years, to be paid from DSG
underspends, to facilitate the transition to new delivery models. This would
cost £0.445m in 2015/16.

The other main pressure on budgets is the growth fund. This is the fund that
pays the one-off additional/start-up costs of new/bulge classes, new
phases/year groups and new schools. The demands on this budget are
potentially greater for Barnet because from next year the LA will have to fund
the start-up/growth costs of Free Schools after the first year. The growth fund
this year is £1.8m but it is estimated that £2.8m will be needed in 2015/16, of
which about £1m relates to Free Schools.

1.11.1 Commentary for Budget Variances

Adults and Communities

The over spend for Adults and Communities of £0.741m represents 0.8% of
the delivery unit budget (£90.762m). An increase in deprivation of liberty
safeguards (DOLS) assessments has arisen following recent supreme court
judgements causing an overspend of £0.264m There is a risk that the year to
date activity may continue throughout the year. The demand for this service is
unpredictable and the local authority has a legal duty to support clients who
come forward for support.

£0.199m of the over spend is a consequence of additional pressures resulting
from three new ordinary residence clients, where Barnet becomes legally
responsible for clients placed in supported living or residential or nursing care
in Barnet by another Council, and an increase in service users with learning
disabilities compared to last year.

Finally, a £0.278m over spend is anticipated due to clients who were self-
funders, whose funds have depleted and are now the responsibility of the
local authority (fourteen in total). The number of self-funders who come

71



forward is difficult to predict and the local authority has a legal duty to support
client’s needs.

Assurance

The under spend for Assurance of £0.067m represents 1.7% of the delivery
unit budget (£4.057m). The under spends are largely due to the savings
realised as a consequence of the revised members allowance scheme
(£0.083m), implemented in June 2014. The anticipated full year effect would
be a saving of £0.100m.

Children’s Education and Skills

The over spends for Children’s Education and Skills of £0.335m represents
4.7% of the delivery unit budget (£7.120m). The forecast is largely due to
anticipated over spends of £479k within high needs supports due to budget
efficiencies not being fully realised in 2013/14, with the same underlying
problems remaining in 2014/15 within Special Educational Needs transport.

Projects are in place in Street Scene and Education and Skills to identify
possible ways to achieve further savings. The current overspend is off-set by
£0.110m of under spends from managing the demand in the schools causing
concern budget within Education Partnership and Parking & Infrastructure
Services, where funding is provided to schools to avoid schools going into
special measures.

Children’s Family Services

The over spends for Children’s Family Services of £0.288m represents 0.6%
of the delivery unit budget (£50.359m). The over spend is the net impact of
variances across the service. Within Social Care Management there is a
£0.061m under spend within staffing costs. There is an over spend of
£0.395m largely from the use of agency staff to cover permanent posts, there
is also an over spend identified in direct payments. Within Children’s in Care
and Provider services there is an under spend of £0.149m relating to
adoptions.

There are anticipated over spends from staffing costs within Safeguarding and
Quality Assurance amounting to £0.074m. There are also anticipated under
spends from staffing costs within Commissioning and Business and
Improvement of £0.075m and Youth and Community services of £0.094m.
Finally, there are anticipated under spends of £0.098m in Family Support and
Early Intervention largely attributable to Children’s Centres.

72



Street Scene

The over spends for Street Scene of £0.197m represents 1.2% of the delivery
unit budget (£15.747m). £0.160m of the over spend relates to an expected
shortfall in the £1.100m co-mingled recyclable materials income due to
significant market changes affecting the value of this waste material stream. In
particular the price shift has gone from £25.00 per tonne to £23.71 per tonne.
This is managed by the North London Waste Authority on behalf of the
Council and maximises economies of scale for participating authorities.

Further, staff costs from the current service structure are leading to an overall
cost pressure (£0.110m) which has exceeded a small forecast over
achievement of income (£0.050m) from trade waste customers. Finally, higher
than expected income of £0.034m from the hire of park facilities are helping to
offset increasing costs elsewhere within the service.

Parking and Infrastructure

The over spends for Parking & Infrastructure of £2.175m represents 210.8%
of the delivery unit budget (income of £1.032m). The over spend is almost
wholly as a consequence of the anticipated Special Parking Account (SPA)
contribution to the general fund. There is expected to be a £2.187m shortfall
largely due to reduced permit income of £1.020m (resulting from a judicial
review), £0.467m additional contract payments to ensure contractually
required enforcement and a £0.606m reduction in PCN income due to
anticipated reduced volumes. As reported in ‘impact on balances’ section
above, it will be requested to the Policy and Resources Committee that the
reduced permit income pressure (£1.020m) be funded from contingency.

HB Public Law

The over spends for Legal Services of £0.174m represents 8.9% of the
delivery unit budget (£1.952m). This figure shows that the current income
target is not being achieved. As with any income target this amount is based
on a number of historical assumptions and therefore total accuracy cannot be
predicted.

Barnet Group

The over spends for the Barnet Group of £0.955m represents 22.5% of the
delivery unit budget (£4.254m). The variance is due to Temporary
accommodation pressures that have resulted due to increasing number of
clients and high inflation rates for emergency accommodation during 2014.
July and September both saw extremely high levels of demand and October is
already beginning to look similar. In September we had over 120 moves into
short term temporary accommodation. Emergency accommodation has seen
a 35% increase in costs over this calendar year with 2 beds in particular being

73



unavailable at affordable rates. The demand is being controlled as far as
possible through mitigations being undertaken within the service.

RE

The over spends for Re of £0.272m represents 26.4% of the delivery unit
budget (£1.030m). The over spend is as a consequence of higher than
budgeted costs for TUPE officers, as reported in quarter 1, being funded from
Re's management fee. A recovery plan is currently being finalised and agreed
with Re to bring the position to break even by year end.

Customer Support Group (CSG)

There is a pressure on managed budgets leading to an over spend of
£0.148m represents 0.6% of the delivery unit budget (£22.922m).

Central Expenses

The under spends for Central Expenses of £1.483m represents 2% of the
delivery unit budget (£72.880m). The under spend is predominantly as a
consequence of under spends against the North London Waste Authority
(NLWA) and London Pension Fund Authority (LPFA).

1.12 Savings
The current Medium-Term Financial Strategy sets out savings to be achieved
up to 2015/16. Table 8 below outlines progress made towards achieving the
savings outlined for 2014/15.

Table 8: Savings

Adults and

Communities 8,377 8,377 0 6,112 73%
Assurance 40 40 0 40 100%
Housing Need o
Revenue 55 55 0 55 100%
Commissioning o
Group 800 796 4 796 100%
CSG 2,393 2,393 0 2,393 100%
Education and Skills 561 561 0 561 100%
Family Services 3,879 3,474 405 3,474 90%
HB Public Law 150 100 50 150* 100%
Re 1,355 1,083 272 733 54%
Street Scene 1,005 955 50 955 95%
Parking and

Infrastructure 395 200 195 200 51%
Total 19,010 18,034 976 15,469 81%

* Above allocation savings achieved.

74



1.13

1.14

There is a risk that about £0.976m of the savings for 2014/15 are not
achievable. The breakdown of that is in the table above. The outlook for
2015/16 is that savings of £17.269m need to be achieved. Some of the
savings agreed before have now been profiled to 2016/17 (£1.873m).
Pressure of £1.400m due to legislative changes in the Care Act will impact in
2015/16.1.13

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a
legal or constructive obligation that required settlement by a transfer of
economic benefits or service potential and a reliable estimate can be made of
the account of the obligation. For instance, the Council may be involved in a
court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the
payment of compensation.

As at the 31 March 2014 the Council held provisions of £10.515m. The level of
provisions as at the end of the 2014/15 financial year is forecast to be
£9.460m.

Table 9: Provisions

Adults 552 (74) 0 0 478
Resources (grant unit) 105 (105) 0 0 0
Corporate 8,850 0 0 0 8,850
Regional Enterprise (RE) 160 (160) 0 0 0
Commercial 256 (256) 0 0 0
Childrens 152 (52) 0 0 100
Streetscene 67 (67) 0 0 0
Carbon Reduction Commitment 373 (341) 0 0 32
Total 10,515 (1,055) 0 0 9,460

Reserves

The Council has set aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy
purposes or to cover contingencies. As at the 31 March 2014 the Council held
reserves of £91.625m. As at quarter 2, the forecasted level of reserves
anticipated to be carried forward at 31 March 2015 is £73.240m.

75



1.15

Table 10: Reserves

Central - Financing 2,673 (122) 2,551
Central - Community Infrastructure | 992 0 0 992
Central - Infrastructure 21,573 (4,050) 8,417 25,940
Central - Risk 15,500 (1,194) 0 14,306
Central - Senices Dewvelopment 9,577 (3,738) 0 5,839
Central - Transformation 11,293 (5,950) 0 5,343
Senvice - Other 12,237 (2,551) 1,408 11,094
Sub total general fund 73,845 (17,605) 9,825 66,065
earmarked reserves

Senice - DSG 3,676 (3,676) 0 0
Seniice - Housing Benefit 5773 (5,773) 0 0
Senice - NLSR 1,228 (235) 0 993
Senvice - PFI 3,117 (3,117) 0 0
Senvice - Street Lighting 1,149 (1,149) 0 0
Senvice - Section 256 - NHS Social 1,596 (1,596) 0 0
Care Funding

Senice - Public Health 831 (831) 0 0
Special Parking Account (SPA) 409 0 0 409
Sub total ring fenced reserves 17,779 (16,377) 0 1,402
Total all earmarked reserves 91,624 (33,982) 9,825 67,467

The largest reserve the Council has is the infrastructure reserve, where
income is received for new homes bonuses.

Quarter 2 Capital Monitoring

The quarter 2 forecast expenditure during 2014/15 on the Council’s capital
programme is £117.707m, £85.725m of this relates to the general fund
programme and £31.982m for the HRA capital programme. This is a variance
of £31.396m against the latest approved budget of £149.103m. The table
below summarises the expenditure by each service.

Table 11: Capital Programme Position at Quarter 2

Adults and Communities 3,060 (800) 2,574 2,574 (486)

Children’s education 54,759 (453) (17,512) 36,793 36,793| (17,965) -32.0%
Children’s family services 3,542 - (1,491) 2,051 2,051 (1,491 -42.1%
Commissioning Group 5,990 200 (2,999) 3,191 3191 (2,799 -50.1%
Street Scene 3,803 283 (856) 3,230 3,230 (573) -22.5%
The Barnet Group 294 6 (148) 152 152 (142) -50.4%
Re delivery unit 39,992 (610) (1,648) 37,734 37,734]  (2,258) -4.1%
General Fund Programme 111,439 (260) (25,454)| 85,725 85,725| (25,714) -22.8%
HRA 37,664 - (5,682) 31,982 31,982 (5682 -15.1%
Total Capital Programme 149,103 (260) (31,136)| 117,707 117,707| (31,396) -20.9%j

76




The capital monitoring summary and scheme details by service directorate is
set out in Appendix C.

Table 12 below analyses the 2014/15 capital programme as at the end of

quarter 2. A detailed analysis of changes including additions, deletions and
budget movements is provided in appendix D.

Table 12: 2014/15 Capital Funding Changes at Quarter 2

Adults and Communities (1,300) 0 0 814 0 0 (486)
Children’s Family Services 0 0 (1,491) 0 0 0]  (1,491)
Children’s Education and Skills (7,439) 203 (1,454) 100 (9,375) 0] (17,965)
Commissioning Group 0 0 (2,372) (427) 0 0 (2,799)
Street Scene (232) (135) (218) 150 (139) 0 (573)
Re delivery unit (1,085) 5914 (2,884) (4,323) 100 0 (2,258)
CSG delivery unit 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
The Barnet Group 0 0 (142) 0 0 0 (142)
General Fund Programme (10,036) 5,982 (8,561) (3,686) (9,413) 0| (25,714)
HRA 0 0 (3,932) (1,750) 0 o (5682
Total Capital Programme (10,036) 5,982 (12,493) (5,436) (9,413) 0| (31,396)

1.15.1 There is a forecasted 20.9% reduction in the capital programme at end of
quarter 2, with the projected outturn expenditure being £117.707m against the
latest budget of £149.103m. It is projected, over the full financial year, there
will be slippage of £31.136m, representing 20.9% of the latest approved
budget programme.

The main outturn slippage this quarter is as follows:

e The total Children’s Education and Skills programme has net slipped by
£17.512m. According to current project plans the Menorah foundation is
anticipated to slip by £1.538m. Slippage of £1.139m has been requested
for the watching brief of St Joseph's RC Junior & St Joseph's RC Infants
School based on cash flow forecast. In line with budget re-profiling, it is
now anticipated works will commence on Monkfrith at the end of June
2015 resulting in an anticipated slippage of £3.455m. There is anticipated
slippage on the Wren Academy amounting to £6.139m due to budget re-
profiled into the 2015/16 financial year. There is also anticipated slippage
on the London Academy amounting to £5.399m as a consequence of
additions to programme in relation to removals of de-mountables and
slippage in line with contractor billing time line. Due to budget re-profile in
line with start date on site being later than original programmed there is
also anticipated slippage at Oak Lodge Special School amounting to
£4.323m.

e There are also expected accelerations within total Children’s Education
and Skills programme, this includes unallocated projects due to adjustment
to funding type for Orion, St Mary's and St Johns and budgets required for

i




Wren and London Academy amounting to £2.244m and accelerations of
£2.542m due to budget allocations for Christ's College.

e The Commissioning Group programme has net slipped by £2.999m. This
is largely due to anticipated slippage £2.992m relating to customer access
improvements.

e The HRA programme has slipped by £5.682m. This is largely due to the
New Affordable Homes programme as part of the Housing Revenue
Account, amounting to £3.932m. The slippage is due to works progressing
faster than originally anticipated. Other contributors towards the slippage in
the programme relate to £0.882m slippage relating to major works where
works have been deferred on Burnt Oak Broadway flats whilst further
option appraisals are being considered and revised roof replacement
programme has been deferred to 2015/16. Finally slippage of £0.850m is
anticipated in regeneration due to the cancellation of redecoration works at
West Hendon and reduced budget required for Grahame Park windows.

1.15.2 The slippage column in the report is a net figure based on slippage (budget

1.16

required for future financial years) and accelerated spend (budget required
from future years). As an example, a budget may be set for a school build but
construction may not start until half way through the year and is due to
continue into future financial years. As construction accounts for the majority
of the budget, it needs to be re-profiled (slipped) into the financial year it is
required for. Slippage does not indicate an over spend, just a movement of
budget into future financial years.

Agency Costs

The table below details all agency staff costs incurred during quarter two
2014/15 financial year in comparison to quarter two 2013/14 financial year.
This identifies that agency and consultancy expenditure has reduced by
£4.939m from the equivalent quarter last year.

1.16.1 The current level of agency usage is consistent with the Council’s strategic

approach to ensure business critical functions continue to operate and
perform while going through significant change. This strategic approach
reflects the Council’s desire to reduce redundancies from the workforce.

1.16.2 Nearly a quarter (22%) of the full time equivalent roles carried out by agency

workers are in Social and Healthcare Qualified positions. An additional third
(33%) of agency workers are covering other front line roles across Delivery
Units.

78



1.17

1.18

Table 13 — Agency Costs for 2014/15

Adults and Communities 1,837 2,060 2,054 4 2,058
Assurance 19 0 19 34 8 42
Barnet Group 0 5 5 0 0 0
Children's Education 724 230 954 665 (132) 533
Children's Families Senice 1,183 45 1,228 1,620 90 1,709
Parking & Infrastructure 1,034 582 1,616 349 384 733
Commissioning Group 819 1,136 1,955 843 91 934
CSG 2,788 225 3,014 0 (12) (12)
HRA 178 1,125 1,303 0 1,150 1,150
Public Health 0 18 18 0 0 0
Re 33 443 476 0) 74 74
Schools Direct Management 31 0 31 0 0 0
Street Scene 632 4 636 1,143 11 1,154
Total 9,279 4,035 13,314 6,707 1,668 8,375

* Data as at 30th September 2014 includes revenue (£8.177m) and capital spend (£0.198m)

Note - The Children's Education figure has been restated from 2013/14 to take into consideration expenditure which was

later charge to the capital programme

Transformation Programme

The expenditure on the Transformation programme and projections for 2014-
15 as at the end of September 2014 is included in Appendix E of the report.
Policy and Resources Committee on the 10th June 2014 approved
transformation reserve drawdown; and a further report will be provided to
Policy and Resources Committee on 2 December 2014 identifying potential
transformation funding requirements to enable delivery of the Corporate Plan
and Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Children’s, Education, Libraries and Safeguarding Committee approved an
additional £0.050m for the development of a revised Outline Business Case
for Education and Skills services. This is reflected in Appendix E.

An additional £0.213m has been moved from the Project Management Office
(PMO) cost centre to fund the ‘Connecting with Barnet’ programme, which is
underway to embed transparency, improve the Council's consultation
approach and practices and improve services to customers. In addition,
£0.056m has been moved from the PMO cost centre to fund the Parking
improvement project, including the roll out of new systems, development of a
new draft Parking Policy and seeking to improve customer experience.

Write-off’s

As part of the quarterly monitoring process the Council will now report on all
scheduled write-off for sundry debt in excess of £5,000. The value of a write
off is determined at a debt value as per the Council’s financial regulations.
Debts under £5,000 are approved by the Director of Finance.

79



Actions taken to recover debt is as per the Council's Income & Debt
Management Policy. If an invoice is raised and remains unpaid, “dunning”
process comes into play as follows:-

e Level1 - areminderis sent after 21 days
e Level 2 - afinal notice is sent after 35 days i.e. a further 14 days

The Income Team will review all Level 2 cases remaining outstanding greater
than 49 days (allowing a further 14 days to pay after the Final Notice) to
decide whether the debt recovery should proceed.

Depending on the type of debt, customer and circumstances consideration of
the use of debt collectors or issuing proceedings in the County Court is
considered. Every case is treated individually, hence the circumstances of
each debt is assessed prior to taking a decision on the recovery of the debt in
conjunction with the delivery unit.

Table 14 below analyses the scheduled write-off's where the individual debt
level is in excess of £5,000, the aggregate of these write-offs is anticipated to
total £0.166m.

80



Table 14 — Write-off’s in excess of £5,000

Customer Name Transaction Sales Description Amount Comments

date Office

ROYAL BRITISH 25-Mar-2010 | COMM Commercial 26,250.00|Property Senvices have advised the

LEGION NORTH Rents company is dissolved.

Redacted 19-Now-2007 |ADUL Appointeeship | 31,372.66(Barnet Council is the appointee now and
the debt relates to suspected financial
abuse.

Redacted 22-Sep-2008 [ADUL Resident-DWP| 6,759.21( Barnet Council became appointee prior

Payts to death and the debt relates to mis-
management of finances.

Redacted 24-Apr-2006 [ENVS Works in 281.38|County Court judgement obtained and

Default referred to High Court Sheriffs, but unable
to enforce the debt.

Redacted 07-Jan-2008 [ENVS Works in 13,161.38|County Court judgement obtained and

Default referred to High Court Sheriffs, but unable
to enforce the debt.

Redacted 05-Jun-2009 [ADUL Residential 1,577.83| Debtor has passed away, can not locate

Write Off a next of kin and probate searches have
come back negative.

Redacted 23-Jul-2012 |ADUL Residential 4,378.85|Debtor has deceased, can not locate a

Write Off next of kin and probate searches have
come back negative.

Redacted 30-Aug-2011|ADUL Residential 5,446.85|Debtor has passed away, can not locate

Write Off a next of kin & probate searches hawe
come back negative

Redacted 09-Jul-2010 [ADUL Appointeeship 5,549.25(Barnet Council became appointee prior to
death and the debt relates to mis-
management of finances.

Redacted 31-Mar-2009 [ADUL Residential 7,264.73|Debtor has passed away, can not locate

Write Off a next of kin and probate searches have
come back negative.

Redacted 01-Jun-2009 [ADUL Residential 1,328.68|Debtor has passed away, can not locate

Write Off a next of kin and probate searches have
come back negative.

Redacted 12-Mar-2012 [ADUL Residential 7,124.38|Customer is paying ongoing invoices.

Write Off This relates to initial charge and proof
has been received that they do not have
the means to pay.

Redacted 30-Aug-2011 [ADUL Residential 5,886.84|Debtor has passed away and insufficent

Unsecured funds in estate to pursue.
Norwel
Redacted 12-Now-2012 |ADUL Residential 721.08|Debtor has passed away, can not locate
Write Off a next of kin and probate searches have
come back negative.

Redacted 26-Nov-2010 [ADUL Residential 6,392.75|Debtor has passed away, can not locate

Write Off a next of kin & probate searches have
come back negative.

Redacted 28-Aug-2012 [ADUL Residential 7,138.01|Debtor has passed away and insufficent

Write Off funds in estate to pursue.
Redacted 28-Aug-2012 [ADUL Residential 16,054.73|Debtor has passed away, can not locate
Write Off a next of kin and probate searches have
come back negative.
Redacted 18-Dec-2013 [ADUL FC Actuals 7,045.00(Debtor has passed away and insufficent
Billing funds in estate to pursue.

Redacted 02-Jan-2012 |ADUL Residential 5,362.33|Debtor has passed away and insufficent
Unsecure funds in estate to pursue.

Redacted 14-Oct-2013 |ADUL Residential 6,552.12|Debtor has passed away and insufficent
Unsecured funds in estate to pursue.
Norwel

Total 165,648.06

81



1.19 Treasury
1.19.1 Treasury Outturn

In compliance with the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice this report provides
Members with a summary report of the treasury management activity during
the period to 30 September 2014. The Prudential Indicators have not been
breached and a prudent approach has been taken in relation to investment
activity with priority being given to security and liquidity over yield. Further
details of compliance with prudential indicators are contained in Appendix F.

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to set an Affordable
Borrowing Limit, irrespective of its indebted status. This is a limit which should
not be breached. During the period to 30 September 2014 there were no
breaches of the Authorised Limit and the Operational Boundary.

The Council’s timeframes and credit criteria for placing cash deposits and the
parameters for undertaking any further borrowing are set out in the Treasury
Management Strategy. The Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15 was
approved by Council on 5 March 2014 and the revised strategy applied with
immediate effect. The Treasury Management Strategy demands regular
compliance reporting to this Committee to include an analysis of deposits
made during the review period. This also reflects good practice and will serve
to reassure this Committee that all current deposits for investment are in line
with agreed principles as contained within the corporate Treasury
Management Strategy.

There has been continued cautious approach to the current investment
strategy and as a result of considerable stabilisation and in some cases
improvement in credit metrics, the revised treasury strategy for 2014/15 has
extended the maximum duration to 10 years with further diversification, albeit
with maximum recommended duration of deposits for different banks
depending on risk assessment.

1.19.2 Investment Performance

Investment deposits are managed internally. As at 30" September 2014,
deposits outstanding were £229.287 million (excluding Icelandic deposits),
achieving an average annual rate of return of 0.70 per cent (adjusted for
Icelandic deposits) against a benchmark average (London Interbank Bid Rate
- LIBID) of 0.34 per cent. A list of deposits outstanding as at 30" September
2014 is attached as Appendix G.

The benchmark, the average 7-day LIBID rate, is provided by the authority’s
treasury advisors Arlingclose. The LIBID rate is the rate that a Euromarket
bank is willing to pay to attract a deposit from another Euromarket bank in
London.



All deposits have been settled for the Icelandic banks, with the exception of
the £2.5m held in an escrow account in lcelandic Kronur because of Icelandic
currency export restrictions.

1.19.3 Debt Management

2.1

3.1

4.1

5.1

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

514

The total value of long term loans as at 30" September 2014 was £304.080m.
There has been no external borrowing in the financial year to date. The
average total cost of borrowing for the quarter ending 30" September 2014
was 3.89 per cent.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

These recommendations are to allow the Council to meet the budget agreed
by Council on 4 March 2014.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED
None.

POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION

None.

IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION

Corporate Priorities and Performance

This report presents the performance of the Council at meeting the measures
of success for the Corporate Priorities. This report also includes performance
indicators of the delivery of services by the Council, such as the performance

levels of contracts, internal Delivery Units and partners.

The past three years of performance information is available at:
www.barnet.gov.uk/performance

Robust budget and performance monitoring are essential to ensuring that
there are adequate and appropriately directed resources to support delivery
and achievement of Council priorities and targets as set out in the Corporate
Plan. In addition, adherence to the Prudential Framework ensures capital
expenditure plans remain affordable in the longer term and that capital
resources are maximised.

Relevant Council strategies and policies include the following:
e Corporate Plan 2013-16;

e Medium Term Financial Strategy;

e Treasury Management Strategy;

e Debt Management Strategy;

83



5.1.5

5.2

5.21

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

¢ Insurance Strategy;
¢ Risk Management Strategy; and
e Capital, Assets and Property Strategy.

The priorities of the Council are aligned to the delivery of the Health and
Wellbeing Strategy.

Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT,
Property, Sustainability)

Robust budget and performance monitoring plays an essential part in enabling
an organisation to deliver its objectives efficiently and effectively.

Legal and Constitutional References

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 states that: “without prejudice
to section 111, every local authority shall make arrangements for the proper
administration of their financial affairs and shall secure that one of their
officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs”. Section 111
of the Local Government Act 1972, relates to the subsidiary powers of local
authorities.

Section 28 of the Local Government Act 2003 (the Act) imposes a statutory
duty on a billing or major precepting authority to monitor, during the financial
year, its income and expenditure against the budget calculations. If the
monitoring establishes that the budgetary situation has deteriorated, the
authority must take such action as it considers necessary to deal with the
situation. Definition as to whether there is deterioration in an authority’s
financial position is set out in sub-section 28(4) of the Act.

The Council’'s Constitution, in Part 15 Annex A, Responsibility for Functions,
states in Annex A the functions of the Performance and Contract Management
Committee including:

a) Overall responsibility for quarterly budget monitoring, including
monitoring trading position and financial strategy of Council Delivery
Units.

b) Monitoring of Performance against targets by Delivery Units and
Support Groups including Customer Support Group; Re; the Barnet
Group (Including Barnet Homes and Your Choice Barnet); HB Public
Law; NSL; Adults and Communities; Family Services; Education and
Skills; Street Scene; Public Health; Commissioning Group; and
Assurance

c) Receive and Scrutinise contract variations and change requests in
respect of external delivery units.

d) To make recommendations to Policy and Resources and Theme
Committees on relevant policy and commissioning implications arising
from the scrutiny of performance of Delivery Units and External
Providers.

84



e) Specific responsibility for the following function within the Council:

a. Risk Management
b. Treasury Management Performance

f) Approve the Annual Report of the Barnet Group Ltd.

5.3.4 The Council's Constitution, Part 21, Financial Regulations section 4.
paragraphs 4.4.9 - 11 state:

Allocations from the central contingency relating to planned
developments will be approved by the Chief Finance Officer (section
151 officer), in consultation with the Chairman of the Performance and
Contract Management Committee, following the receipt from a Chief
Officer of a fully costed proposal to incur expenditure that is in line with
planned development (including full year effect).

Where there is a significant increase in the full year effect, the
contingency allocation must be approved by the Performance and
Contract Management Committee.

Allocations from the central contingency for unplanned expenditure,
including proposals to utilise underspends previously generated within
the service and returned to central contingency, will be approved by the
Chief Finance Officer in consultation with the Chairman of Performance
and Contract Management.

Where there are competing bids for use of underspends, additional
income or windfalls previously returned to central contingency, priority
will be given to the service(s) that generated that return.

Allocations for unplanned expenditure over £250,000 must be
approved by Performance and Contract Management Committee.

5.3.5 The Chief Finance Officer (section 151 officer) will report in detail to
Performance and Contract Management Committee at least four times a year,
at the end of each quarter, on the revenue, capital budgets and wider financial
standing.

5.3.6

The Council’'s Constitution, Part 21, Financial Regulations section 4 paragraph
4.4.3 states amendments to the revenue budget can only be made with
approval as per the scheme of virement table below:

85



5.4

5.4.1

5.4.2

5.5

5.5.1

Virements for allocation from contingency for amounts up to £250,000 must be
approved by the Section 151 Officer in consultation with appropriate Chief Officer

Virements for allocation from contingency for amounts over £250,000 must be approved
by Policy and Resources Committee

Virements within a service that do not alter the bottom line are approved by Service
Director

Virements between services (excluding contingency allocations) up to a value of
£50,000 must be approved by the relevant Chief Officer

Virements between services (excluding contingency allocations) over £50,000 and up to
£250,000 must be approved by Chief Officer and Chief Finance Officer in consultation
with the Chairman of the Policy and Resources Committee and reported to the next
meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee

Virements between services (excluding contingency allocations) over £250,000 must be
approved by Policy and Resources Committee

Capital Virements
Performance and Contract Management approval is required for all capital budget and
funding virements and yearly profile changes (slippage or accelerated spend) between
approved capital programmes i.e. as per the budget book. The report must show the
proposed:

i) Budget transfers between projects and by year;

i) Funding transfers between projects and by year; and

iii) A summary based on a template approved by the Section 151 Officer

Funding substitutions at year end in order to maximise funding are the responsibility of
the Section 151 Officer.

Risk Management

Various projects within the Council’s revenue budget and capital programme
are supported by time-limited grants. Where there are delays to the
implementation of these projects, there is the risk that the associated grants
will be lost. If this occurs either the projects will be aborted or a decision to
divert resources from other Council priorities will be required.

The revised forecast level of balances needs to be considered in light of the
risk identified in 5.4.1 above.

Equalities and Diversity

The Equality Act 2010 requires organisations exercising public functions to

demonstrate that due regard has been paid to equalities in:

e Elimination of unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Equality Act 2010

e Advancement of equality of opportunity between people from different
groups

¢ Fostering of good relations between people from different groups

86



5.5.2 The Equality Act 2010 identifies the following protected characteristics: age;
disability; gender reassignment; marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex and sexual orientation. .

5.5.3 The council aims to adopt a proportionate approach to meeting the duty to pay

due regard to equalities by:

e Trying to understand the diversity of our customers to improve our
services

e Considering the impact of our decisions on different groups to ensure they
are fair

e Mainstreaming equalities into business and financial planning and
integrating equalities into everything we do.

e Learning more about Barnet’s diverse communities by engaging with them

This is also what we expect of our partners.

5.5.4 This is set out in the council’s Equalities Policy together with our strategic
Equalities Objective- as set out in the Corporate Plan - that citizens will be
treated equally with understanding and respect; have equal opportunities and
receive quality services provided to best value principles.

5.5.5 Progress against the performance measures we use is published on our
website at:
www.barnet.gov.uk/info/200041/equality _and_diversity/224/equality _and_diversity

5.6 Consultation and Engagement

5.6.1 During the process of formulating budget and Corporate Plan proposals for
2013/14 onwards, three phases of consultation took place:

e Phase One (October 2012 — November 2012): Residents’ Perception
telephone survey.

e Phase two (November 2012 - January 2013): Corporate Plan
consultation

e Phase three (October 2012 — January 2013): Finance and business
planning (including proposed budget) consultation

5.6.2 The results and impact on the Corporate Plan and budget are outlined in the
Cabinet Report to Committee on the 5 March 2013 (Item 8).
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=162&MId=6629&Ver=4

87



6.1

6.2

6.3

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Performance and Contract Management Committee, 11 June 2014 (Decision
Item 5) — approved Final Outturn and Quarter 4 Monitoring Report 2013/14
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=693&MId=7868&Ver=4

Council, 4 March 2014 (Decision item 2.1) — approved the Business Planning

2014/15 — 2015/16 report.
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=162&MId=7516&Ver=4

Policy and Resources Committee, 21 July 2014 (Decision item 5) — approved
inflation amounts to budgets (total £3.390m) and the £1.4m set aside
specifically for pressures in Children’s social care budget, this is to be

transferred from contingency to Family Services.
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=692&MId=7860&Ver=4

88



‘9 UOI39as uj paure|dxa SI p1e2a109s pasuejeq ayj Bunenojes uoy ABojopoyls\ “syun A1aAljaQ JO 9oueuUly pue asuewsouad aU} JO MAIAIBAO ue sapiroid aaoge a|qe} ay L

W
\\\

§\

7
4
77777
7777777
7747777777777
777277777
D277

Jayenb siy) papodai
SJ0JB2IPU| JOBIUOD) JO0 Juswdalby
Juswoabeuey Je jSuiebe
parsiyoe bunes saueuopad
J[BI8A0 d2UBW.IOoHad JoBIIU0D
AuUsWaaIby Juswabeuepy

pus Jauenb je se
junowe pajabpnq
wouj uoneuen
puads [ejde)
000.3
9oueLieA
|enjoe [ejide)

0
T4

19bpnq pasinas |
wouyj uoneLen
ainjipuadxa
anusnal

pajoadxgy

000.3 9oUELIeA

j39bpnq anuanal
pajoafoid

s|ejol

sasuadx3 [esjuan

MmeT] dliqnd gH

980

5d

dnouo jauieg

177777777777777777277777272

useaH aqnd

ainjonijseqju] pue bupjied

au9a9g }99l)S

dnoig Bujuoissiwwon

92IA1a8S Ajlwey

SIIDS pue uoneaNp3 s,uaIpiYd

e/u asueinssy

saljUNWWo) pue s)npy

Jayenb
SIYy} papodal siojealpu|
ue|ld ajesodio) je
Jsurebe panaiyae bunes
aoueuopad [[e1anQ
aouewuopad
ue|d ajesodion

nun Aieale@

pieoqysep asuewoylad ajesodion |-}

89

M3IAIB9A0 92uewloylad ajesodio) °L

SL/Y10Z Z 1duenDd :Juoday aduewoudd 1y xipuaddy



-1eaA }se| 0] uosiiedwod Yjim 3obpng s,[19unos ayj uo joedwl Yyoiym seale Aay ayj sajelisn||i ajqe} aAoqe ay|

06

80¢

GO0l

8l'Ge

.81
9€9

61°Gl
966Gl
yodal Buloyuow ayj Jo 9 xipuaddy oLl
99s - MAIAIBAO d)elo0dl0o —3abpnq |eyde) ¢

Hodai Buuoyuow ay} jo g xipuaddy
99S — MIIAIBAO0 3)el0d10d —}abpng anUdAdY Z°Z

06°66

GC'LG
e

9¢l

L'Le

vee

€9

61°Gl
AN
G8'Ll

shep

%  0€ ulyym pied sioypald 4o % (1)
aJuewiopad ¥

juswed 1031pain

% pred o, - xe| [1ouno) (i)
w,3 syjuow |
Jano Buipueisino igeq lejo L (1)

w3 shAep o¢

Jano Buipuejsino 19aq [ejo (1)
juswidbeuey1qeq ¢

w3 abedd|s |ejo] (1)
ainjipuadx3 [ejides ¢

w3 spuadsiapun (1)
w3 spuadsianQ (1)
:suonelep
19b6png
1suiebe asuew.lopad (q)
w,3 saoueleg |0oyas (111)
w,3 saoueleg WyH (I1)
w3 aoueleg pun4 [eJauas (1)

:SOAI8SaY pue saouejeq (e)

aInjipuadx3 onuoAdy

siojesipul asueulj Aay L2

90

so|qe} Alewwns [1I9UNO2 3JOYM 2




91

"Ueld 8Je10040D 91/E10Z dY} Ul PAUIINO
soA3oalqo o16aje)s ay) 10) SS829NS Jo sainseaw ay) Jsuiebe Buiwiopad si 1I9UN0Y 8y} Moy saje3sn||l SAOGe d|qe} 8y |

"80U0 UBY) 8JoW pajels usaqg Sey awoo)no ay} a|qeoljdde si siy) a1aym ‘saAnoalqo 216s)el)s JO JusWABIYOE By} UM delJoA0 SBLI0JIN0 SWOS,
. seuUNWWod Apms
S s 1SeU00 pefetue SberoPUE  pu oyiom ani 0 soeid e sp
: : . jouleg jo ybnosog uopuo- ay}

ybnolog 8y} ssoioe ainjon.sesul
s|qeurelsns ym ‘soeid sjqisseooe UMM SOSS3UISNQ pue Sjuspisal

pUE SAjOEIE ‘PaUBISap-||oM B UIEJUlewW O | jo uonoeysies anoidw
ybnoiog ayj ssolioe sjdoad BunoA

pue uaJp|Iyd oy SSoUBYD 3| JoJa] S}eal0 0|
SaUNWWOoD

ajes pue aAIsayod ‘pabebus ajeslo pue

Bulaq -jjam Ajunwiwoo pue Ajiwey ajowold o |
|1Iom abe 0] sjuspisal spoddns

pue sabeinoous jey) soejd e si Jauleg 1ey)

0s ‘ybnoloq ay} ul uonejndod GG JSA0 paLLIOUI
pue juspuadapul ‘sAnoe ‘Ayjesy e ajowoid o]
Awouoos |[e20] 8SIaAIp pue

Buoss e Joj Juswuoliaus Jybu sy} ulejuiew o
yiesy |ejuswi

pue |eaisAyd 1oy} anoidwi pue ulejuiew

Ued s|enpiAlpul pue saliwey jey} 0s ‘SHN

|e20] ay} yum diysisuped Buouis e uieisns o
ybnoiog ayj ssolioe sjdoad BunoA

pue uaJp|Iyo oy S9oUBYD 3| J9J}a] S}eal0 0|
Awouoos [B20] 9SISAIp pue

Buosis e Joj Juswiuoliaud Jybu sy} ulelulew o] Yymoudb sjqisuodsal Buiowoud
ybnoloq sy} SSOIOE BINONIISEUI
a|geulelsns yum ‘soeld a|qissadoe

pue aAloelje ‘paublisap-|[@m e ulejulew o |

%S.

Bulaq ||am pue Buluies)
‘aouapuadapul Bugowoud
‘)1 paau jey) sjenplAlpul
pue saljiwej Juoddng

%G9

%08

panaIyay

Hodal 0}
salnsesy jo

aAnoalqQ d1bajens

oBejuassay | POP2dxe ON sbunes oyy

saAl)oalqo oibajesys Aq maiAlano ajelodiod - asuewdomad ueld ajesodio) 'z



92

"1, :dnoJ Jejiwis SO An (Sployasnoy 000}
syl _‘m.m_‘m.uco_w.comu N Buluasiopp %96 V/N 00'cc 1861 -vmrr __%0 Jad) Asebing onsswiop jo [9A9]  0LOL
. 9y} Ul uoionpal sy} ulejulejy
7
31O SWOH 8y} Buinoldu No“mm peojased 0001 Jed uoisiniadns
Aq papinoid aq 0] sI eleQq : _ VIN VIN 0ce L0g _ Y _\F,_hm uoneqoid Japun asoy} 6001
o cloc uer Jo} Buipuayoal ynpe aonpay
Jojeoipul . ale3
|£00] 9|qeIedWod-uoN Buinosdwij %.0 VIN 00¢ €0¢ 1 1deg Buisinu pue [enusapIsal ul SYnpe #0001
0 J8bunoA Jo Jaquinu 8y} aonpay
y Ammm._mém ) Amu_>_umv
nols) Jojesedwo) . 6L.LS . | 1des pue uoleuwLIoul Sapnjoul
8ouBUIH 21|gNd JO 3)nIsu|) Buioiduiy %6Cl 0921 %0¢ %€ 0€ - ] Jdy s90IAIas Joddns anledal oym €00k
%9°LE SJaleod JO Jaquinu 8y} asealou|

10Z aunf 0}10z |Udy
pig syuel Jauieg
(sybnoiog Buinoiduw) %Y
81) %z '8¢ ebelany dnoi [e1o0s npe ajqibije Jo (Jaqwinu
%81 G j|suled pue) abejusoiad sy} asealou|

V.
sjuswAed
7
10Z aunr 0}10z |Udy ad
Z Syuel jauleg . 1oddns pajoalip
um. J/J(sybnoiog Buluasiopp %1 ZE %_m %G/ %Y 66 .vw Hmw -J|@s Buinieoal siIswoisnd  LO0L

6ev € vl 1des 108.1p Bulnigoal siewoisnNo aled  Zool

%GE wee o ay

Lg) abeiany dnoig aled |e1oos jnpe a|qibia
%€°86 1auleg J0 abejusoiad sy} asealou|
J0jeaipul 1o}
sjnsal /Bj0} JO Jno
snoinaid m%m&_wé jusw J0jeaipul 8y} pousd
ay) souIs S winyno ainsesw | Aq paiinbai jueasjal | painsesuw
paodui .mS 1) Jojeaipul |oA9] pajoadxse Jsow usaq
sey ay] ayj panaiyoe [eAg] Ju oy} wo.uj sey ejep

moyjou ojnsal | jeyjsequinu | swenaiyo nsa; | sweyowi
onejnoen | #°H 1eqyj 1oq oy | i yowi |

ue|d 8jeiodio) ay)
ur 1no }as se sannoalqo aoibajel)s
8y} bunesw spJemoy Si [1oUNoY
8y} |nJSS899NS MOY JO 8InSesy
uonduosaq J03eslipuj

SJ19UN0J 18Y}0 0} paiedwod
souewiousd MoH
Bupjrewyosuag

soueuliouad
Jayaym jo Jusgal juersjoy }abie] snoinaid | pailanon

4
JUSWISSISSE | o o ien JSop 10 sjinsay pouad

uy e JInsay jeulwouaq snoinald
lo@ pue
JojesawinN

saiiuNWIWoy pue synpy |
‘Jun A1aAljag ajqisuodsal yoea Aq ‘ss9a9ns Jo sainseaw ue|d ajelodion ayj jsulebe aosuewlopad ay} auipno mojaq sajqe} ayl

sliojeoipu] @suewuouad ueld ajes0dio) L'y'Z



ajeuwl}ss |euoljeu %109

S[19UN0J 18Y30 0}
pasedwod soueuwiopad moH
Bupjrewyosuag

%1 '8G [eUOhEN
%€ G9 uopuo]

09% pue|bu3
/8% uopuo

clicioe
pue|bu]

1°0¢G

S/19UN0J 19Y}0
0} paiedwod aouewiopad moH
Bunjewyouag

Buinosduw)

sjinsau
snoinaid
8y} aauls

panouduwi sey

goueuiopad

Jaypaym
JO Jusuissasse
uy
[EY I
JO uonoalg

Buinoidwi|

Buinoidwi|

VIN

sjnsal
snoinaid
ay) aouis

panoidwi sey

doueuLiopad

Jayjaym Jo
jusuwissasse
uy
EYCITE
Jo uonoalg

%80

j8bie}
ay} wouy si
winyno ayj
Jej moy Jo
uolje|nojed
4
aouellep

%LCl

%66

VIN

10b.ue)]
ayj wouj SI
winyno ay)
Jej moy Jo
uone[nojes

4

aoueliep

yobie]

jJus
wainsesw
Jojeaipui
ay)

Jo jnsai
Jusoal
ISON
}nsay

[AVAGT

Jus
waunseaw
Jojeaipul
oy}

JO Jinsai
Jusoal
JSoN
}nsay

VIN %S9

Jojeaipul
10} [ejo]

Jo Jno Jojeaipui
ay) Aq
pauinbai jong]
ay} panaiyoe
jey} jequinu
juensjay
A
ojeujwouaq
pue
JojelsawinN

pajoadxa
Y
Juswianalyoy
yobie]

6¢

92 %G .
VIN LG€
VIN VIN

Jojeaipul
10J [ejo}

JO Jno uojeaipul
8y} Aq
pauinbai jong]
8y} panaiyoe
Jey} Jequinu
Juensjay
b
ojeujwiouaq
pue
dojelaWinN

pajoadxa
YL
JuswBAaIyoY
jobie]

%09

pouad
juensjal
Jsow ay}
wouy Jnsau
Snoinaid
JINS?Y
sSholAald

%L°LS

LEE

LELY

pouad
juensjai
Jsow ay}
wouj ynsau
Snoinaid
Jinsay
sSholAald

vL/€L0¢
Jea

JlWwapedy

paunsesu
ussq
sey ejep
suwielauul |
paianon
poliad

v102
Jdas -

1oz Aine
102
aunp -

102 Jdy

Jdag
0¢ Je sy

painsesuu
usaq
sey ejep
aweljawl |
palano)
pouad

9|l}01d abe)g uonepuno sies A
Aleg sy ul Juswdojans( Jo
|9A87 POOD), B BulAsIyoe uslp|iyo
J0 abejusoiad sy} asealou|

ue|ld ajes0dio)

8} Ul Jno }8s Sse saoalqo albajelis
8y} bunssw spiemoj si [1ounoD
8y} [NJSS929NS MOY JO BINSBIY

uondiosap 1ojealpu|

SIS pue uoyeanps

swAojdwa
Jo Buiuiel} uoneoNpa Ul SISPUSHO
BunoA jo uonuodolid ayy asealou|

/1 01 0| pabe wajsAg
900SN[ YINOA 8Y) 0] Sjuejua
awIj 1S1 JO Jagquinu 8y} aonpay

uonendod g| Japun ay} Jo
000‘0} Jad g9¢ 0} aied |el00Ss 0}
s|ellajal Jo Jaquinu 8y} Jo)UOA|

ueld ajei0dio)
8y uI Ino }Jas se saaalqo aibajel)s
8y} bunsaw spiemoj S [1ounoY
8Y] [njSS829NS MOY JO 8INSBIY|
uondiosap 1ojealpu|

100€

600¢€

800¢

£00€

8oINBS AllweH -z

93




vLI€L0C

(43DN)
%€ GG S1ewiiss |euoneN

(papuny
ajels) puelbuz %¢6

vi/€L0c
ajewiss [euolleu %806

S/19UN0J JdYJo 0}
pasedwos souewiopad moH

Bupjrewyosuag

VIN

Buinoidw

Buinoidw

sjnsai
snoinaid
8y} aauls
panoudwi sey
aoueuLiopad
Jayjaym
Jo Juswissesse
uy
|9AeL|
Jo uonoala

%99

%L

%0°¢

Jebie}
ay) wouj sI
winyno ayj
Jegj moy Jo
uole[najes

4
aouellep
jobie]

(d)

V%E°99 VIN %L
VIN %G'C6
VIN %G'16

Jojeaipul
10j [e]o]
Jue 40 ]no iojeaipul
wainseaw ay) Aq
J0Je2IpU pauinbai [ons]
ayj 8y} parslyoe
JO J|nsau jeyj isquinu
Jusoal juensjay
JSON i
) nsay ojeujwouaq
pue
JojelawinN

pajoadxa
Y
JuswIaAaIyoYy
jobie]

vV/N

%C6

%16

pouad
juensjai
jsow ayj
wouy jinsai
Snoinaid

JInsay
snoinald

yL/€lL0cC
Jeap

olwapedy

yL/€L0cC
JeaA

olwapedy

yL/€L0C
Jea

olwapedy

painsesw
usaq
sey ejep
awelaLul |
paianon
pouad

JinsaJ e se dayenb siy)
pajes O &q jou [jim J0Jedipul Sy | “uinjino snojasid ayj o} ajqesedwod Jebuoj ou S| J0jedlpul 8y} J0JedIPUI Siy} JO JUSWSINSBSLW PUB WNINJLIND 8y} Ul sebueyd o] ang v
"b1/€ 102 1eaf olwepeoy Joj jeuoisiroid i ejep uoneonps [iy=d

syleiy

pue ysi|bu3 Buipnjoul 3309
D~V aJow Jo G Buinaiyoe

s|idnd jo abejusaiad ay |

Z pue | sabejg Aoy usamiaq
Bunum ur ssaiboud Jo sjans] omy
Buyew sjidnd jo abejusoiad ay |

Z pue | sabejg Aoy usamiaq
Buipea. ul ssaiboud Jo sjans| omy
Buyew sjidnd jo abejusoiad ay |

ue|d 8jeiodio)
8y} Ul Jno }es se saAlaslqo aibajel)s
ayj} buijgaw SpJemoj Si [1ounoD
8Y} [NJSSBIINS MOY JO 8INSBY
uondiiosap 10jeaipuj

¥00€

(a)
€00€

(e)
€00€

94



v Je - €| Jep JesAh Ing
- "9, JO abeiane pue|bu]
pue 9,01 jo abelane
uopuo isuiefe uonendod
3|q1b1|e Jo %9 ouleg
- [HOHd] >iomawes 4
SaWwooINO YiesH olqnd
¥l Je|N -S| Jep Jeak
[IN} - Z€ JO 1IN0 9| payuel
[HOHd] Jomawel
Sawo21nQ yjesH aliqnd

S[1oUN0Y 18YJo 0}
pasedwiod sauewiopad moH

Bupjrewyosuag

(rLoz/oL/gl
pajoelxa moj{eleq
9)SeAN) suoIssIwgns

ybnolog uopuo a|ge|iene
L€ 40 10 yi9 payuey

S/19UN0J 18YJO 0}
pasedwiod sauewiopiad moH

Bunpjewyouag

Buinocadwi %621 VIN
VIN %6’} mmm|w_‘

Jojeaipul
10j [e]o]

JO 1no uojeaipul
ay} Aq
pauinbai [ons]
ay) paraiyoe

JO jnsau jeyj jequinu
Jusoal juensjsy
JSON A
) nsay ojeujwouaq
pue
JojelawinN

jobue)
ayj wouy si
wingno ay}

sjnsau snoinaud
ayj v8aulIs
panoidwi sey
soueuuopsd Jej moy Jo
Jayjaym Jo uoneno[esd
juswissasse uy 4
|oAed | aoJuelep
Jo uonoalq yobie]

Jus
wainsesiu
Jojeaipui
ay)

vy LSY'6€

Buinoidwi 16°€25 91

%10

Jojeaipul
10} [ejo]

JO Jno Jojeaipul
ay) Aq
pauinbai jong]
8y} panaiyoe

Jo jnsau jeyj requinu
Juaoal juensjay
JSON 4
JInsay ojeujwiouaq
pue
JojelsawinN

sjnsaJ snoinaud
8y} 9ouIs
panoiduwi sey
goueuwopad

10b.ue)]
ay) wouj sI
winyno ayj
Jej moy Jo
uoreinoes

Jus
waunseaw
Jojeaipul
oy}

Jayaym Jo
Juswissasse uy "4

|oAel]
JO uonoaig

aJuelepn
yobie]

0SL'L 0EV'L

%9 VIN

pouad
juensjal
Jsow ay}
wouy Jnsau
Snoinaid
}nsal
snoiAaid

poajoadxo
JENE)
JuswisAaIydYy
j9b.ie]|

%v6 LY %66°GE

pouad
juensjal
Jsow ey}
wouy ynsau
snoinaid

jInsay
SNOIAdId

pajoadxa
JEYE]]
JuswisaIyoy
jobie ]

| saunp
- 1 |udy

1 aunp
- 1 judy

painseswi
usaq
sey ejep
awelyowil |
paianon
poliad

L unp
- 1 Jdy

painsesuu
usaq
sey ejep
awelawl |
paiano)
pouad

39340 yiesH

SHN Uue anl@oa1 oym sjdoad €002
9|qi1b1j8 Jo Jaqwinu a8y} asealou|
Kianijep

J0 swij je syows jey) sisyjow  L00C

JO slaquinu ul uoonpay

ue|d ajei0dio)
8y} ul Jno }es se saAlasfqo olbajel)s
8y} bunsaw Sp1emoj si [1oUNoDH
8y} [nJSS829NS MOY JO 8INSeH\
uondiiosap 10jeaipuj

WjesH alqnd g

%Ly
0} Busodwoo pue Bulphoal (v)
‘9snal 10} JuUas )Sem pjoyssnoy  Z0o¥

Jo abejusoiad ay) asealou|

ueld ajei0dio)
8y} uI Jno }as se sanaalqo aibajel)s
8y} bunsaw spiemoj si [1ounNoYD
8Y] [njSS829NS MOY JO 8INSBIY|
uonduosaq Jo3ealpuj

8Uu8as J9allS b

95




elep aAleledwod
ON 'l0}edlpu| [e007]

‘Jauleg 1o} asealoul
%G e 0} buedwod
‘Spjoyasnoy ul asealoul
%/ B SeM 213y} 3|oyMm
B se uopuoT Jo4 ‘(uopuoT
J0 AnQ Buipnjour) uopuon
ul puge 03} pigg wodj
(1O pue yo buedwoo)
Bupjuel ur yjuswanoidwi
yb1Is e usaq sey aiay |

S${19UN0J 48Y30 0}
pasedwiod sauewiopad moH

Bupjrewyosuag

¢l Jep - ZL lep Jeak
[IN} - Z€ O In0 g payuey

- [HOHd] iomawel
SawooNQ YyiesH 2d1qnd

¢l Jep - zL e Jesk
[IN - 2€ 40 1IN0 Qg paxuel

[HOHd] Miomawel

$8WwodNQ YijesH alignd

VIN %€°0¢ VIN

- )

103e2ipul
10} [ejo]

Buluasiopp %2C

sjnsaJ snoinaud
ay) aouls
panoidwi sey

oY) wou si | wainsesw ay} £q
winyno ayj Jojeaipul
goueuopad Jej moy Jo ay)
Jayjaym Jo uoije|nojed Jo jnsau jeyj sequinu
jusuwissasse uy 4 Jusoal juensjay
|9AeI L aoueuep JSON 4

JO uonoaig jobae] jInsay

aly] panaiyoe

pue
JojesowinN

Buluasiopp %L L N%N
Buinosduw) %10 m%m

40 no Jojesipul

pauinbai jong]

ojeuiwouaq

8G1

00§

pajoadxa

JEE)

Juswianalyoy
j9b.1e]|

%vE

%lc

VIN

98y

pouad
juensjal
Jjsow ayj
wouj ynsau
Snoinaid
jinsal
sSholAald

%G €EC

%C'€C

gle 0}
wrow Hm_ww pansiyoe sbuiyis| 10joeg pajusy (1)(a)
vi0c 1dv 8JeAlld JO Jaquinu 8y} asealou| 1008
00S
¥102 0} uoijepowwoooe Aousbiswe  (e)
1des 10 ul paoe(d spjoyssnoy 1008

JO Jaquinu ay} sonpay

painseaw
usaq
sey ejep
aweaull|
paianon
poliad

ueld 8jeiodio)
8y} ulI Ino }as se saAoalqo aibajel)s
ay) bunassw Sp1emoj si [1ouUnoD
8Y] [njSS829NS MOY JO 8INSBIY|
uonduosap Jojealpuj

S8WwoH jauieg 9

85870 J0 Jyblamiano se

h m%% pewissep | 0} ). pabe uaippyo 9
¢l des 10 uoiuodoud ay) aonpay ¢00¢
95970 Jo Jyblamiano
€l by Se palisse|o G 0} { pabe uaip|iyo (E)
- ¢l des 200z

10 uoiuodoud ay) aonpay

96




elep aAleledwod
ON "Jojeolpuj |e207]

€1 1 10 901
€1/£10z Buie3
-:fening gg

vl ¢ moleH ‘y9g
816 uspwey ‘L] jualig
:aseqeleq juswdojaraq

uopuo- 0} Buipioooe
sybnoioq Buunoqybiau

Joj s|eoy ¢L/cloec

"'262 MolieH

¥9¢ Aebuuey ‘ez playug

'66C Uspwe) ‘yzg juaig
:eseqeleq Juswdojanag
uopuo 0} Buipiodoe
sybnolioq Buunoqybiau
Joj suone|dwod €1/Z102

elep aAleledwod
ON "Jojeolpuj |e207]

ejep aAnesedwod
ON "I0}edIpu| [e207

S$J19UN0Y J8Y}0 O}

pasedwod aosuewiopsd moH

Bunjrewyouag

Buinoidw

Buluasiopp

Buinoidw

awes

aweg

sjnsau snoinaud
ayj 8aulIs
panoidwi sey
aoueuLiopad
Jayjaym Jo
juswissasse uy
|[9ABIL
Jo uonoala

%L’}

VIN

VIN

%0

%0

106UR)
ay} wouy si
winyno ayj
Jej moy Jo
uole[naes
4
aouelIep

**mN

«9€

Jua
wainseaw
Jojeaipul
ay)

4O Jnsau
Juasal
1SoN
Jinsay

Ly
14017

VIN

VIN

(9V/{aVl

J03e2Ipul
J0j [ejoj Jo Jno
Jojeaipur sy Aq
pauinbai jong]
ay} panaiyoe
Jeyy sequinu
juens|ay
Jojeuiwiouaqg
pue
lojesawinN

%001}

001 10618y
|enuuy

19¢
100.4e)

[enuuy

%001}

%001}

pojoadxo
JEE)
JuswiaAaIydYy
j9b.ie]|

¥10¢
Jaquisydag

- 10z Ainp

%9'G6

vioc
18 Jaquisydag

- 102 Ainp

vioc
(o) Jaquisydag

- 10z Ainp

v10¢
Jaquisydeg

- 10z Ainp

%001}

144014
Jaqwiaydag

-yLoz Aine

%001}

pouad
juensjal
Jjsow ayj
wouj jjnsau
snoinaid

JInsay
snoiAald

painseaw
usaq
sey ejep
aweaul|
paiano)

aljgnd

8y} Jo slaqwiaw Aq payodal
sojoyjod [aA8] uonuaAIS}UI

[le sinoy g{ Ulyim sjeg axeN

asn
[ernuspisal ojul yoeq jybnoiq
saluadoud Ajdwa Jo JeaquinN

suons|dwoo
Buisnoy sjqepioye jo Aisaileqg

sawayos Aejoy Aemjoo4
0] Bunejal swwelibolid [enuuy

sawLyos
Buioeyinsay Aemabelen
0] Bbunejal swweibolid |enuuy

ue|ld ajeso0dio) ay;}
ur Jno 18s se saAljoalqo olbajels}s
ay) bunassw Sp1emoj si [1oUnoD
8] [nJSS829NS MOY JO 8INSedy
uonduosaqg J03eslipuj

NN
(44
IdX

¥0H3

OIdXN
3934

NN
€l
IdX

NN
¢l
IdX

97




elep aAleledwod
ON 'l0}edlpu| [e007]

elep aAleledwod
ON "Jojeolpuj |e207]

S[19UN0J IdY}0 0}

pasedwod aosuewopsd moH
Bunjrewyosuag

Buinoidw

Buinoidw

sjinsa. snoinaid
ayj aaulIs
panoidwi sey
doueuLiopad
Jayjaym Jo
jusuwissasse uy
lod

%V 8Y

%19

10b.ie)
ayj wouy si
wingno ayj
Jej moy Jo
uonenaed

4

aoueuep

10bie |

jJus
wainseaw
Jojeaipul
ay)

JO Jinsai
Jusoal
1SoM
}nsay

VIN 00€'LL

VIN 00G°S0¥

Jojeaipul
104 [eJ0)

4O Jno Jojeaipul
ay} Aq
pauinbai jong]
oy} panaiyoe
jeyy sequinu
juens|ay
4
ojeujwiouaq
pue
JojelawinpN

pajoadxa
JEIET]
JuswisaIyoy
10bi1e ]

82.'99

6178'86¢

pouad
juensjal
jsow ayj
wouy jjnsai
Snoinaid
s)insay
sholAald

102
Jdag 0}

1oz Aine

102
Jdas -

1oz Ainp

painseasuu
usaq
sey ejep
awelawl |
paiano)
poliad

‘Jayenb siy} siojeoipul oN
dnoug buiuoissiuuwo) 6

saljua) umo] ui syled (q)
Je0 10} suoljoesuel) asealou|  $00¥

S8J]U30 UMO| Ul (393118-U0) shAeq (e)
Buyed Joy suonoesuel} asealou] 00

ue|d 8jeiodio)
8y} ul Jno }as se saiaalqo aibajel)s
8y} buisaw spiemoj si [1ounoD
8y} [njSS929NS MOY JO 8INSBY
uonduosaq Jo3eaipuj

ainjonijseljul pue bunued ‘g

98




‘Aoijod Ajioyine [eo0o] yym asueldwod uo |4y 1adng Jo pajie) e ul pajnsal

SIy| “pajuswa|dwi usag aouls aAeY suoljepuaWwwodal ‘uoljoajold ejep 0} uolje|dl ul sayoealq papodal Jo Jaquinu B alem alay |

"196.1€)

%08 9y} wo.yj deb sy} Buiseaioul ‘o, 18/ 0O} %8/ WOI) SPUOISS g UIYHIM 11ud9 J0BIU0D 8y} AQ paiamsue ||ed JO asealoap e sem alay |

:Joblie) ay} passiw jey) si0}edipul om] ayj ‘1aw a1am sjabie} souewopad Gz 8y} JO N0 €7
}ow sjabue) Jo %z6 — 9SO

‘JuawAojdwa awiy [N} paAalyoe aAey / axejul s eah jse| woly saonualdde g
ay} JO ‘sswwelbolid JuswAojdwa pue Buiuresy sno ul ped Buiyey Jo Jnsal e se JuswAojdwa paraiyoe oym sjuapisal € ay} pue pajinioal
sajenpelb || ay} 0} uonippe ui st siy] "deo jyeuaq Jo abieyd uoijednado Japun Jayye ybnoay) wiosal aseyam Aq payoeduwi ale payinioal
asoy} Jo || "seAieniul JuswAhojdwse s Jeah siy} jo ped se Ajunwwod [eoo| 8y} wolj saoiualdde /2 Jayuny e pajinioal sey SSWOH jauleq

"passalppe aJe uoljepowwodde

Buidaay Jo Bulnoas woly uosiad BunoA e Buuadwey aq Aew jey} sanssi Jey} ainsua 0} Sased Jo jJuswabeuew julol aAljoe sapnjoul sIy |
"sIaAe9| a1ed BunoA 1o} Loddns sapinoid jey) wes) spiemdn pue spiemuQ S,[19Unod ay} Yyum Ajasolo Bujiom usaq sey sswoH jauleg
"spJeme ay} ul Ajuoyiny |B20T] Uuopuo Jo OINTY uopuo] padeld jsaybiy ay} sem sawoH

Jouleg ‘10z Splemy spiojpue] 0G do] auizebew aul-uo s |euoissajold BuisnoH e ul g Jaqunu pabpnl usaq sey sswoH jauleqg

:9pNjouUl S8SS800Ng

10b6.1e} 9,001 € isulebe auop aiom suona|dwod Buidinies seb Jo % 66°66

%9'¥ J0 196.1e)} B Jsuiebe 9,649 0] 9%,GG G WO} pasealoul Jqap jo abejuadiad se siealie uolepowwoddy Alelodwsa |

%G € 0] 9% G0'EC WOl pasealoul Jigap Jo abejuadlad se siealle Jualing

%G 0 JO UIN}INO S Jauenb jse| wod) Juswanoldwi ue si

siy| ‘1ob.ey 9, /¢ e jsuiebe 9,G /¢ a1em ssa|dawoy Ajjeuoiualul 8q 0} punoy o salinbua Buipuad 3 ul spjoyasnoy asoy} jo abejuasiad

'9J9M JaW JOU SI0}edlpul ‘Jow a1am sjabie} souewlopad | 8y} Jo N0 g
jowl sjabie} Jo 9, /G — SSWOH JauJdeg

aduewIoHad ) n Acbjauleq MMM suodal pajie}ap Joy abed asuewlopad aas ases|d

MIIAIBDAQ - ©duUkeWlo}iad }oeaqjuod 9'¢

souewlIopad N Aob 1aureq Mmm spodal pajieap 1oy abed souewlopad aas ases|d

siojedlpu| asuew.oliad Aay] pue sailoLd Buluoissiwwos -aouewiojad AlaAleq §°Z

99



0 Jo 1ob.e) e Jsuiebe sawooino pue suaje Buipienbajes pjaydnz e
:9pN[oul passiw asoy} ‘1w aiam sjabie) souewlopad | g 8y} Jo N0 G|

jow jJabae} Jo 9,/ —}auieg 8210y JNOA

10801 19N JBIUIN G L/T71L.0Z @Y} payoune| A|Injssa0ons sey 92IAI8S U}|BoH [EJUSWIUCIIAUT BY| e
anuaAy ajepuljo) ul sjuapisal Joj uondnusip Jo sAep
Jepusjed gy buines ‘wea ] Bunywiad shemybiH ay) Aq pajebiisul A|jnjssaoons alam saluedwod Ajlj1jn OM} USBM]S] SHIOM PASIUCIYOUAS e
sased (901S) 901
U0I}08s §G 10} BWO0dUl JO wa3F Bulnigdal Ajlioyiny sy} ul [njssaoons alam Jun Alaaaq pue Buluue|d ainjonyjselju| syl JO SaljiAjoB By e
‘saladoud J1ay} puajxa 0} JueM OYM SIBWO]SND |eljuapisal 0} asiuadxa pue Sa2IAI8s [0Jjuod Buipjing
pue Buiuue|d jo abexyoed anisuayaidwod e Buliayo adlAIas Juabe ubisap mau e payoune| sa2IAIBS Buluue|d pue [oJjuo) Bulpiing e
:9pN[oUl $8§S920NG
%001 J0 1961e} e 0} pasedwod Ajuoyiny ay) Aq yo paubis pue paje|dwod alem sjuswnooq buluue|d d168je.1S JO %0z
196.1e3 9,001 € Jsuiebe 9,9°'66 Sem sjsanbal ywiad syiom shemybiH 0} asuodsas Ajpwi] e
%001 Jo 186.e) e jsuiebe awiy uo paja|dwod suoiebiljsanu| adueinsu| skemybiy Jo %686 o
10b.1e)} 9,001 € isulebe o,G /6 0} Buisues|d Ag|Inb jo swweiboid jenuue Jo uonejuswa|dwl Ul sulPapy e
:9pN[oul passiw asoy} ‘1ow aiam sjabie) souewlopad Z9 ay} JO N0 G

Jow sjabie} Jo %/.8 — ¥

"9sNoH AemyLoN Joj Juswaaibe g(Q| uoi}oas Jo uona|dwo)) e
‘Buipuny uonjesauabal aindas 0} swiy ul Jodag SUY 8y} JO) SJUBWNJ0P PajJeIdoSSe pue ases| ay) Jo uona|dwo) e
‘Juswabeuely aonjoeld 10} Alobajed spiemy A12100G me] ayj ul papuawiwod AlybiH e
:9pN[oUl $8SS920NG
"0,G6 JO 196ue) e Jsuiebe sAep Buyiom G uiyum pales|o suodal ;emod pajebs|ap pue spodal 99)IWLIWOD Yelp JO %G'Z6
:Jow Jou Jojedipul 8y ‘1aw aiam sjabie) aouewlopad €1 8y Jo N0 Z|

Jow sjabie) Jo 9,z6 — meT oljqnd gH

JUSWIUIBA0S) |esjuad AQ ¥oeq mejo ou yum Apisgns wnuwixew
aA8IYoe pInoys |1oUno?) ay} ey} pajedionjue Ajjualind si ) pue yoeqpas) aAllisod uaAlb aney siolpnYy 8y} ‘pajieme |[13s S| podal [euls
ay} ybnouyyy ‘#1/£10z 104 uojuloy| juels) Aq lpny Apisgns |eulalxa |enuue ay} 0} 10algns uaaq sey S2IAISG S)ijouag pue Senuanay ay| e
102 Jaquieydag ul paidnooo
alam yoea yolym swwelboid uoneonp3 GL-10Z 2y} uiyym syosfosd jooyos Atewid xis pasaniop Ajjnjssaoons sey 92IAI8S sajelsg ay| e
%G/ Sem Japenb ay} JoAO UoljoejsiieS Jawoisny) e
'9pNn|oul S8SS820Ng

100



Aunwwod |eoso)
ay} pue saljlwey} Aq pauoddns pue papusajie ||om usag SABY 3SaY} pue JIawwns ay} JOA0 SAep uny, p|ay SABY SS2IAISS BY} JO Jaquinu yy e
"S92INISS || ul Ayoeded je Jsowje si uolesl|iin 92IASS e
‘aouewIopad aAllsod e Sjelisuowap 0} SNUIUOD SaljLIoyine [B20] JaYlo pue jauleq jo Yybnoiog UOpPUOT WOI) S|ellajey e
:9pN[oUl $8§S820NG
"0,G JO 19bue) e
Jsuiebe Aepung 03 Aepli4 uo 9,6 pue Aepsiny| 0} Aepuo|\ wouj % 6| sem auao aydsal Aepp Aajle ays je siybiu juedea Jo Jaquinu ay |
000'G Jo 196u1e) € Jsuiebe 009‘E 2JaM SjUSPIOUI/SIUSPIDIE |BJEJ-UOU JO Jaquinu 8y |
%01 jo 1o6.e} e jsuiebe Aouabe aiam yels Jo 9% E
sAep || Sl 8Aea| ssauxaIs Jo sAep Jo Junowe abelane ay |
‘g|doad (| uey} aiow ou si }ab.e) lenuue ay| ‘82IAI8s Aouapuadap Jaybiy 0} |9A3] 82IAISS B WO} PAAOW SJUSIO 7 S1am alay |

101



‘Ajlioyiny uopuo
Jajeals) 0} piq auoz Buisnoy ay} JO UOISSILIQNS By} pue SYIOM UoIje]s agn} ay} JO JUSWSOUSWWO0D
3y} YuM ajepuljo) ul apew usaq sey ssalbold "ssaooid juswainooid ynog ssol) jualg ay)
JO JuswaduswWwWod ay} buipnjoul ssaiboid poob spew sey j0aloid ssoi) Juaig ay] "sawayos ||e
ssoloe apew Buiaq ssalboid poob yum usaib se pajel si [|esono awwelboid uonelsuasbay ay|

"J8g0J0Q JO pud 3y} Je pasijiqow 8q 0} J0}OeJjJU0D 8y} 10} 8|NPaYDS
uo SI Ydiym J0}oeljuod msu e ainooid o} Aemuspun si ssaooud jsnqos e se ‘Bunjes usaib o) pas
e wolj panoidwi osje sey Joaloid suonepuno yeious|y sy ‘pajel Jaque o} pal wolj paroidwi
sey joafoid uoneoojay jodaq ayl “lequaydag ul aoejd ooy Atewnd uoup ay) Joj Auowalad

uonelausboy

awwelbolid
leyded
Buluado ay} pue Arewnd }se3 ||IH |IIIN 1e @2e|d uaye} sey uons|dwod |eonjoeld se yons ‘Ajaaiisod
passalbold aney sjosloid jo sequinu \y "usalb se pajel sI swwelboid |eyde) |jesano ay|
"1803J0Q JO pus ay} Je sapiwwo) Buipienbajeg pue salleiqi] uoieonpg
‘s, ualp|iyD 0} SaoINISS SieaA Aje3 sy Jo) paplwgns aq 0} anp sl ase) ssauisng |INd V¥ 'GL0Z
awwelbolid

Alenuep ul g3 1o}y ase) ssauishg aulnQ |euly e aonpold 0} Aemispun si yiom ‘josloid s|INg
pue uoijeonp3 8y} 104 J8qo0Q0 Ul ‘@8)iWo) SauNWWo) pue s)npy Joj paledald sem aseo
ssauisnq e pue apew uaaq sey ssalboid jueoiiubis ‘uoneibayu| ai1e) |e100S pue yjesH sy} o4
‘sjo9oid Jo Jaquinu e ssoloe spew usaq sey ssaiboid ‘swwelbold uonewloisuel] 8y} UIYNIAA

sjuswwo)
‘Jsalajul JO seale

Aue Bunybiybiy ‘sswwesboid uoiewloysues) Jjun Asaaidg Buipnjoul soljojod swwelboud [19unod e jo Arewwns e sapinoid s|ge} sy "sswwelboid
uonelauabay pue spjing sjooyas Buipnjoul jeyde) ‘uonewlojsuel | uiyym safoud |e jsuiebe Buiwiopad si [1I0UNOD By} MOY sajelisn||l 8|ge} Mojaq 8y L

oljojuod 399foad |19Uno) 2z

uonewojsuel |

m:twum. snje}s oljojyiod
._mn wy [ pay :

102



‘Jels ||e Joy} Jayo, juswdojanap pue bBuiules)
Mau e Buonposul pue ainynas Buipeib pue Aed jusiedsuel) aiow pue Jaies|0 B ‘SUOIIPUOD
pue swua} bulAydwis sepnjoul SIy| ‘[1ouno) a8y} 1o} |opow piemal pue Aed mau e dojansp 0} swiy

‘ABajel)s ssadoe Jawo)snNd Mau e pue
‘Alanijap a21nI8s Ul 8]0l suoljesiuebio AJejun|oA JO uoljeulpio-09 J8)}aq ‘suolje)nsuod Ajjenb Japaq
‘aul|uo ejep |1DuUnoo aiow Jo uonedljgnd ‘ABojouyos) 92IAISS-}|8S SB2IAISS JaWOoIsnd mau Bulyoune)
‘@ouapuodsallod Ayjenb Japeq apnjoul asay| ‘sjosloid jualaylp jo abuels e ybnouyy ‘sniy Jo
[9A8) Jajealb e pjing pue [19unod 8y} yim Buijoelsiul Jo aoualadxs Jawolsno ay) anoidwl 0} swiy

"saoljoeld Bupjiom 9)1By pue suonewlojsuel) yun Alaaleq ‘sabueyd Aoljod YH ‘Juswabeuew
uonjewlojul pue Abojouyosa) uonjewuojul ul sabueyd JUSWUOIIAUS 3210 pasiwido ue jo Ino
-} pue ubisep ay} :sjuswabuelle |elolawwod Auadoid Buipnoul ‘saaijeiul / syosloud jo Jaquinu
e Buneuipiood ybnouyy AbBajesig uolesijeuoiey UOIBPOWWOIDY 32O By} JO Juswa|qeus ay|

‘Hodsuel | Jabusssed pue s}eaig ‘Sisep)
‘syled ‘Bunjied ssoioe Aouaiols 10 Aiaalap ao1Aas anosdwi 0} sjoafoud jo Jaquinu e Buijeuiplo-09

"uoijelbajul a1e) |e1pog pue yjesH pue ‘|| ul Buisaul ‘Joy a1e)
ay} Jo spuawalinbas ypum Aldwods o} sabueyos Alojnjels Bunuswsidwi ‘SH|IN Jua1Ind ay} JBAIIBP
0] sbuines Aouaioie :sswwelboid Jolew inoy ssosoe abueyd jJo awnjoAa jueoyiubis e Buusalaq

“yiom am Aem ay} 0} sabueyo Bunuawajdwi pue Ayyusapl 0} sassadoid Bulsixa

1e 3oo| yidap ul ue Buiyey Ag sswoono poob saljiwey pue ajdoad BunoA Bulnb jo sAem Bujeag
‘sjuswialinbal aAne|sibs| buibueyo ayy pue

Spaau ainjn} 8w sao1AI8s Bulinsug "s||I3S pue uoleanps Joj [spow AISAlISp ainjny e Je Buiyoo

MBIAIBNQ

piemay payiun

1auleg yum Buiosuuon

Buiyiop Jouews

awwelbold uonewlojsuel | ausodg 19aig

awwelbold uoijewlojsuel ] synpy

awwelboid uonewliojsuel] s uaipjiyo

nun Asaale@

‘2oe|d ul aJe (j]apow plemal pue

Aed mau e) 108loid piemay payiun pue (sjuswabuelie Bupjiom yels Buimainal) BuyIop) JapewsS ‘(Sjuapisal pue sIawolsnd Y)IM suoljoelsiul
Jno Bulwiojsuel}) 1uleg yum Bunosuuo) syosloid Buino-ssoio 9aly) se [|om Sse (Uoljewliojsuel | ausdg 1981} pue uoljewlojsuel |
S)Npy ‘uonewlojsuel | sualp|iy)) sewwelboid uonewloisuel | yun Aleaaq o Jaquinu e anoge sawwelbolid ay) 0} uonippe uj

s)o9foad Bunna-ssous A9y pue sawwelbo.id uonewsojsuel] pun Alaaiag

103




"JoeJjuod
S 3y} JO Jels ay} e 9,69 0} pasedwod g Jauenb ul paysies o isnl e Buipuels ‘A|gelapisuod pajelolajap aney s|lews 5S 9 10} sbuney
sabuajjeyn

*1aW0]sSNo 8y} 0] syjauaq Janlap ||im 1eyl sebueyd jybnouiq
aney — 10z Aepy woly 3y Aq uni jauleg ul auo ‘Loz [udy ul 59 Ag uni AiJUSA0D Ul BUO — SBJJUSD JOBJUOD MBU OM} JO UOIIONPOIIUI 8Y |

"z Jauenb pue | Japenb 1oy 9,08 anoqge ‘ybiy osje ale
sBuijes Jawoisno 8ok} 0} 8ok} S)| "UOIJOB)SIIeS Jawo)sno 10aye Ajjuedliubis Jou op sjem Jabuoj jeyy sysabbns yoiym ‘9,G GG e Buipuels spuooas
0Z ulyym Buuamsue [|eo aydsap ‘g Jauenb g | Jauenb Jano aaisod 9,8 z6 Ubiy Ajlaaissaidwi ue alam sbuljel aijuad ||ed SsaWwoH jauleg

‘10z Aey o1 Aieniga4 wol) abelane 9,61 e yym palsedwod
‘0,GO SEM UOIJOBISIIES ||BJBAO ‘i71.0Z AINf Ul Ing paje|ndjed uaa(q }aA Jou aAey s)insal g 1apenb "aseq mo| e wouy anosdwi 0} Buipels uoljoejsijes
Jawoysno Buimoys ‘Buibeinoous ale sjnsal ay} pue ‘i1z Alenigqa4 ul ASAIns uoioejsiies Jawolsnod aAIsuayaldwod e pajuswa|dwi 3y

'04,6G @Jam yolym sbunel suondo BuisnoH ay) ‘82IAIas 8y} Jo ainjeu ay) UaAIb ‘10) Jdeoxae uonoejsies 9,06 Peaoxa |e s)nsal
1S8le| 8y} pue (syJopN Jolepy ‘sBuma ‘uonipuo) ‘siieday) JaAlep Ay seoIAIes 8y} Jo abuel e SSOJoE UoIjoR)SljES iNSealW SSWOoH jauleq

"S8}nUIW U3} JO pJepuels Jo a)elodiod ay} ulyim Ajgqenopwod uaaq Ajjua)sisuod

sey sa)is 9say} Je JosIApe ]sijeloads e 9as 0] sawl Jlem Alepuodas pue ‘| 1auenb ul 9,79 woly z Jauenp) Ul %6/ 0} ¥eQ juing pue asnoH
Jouleg 0} SIOJISIA WOl pasealoul os|e aney sbuljel aAilsod "z 1auenb ul aaljisod 9,88 1e Buipue)s ‘panoidwi sey sbuijel aaiisod jo uoiodoud
3y} pue ‘pasealoul Ajipea)ls sey aJ3uad JoBju0d 50 Y} pash aAey oym siawolsnd Ag pajs|dwod sAsains uonoejsijes Jo Jaquinu ay |

"1 Jauenb ul souewlouad ay) 0} Jejiwis SI SIY} ‘SPU02aS 0Z UIYUM
alam 559 AQ palemsue s||ed Jo %8/ 19A0 isnp "ybiy ag 0} anuijuo ‘Spu0das OZ UIYIM paiamsue SOy} pue ‘palamsue s||eo Jo Jagquinu ay |
$9SS920Ng

*S19SNh 921AI9S pue sjuapisal s jauleg Jo 9oualIadxa Jawolsnd ayj o} pajejas sbuipuly A8y sesuewwns Jodas ay} Jo Uoldas sIy|

104

9ouaLIadx3y Jawolisny "¢




105

&P
=
04\/ "
RY B & R S N &
R an ) 2" oy > R o 2
o Nt & & o .q..ﬂum..a ] ,vﬁ.u/ o
J@h..” " o .@.ﬂv 409..7 ...u\.vnu:V, h%//MV Jh,_ﬂ\vv /V.G/N“ ..MJA/ .mmhu;r am. @V@
o o =~ g & & N a ) 3
AL A U o @
SFT
959
%8 oqIr oy UL KB 60D g
%69
; 4 %S
26 E %haE “ CAEE L o0l St Shit -
%9 T

1004 @ afelangn podo W

QoM JBA0 UDIIIEJS[1ES 3IIUSS

‘Aujeuonouny
10 1US)U0D 8)ISgam 8y} uey) Jayiel saloljod [1I0UNOD 0} 8)ejal SIaW0)SNO AQ US| SIUSWIWOD 8} JO %0z punole jey) Bunou yuom osje si j|

‘'sbunes anisod

1S00(Q 0} JE}S P|NOYS pue G|LOZ Ul youne| ||IM suoljoesuel} aindas 10} Ajjioe) Junoddy A\, Mau e Buipnjoul Ayjeuonjouny paoueyusa Ylm a)iSgam
M3U 8] ‘$10Z J1oqWBA0N JO pud ay} Aq paja|dwiod os|e aq [|IM YSaljal JUSjuod [N} B pue ‘a}ISqam S, |Iounod ay} uo yjuow Aiaaa paysiignd
usy} ale Yolym ‘siawoisno Aq pajpiwgns SjuswILWIOD Uo Joe pue peal 0} SN ||e @beinoous 0} spew Bulaq ale spoys BuloB-uQ "sielsibay
pue sadIAIag s, ualp|iyD ay} 1o} sbunel ysaybiy ay) yum ‘sabed josuo) Buipjing @ Buiuue|d pue Bunjied ¥ S}oa.S ay) aie seale }sayeam ay |

‘Jaquialdag ul JaAs sy 1sll) 8} 10} SBUO aAlleBau ay) papasoxe sbules aalisod
Ng ‘LO Ul %4 8y} 0} Buedwod o,z Jo Jnsal Z Japenb ay) yim mo| pakels aney ‘ajisgqam ayj ‘[auueyo Ajuonud s [10unod ay) Joj sbuney



Jule|dwod HSY/euU0S J9a1)S lof duo pue (L) HSD ‘(Z) sewoH jauleg ‘(z) skemybiHy
- 3y Jsuiebe altom sjuie|dwod pjaydn ay] "z Jauenp ul %G/ 0} | Jauenb ul o504 woly pasealsoul sey sjulejdwod ¢ abels pjaydn jo Jaquinu ay |

‘¢ obe)s Je pajeal) ale sjule|dwod Yolym juswiasioud Jabuolls pue Aoljod Jabuolys e Jo ynsal e se ‘pasealosp sey paje|dwod suonebisanul ¢
abejs Jo Jaquinu 8y} Janemol " | Jauenb o) pasedwoo z Japenb ul pasealoul sey uonebiisaaul ¢ abejs e Buysanbai siawoisno Jo Jaquinu ay |

‘SN || SS0Joe Sawn|oA sjule|dwod 8y} ul JUSPLUOD ale am

3ouo uonebysanul Jaylny 104 eale ue si pue (s||eo auoyds|a} a1juad JOBjuOD |Bjo] S,|IDUN0D 3y} JO %¢ | "SA sjule|dwod [e}0} S [1I0UNod 3y} JO %G¢E)
PaAIada) SBWN|OA 10BIUOD 8y} 0} ajeuoiuodoidsip si sjulejdwod sawoH Jauleg 4o |9A3] sIy] “(ZS) sanunwiwo) g synpy pue (Zg) auaog 19a.s
Aq pamojjoy} ‘z Jauenb ul snQ J1e o (8¢ L) sjurejdwod Jo swn|oA }saybiy ay} paniadal sawoH Jauleg ey} sAes ejep sjuiejdwod papuodal ay |

‘pajebisanul Aluadolid aq ueo sabueyd ubisap walsAs |eijusajod ey} ainsus 0} aoe|d aye)} 0} SPaau UoledIuUNWWOoD [euollippe jng ‘asuodsal ul
|lenuew uononiisul ue Buipinold ale 539 “19210 sjule|dwod ajesodiod ay) Aq papliodal ale yoiym sjuie|dwod uewspnquio pue ¢ abels 1o} ueyy
J3y}o ‘sawin|oA ul pual} 8y} 8quIOsSap 0} 9|qissod Jou si )l alojalay] "paiioal Ajjny aq o} |13s si yaiym ‘[udy aouis sjurejdwod jo buipodai-iapun
pajnqguiuod sey ‘swajqold [eaiuyos} pue Aljigesn s,wa)sAs mau ay} ‘Yels 9SO Mau ‘{10z [udy Ul WaISAS \YD MaU B JO uUoidNpoul 3y |
sjutejdwo)n

‘Juawanoldwi ue moys synsai ¢ Jauenb jey) ainsus 0} 9oe|d ul ind Buiaq ate sjuswanoidwil
Ing ‘quawabeuew sjuie|dwod S89SIBA0 YoIym eale adIAIeg Aljenp) alel ay} ul sajol Juswabeuew ul sabueyod pue sdeb 0} anp sem siy| 9,0/
panaiyoe Ajuo saijiunwwo) ¥ S}Npy INg ‘g Japenb ul 9,66 Sem sAep 0| UIylIm sauinbua siaquiaw 0} Buipuodsal uo asuewsopad abeiane ay |

"uonebBisaaul Jayluny salsinbail siyl Inq ‘elep 999
0} Buipioooe awWi} 8y} 40 %eG Aluo (Y1S) Juswaalby [aAaT] 82IAI8S BY) JaW WI0JgaM BIA PaAISdal S8sed Buisojo ul eouewlopad s,aus0g J9ai1S

A 4
PO O vo,ﬂr & u%. & & P ao.,y S PO v%, & .,5%. & & & .ao,w
AT S B T S S T R R 5 S S T TR 5 S R 5 S T S 5 S T T L
poco . : . : : _ : : L0
————— ——— 1 0T
2delany | oz
100 e 0g
. - - S— — - - — - . = = 3 - — . O_H___

09

106



107

"saljIAljoe JuswdojaAap pue Buluiel) ul sn 0} WAy} 3|geus 0} seale 92IAIas pajoaye ayj 0} papinold ate doys AisjsAw yoes jo synsal ay] ‘deb
Jua1Ind 8y} 8dnpal 0} S| wie ay} 0s ‘auoyd ay} JSA0 UoIINj0sal % 00| 9|geus 0} UajLIM ale SOLIeuddS 8y} Sk Inq ‘smau poob S| siy} uoljoejsijes
Jawoisno Jo Janup Alewd ay} sI UOIIN|OSAI SOUIS "SEale JUuSIayIp 8y} SSOIOe 9,1 g 1B ‘Sa109s }saybiy ay} buiab uonnjosal yim ‘salods }Samo|

3y} aAey 0} papusd) apnjijie ‘soleuads e ssoloy ‘(Ajaaoadsal 9, /G pue 9,0G) sbuiel wsijeuoissajoid pue apnjijie Jo }nsal e se Ajenoiued
sem yoiym (9, 1.9) siyauag BuisnoH 10} 1samo| ay} ‘(%) Buljohkoay pue aisep) 0] uolje|al Ul paAaIydoe Sem 3109S [|eJano }saybily ay| ‘sem yels

JO Jaqwiaw ayj Ajpualiy pue |euolssajold MOy pue ‘OLBUSS By} Ul Jamsue 1031109 3y} paydlew uaAlb aiem Aay) Jamsue ay} Jaylaym ‘palsamsue

aq 0} auoyd ay} 10} payem Asay} Buo| moy Buipnjoul eld}lo jo abuel e jsuiebe pabpnl si aousadxs yoeg 'saljuad Joeuod 3y pue Hg9H
ay} buijies ybnouyy Ajluewud ‘spun Aiaaiaq ayy Aq uspum soleuads Buisn ‘yels |1ounod Aq 410z Isnbny ul pajonpuod alem sdoys AleysAw Gg
Buiddoyg AisysAp

"z Jauenb ul suonebisanul
[ew.oy g 0} uostiedwod ul ‘| Jauenb ul uewspnquQ ay) Aq pajebiisanul Ajjlewuo) a1lam g ‘esayy 4O 'z Jauenb ul gz pue LD ul sauinbua
reldwod ¢ a1em a1ay] | Jepenb o} pasedwod g Jauenb ul pasealoap sey paAlgdal salinbua juiejdwod uewspnqu JO Jaquinu ay |



108

‘s[1ouno092 AJunoo Jo Aieyun

lle SS0I0€ %Z 9 O} PaJedwoD SIasn SOIAISS PAYSIES JO %819 YIM Sjienb | e Wopoq sy} ul pade(d si jauleq :(#4/€402) S92IAI8S Hioddns pue 81ed Yjim Jo uoidelsies
"s|1ounod AJunod

Jo Aiejiun [je ssouoe 9,68l 0} paledwod (y1/SL02) %/ 8L JO 8102S B yim ajiuenb € WONOQ 3y} Ul jauleg saoe|d 1odal au) (pL/sL0g) o411 40 Ayjenb pajejai-oied [eid0S
:MO[S( PalsI| aJe JJewyouaq vcm_mcm_ ur sj1ounod Alunoo pue Alejun syl mojaq se pajybiybiy sijauleg aiaym sainsesw ay |
‘paAjosal usaq Ajpusnbasqns sey siyj ‘Aisnb e 0} enp uinjal s, jauieg papnjoxs pasn ejep jeuoisiroid ay |,

(€1/2102) 1udy | 1e se 1s1| Buniem Buisnoy ayj uo spjoyasnoy [ejo |

(€1/2102) eaJE By UI ch___va ||e Jo abejuaaliad e se ‘||e -sbuijjamp juesep

(O €1/2102) Sluans abueyd pue swie|d Mau Jyauaq Xe) |1Iounod Aiyduaq buisnoy ssaooud 0} uaye} swi |

(#1/€102) uonendod jo peay Jad (Ajluo Yy 49) Sa21nI8s BuisnoH uo ainjipuadxa anuaAal |ejo |

s92IAI9G BuisnoH

(#1/€102) uoneindod 000001 Jad [eydsoy wouj a1ed Jo siajsuel; pakejag

I l
[]

%819 (#1/£102) Hoddns pue aied J1ay) yum SadiaIas asn oym ajdoad Jo uonoejsies [[elanQ
%L 81 (¥1/€102) 341l Jo Ayenb pajejai-aied |e10og
(#1/€102) uonendod jo peay Jad S82IAISS SHNPY UO ainjipuadxa anuaAal |ejo]

S92IAIBS S jInpy

(e1/Z10g) Buluiesy Jo yuswAojdwa ‘uoneonpa ui SiaAes| ale)

(£1/Z102) uoiEPOWWOIIE 3|ge)NS Ul SI9AE3| ale)

(€1/2102) 81 Jopun pabe uaip|iyd 0000l J2d ‘8jel Jaye paxoo| ualp|iyd

(€1/Z102) awi Juanbasgns 1o puodas e oy ueid uonoajold pliyd e Jo Joalgns ay} buiwosaq ualp|iyd jo abejuadlad
(€1/2102) sajeasaw} palinbal ulypm pamainal aiam ydiym sased uonoajold pjiyo jo abejusdiad
(#1/€102) (£1-0) uonendod jo peay Jad sadiAIas S, Ualp|IyD JO ainyipuadxa anuaAal |ejo |

S99IAI9S S, UalpjIiyo

(£102) Jaybly jo z |99 }ses) Je 0} paylienb y9-g| pabe uoie|ndod jo uoiodold

(Z1/1102) sidnd jo 9, e se sjooyos Alewd wolj SUOISN|OXd Jusuew.lad

(€1/2102) suieln pue ysijbug buipnjoui ‘Jusjeainba 1o 3899 e sepelb D-, 8I10W IO G JO JUSWBABIYDY
(#1/€£102) uonendod jo peay Jad 82IAISS UOI}BONPS UO aIN}ipuadxa anuaAal |ejo |

S99IAI9S UOIjeoNpgy

'71.0Z 4890300 1 8y} Uo Hoday aljgnd wiioju| 97 40 PeAxe uo paseq :@ouewlolad Jualind jo ajepdn gg

‘pue|Bug ul 1ounod Ajunoo pue Alejiun se ajqeabueys-uou si paldde Bunel

l] |
[] [] []

LOILCIDOSSY

JUSWILLIDNON alilenb sy "ainonas sjauleq 108)4al Apoalip Jou op Wodal 8y} ul eale Sa0IAISS 8y) :8}ou ases|d
|e>on ‘puejbug 0} saledwod Jouieg moy
JI sajelsn||l 8|ge) mojaq sy ‘elep aAneledw oo alojdxa 0} 2lgnd 8y} pue [19unod jauley Joj |00}
uonewloul ybnoayj sasialas Buinosdw) -uuoju] 97 Buiiewyousq wioyu] o7 a8yl 0} sjepdn ayj paysune| (YOT) UCIEIO0SSY JUSLLUISAOSL) [B00T] 8y ]

s9921A18S Aduoj) J10j anjep -Bunjiewyouag




98°'091

Jayuenb Jayuenb

V10l
Sjuelnsuo) 324nosay

2y ui pied  ay3 ui pred

(saahojdwa

LT'TLT

|euoseas
‘Aesodwa)
‘wia) paxi4

V1oL JUdUEWIAd

(ETE))

paidnaQ  paysiiqeis3

(ETE))
suonisod —
3y pue 5S) INOYUM
|eloL

v10Z 1aquiaidas Q€ 1e sy

(saahojdwa 12uno))
sIsbg 20y po ub Uo
)IOM 3)D1IapUN oYM
s1axy40Mm fo Jaquinp
314 SV 304NOS3IY

unodpesH
VNSVYI 319VIIVAV

(saafkojdwa [1ouno) uou) 4apinoid
a21n13S pabbubjy S,19Ulpg ULY]
13Y10 s312uabp |bUIaIX3 Ybnoyl
papino.d s3upyNSU0I JO SUILIAU]

ffp1s Aouabo fo sJoquinu [p1O]

SV 304N0S3H dSIN NON

[12Uno) uou) 43pinoid
321n13S paboupiy

Jno Aq papinoid j2u4pg J40f Buniiom paxif pup Aipiodway
$3UD3INSUOI JO Quaubwuad ‘saafojdwa Jo saquinu |p1o)
swiiayul ffois Aouabo 314 SV SNOLLISOd
Jouaquinu |pjo A3HSIN9Vv.1S3 DNIYINO0I SIFAO0TdINAG
INNOJAV3H

1s0d paysiiqpnisa uo buiAdnaso pup

210p 43310] b 10 PI|jIf
3q 01 p|ay 40 pa1a|ap
aq o3 anp ‘paidnaooun
aq Aobwi s3sod
asay ‘s3sod j1ouno)
j2U4pg Jo Jaquinu |p30]
314 SV SNOILISOd
a3Hsnavis3

SV 304N0S3y¥ dSN

Aluo gg7 0} .
a|qeoidde ainseaw : /N VIN VIN %8ET
Aluo gg7 o} sjqeoijdde .

alnseaw : /N Buluasiom %02 e
(2 M_om
sanjuoyny Arejun Jsyjo 8|qe|iene
8 SIOqUBIN IV ‘Y4dID) 0 0 JON Bleg
%cCL
ANM_ON
sanjuoyny Arejiun Jsyjo BUESE o .
%8 s1oquia IV ‘Y4d10) . 2 ees Lt
sAep 6
sjinsau snoiraid 10bue)
ay} aauis paroadul oy} wouy Juswainsesw
sey soueuwousd SI uInyno ayj} Jojeaipul
Bunjiewyosuag Jayjaym {ej moy Jo 8yj Jo jnsai
JO Juswissaesse uonenojed v Judoal jsoy
uy |aAel | aoueliep }nsay
JO uonoalq yobie]

¥102
VIN Jaquwiaydag je sy
_ ¥l02
%S I+ Jaquisidas — A|np
%001 VIN
9 7162 Jaqusidag
— €102 1890300
pajoadxa painseauwi
|ens] Ju usaq sey
alwanaIyoy ejep swejowll |
jabue] Pa43A09 polIdd

Sased |e}o} JO Y, Se Sased
suoinjejay 9akojdwzg - ysiy ybiH

0} |11qAed |ejo0} jo asueliep

10} paaibe pue pajajdwod

suone|ay 99kojdwg

3obpnq 1509

Ajuo yyeys ajqibia
SMB3IAD] 9oUBWIOLDd

SMOIADI 9OURWIIOWA] %

a9hojdwa Jad shAep asuasqe
SSaUY9IS JO Jaquinu abelaAy

Jojesipuj 9ouew.oad

(1eah Buijjoy)
aouepuapy

fiobajen

slojesipul pue sjabie} yH djelodiod Aay

109

M3IAIBAO d)elodlod -

9ouew.oyiad sjdoad/eainosay uewnH G




461| o1el) Jogquy Usal) e UaAIb aq ||IM ‘pParsIyoe
uaaq sey Juswaroidwi pajabie) 8y} JO 8I0W IO %08 SJ9UM INg ‘JoW Usad Jou aAey ey siebie] 1ybi| o1el) usals) e saAaIyoe Jow s Jey) 1ebiel Auy

sBunjea jybi| oiyyety Jojeslpul asuewopad [enpialpul Buionpoud 10j poylay ¢°¢

"aA0Qe 9|ge)} 8y} uo paseq ‘Bunel yjesy
[eJan0 Jaquiy pay e @onpoid pjnom siy} pue Q JO 8109S B 89 P|NOM }nsal }au 8y}
8y} JO BUO PanaIyoe yoes pue ajelojoalip Jejnoiued e ul siojedlipul Jnoj aiam aiay) §i ‘ajdwexs Jo4

s)y61| olyel) Inoy

—‘I

Go-

g0

I

Jojeoipul
yoea 10} sjuiod

110

"9)eJ0}08lIp Yoes 1o} 8109s Bules yjeay |jesano ay} eonpoud 0} Jayiabo) pappe uay) pue ‘Mojeq a|ge)} 8y} Ul UMOYS Se ‘papleme aie Yoes 1o}
SJUI0d "Pay pue Jagquy pay ‘Jaquiy Usalo) ‘usalc) :8|eds Jybi| oiyely Juiod noj swes ayj 0} Buipioooe pajybil oljel) si Jojedipul souewlopad [enpiaipul yoeg

sBuneu yjjeay josfoid pue ajdoad/yH ‘ueld ajelodion ayy buionpoud 10j poylain Z°€

‘paldde si

. . sal0os
L= ueyy sson 001 coso ¢ ueu} slon aouewoyad yH @ ue|d ajesodion
% | UBY] SIO[ %l -G0 %S0 > %0 (mojaq pue anoqe) 9, asuelieA

- 36w }abpnq |eydes @ anuandy

unel oYy sIounoo |[elano ay) pue syun AlaaleQ [enpiAlpul Moy saledisn||l mojaq 8|qe} ay |
pie2aloos pasuejeq s,jauteg uo sbunes 3ybi| oyjesy 1oj spjoysaiyyl L'

ABojopoyja\ "9




111

yoel} Juswanosdwil palinbai sanliold
uo Aylold SpaaN | uonuaaidy| | Buluolssiwwio)

uaalo Jaquy

ovy
"spun AJaAljag pue s1auoIssiLwo)

pesaT ay} usamjaqg saAjalgo pue sawoo)no paaibe ay) jsulebe ssaiboid Jo sjuswssasse aane)jenb ale sbuijes Oy saljliold Buluoissiwwo)
sBurjes sanuold BuluoISSIWWOI 10} POYISN ¥°S

(eoe|d
ul AjAnoe Juswanoidwi pue AIOis Jeg|d e sey 92IAI8S aU} JI) %G Z JO SS9IXa Ul JOU |[9ABl] JO UOI}0alIp aAlebau Jo [9AB) JO UOIOAUIP SAIJISOd °Z
‘pue ‘}abue) JJo 90| UBeY} SIOW OU pue 9%G< Usamiag |
:laquie pay se pajel aq 0} J0}eJIpul ue 1o

[9ABJ} JO uonoallp aAljsod Y g
‘pue ‘106ue} JJo 9,G uey} alow ON |
Jaquie uaalc) se pajed 9q 0} J0}edlpul ue 104

:laquie-pal e Jo Jaquie

-uaib e Jayjie 0} pepuslle Jojedipul eouewloMad pajel-pal B aABY O} SI 80IAISS B JI }JaW 8q 0} pasu eLIS)LI0 BuiMo||o) 8y} j0 Jjog "pajel Jaquie aq 0}
Ayenb Ajjeanewo)lne |jim [aAed} J0 UoioalIp aAlIsod e sey pue Jabie) JJo %0l Uey) sso| SI Jey} Jojesipul souelwlloyad Aue ‘elus)lio aAoge ay) 0} uolippe U
'S3|qe] Elep [enplAlpul Sy} ul

Jojeoipul 8y} apisBuoje UMOYs SI Yoes 10} UOLISYLIO Jaquie 8y} 10Jedipul Yoea 1o} Joyip sainseaw ajdoad/yH 10} sjybi| oujel) Jaquie pue pal Jo} eLsjuo ay |

‘uanIb
suosesaJ sy} yum podai ay) Ui pajels AJes|d aq (I )1 PaLINo20 Sey siy) aisyp) ‘19b.e) SUIBOUOO SNOLIOS %G
yoes 1o} s}oedsoud pue SSOUBISWNDIID [ENPIAIPUI SU} UO Paseq ‘Wea) 8oUewIopad : ////////////////
8y} pue sajelojoali] Usamiaqg uolssnasip ybnouyy pabueys aq Ajjusnbesqns ojews|qold | %08> %59< / N\ %
Rew Aay} ‘Uola}lIo 9A109(00 SIY) U0 Paseq aq |IM SIYBI| Slyeu) [eniul IS|IYAA SUISOUoD ans< 520
dosd awos yum 1obie) JesN | %001L> %08<
‘Iaquiy pay B aAaIyoe 0} ajdoad ¢@ JSES)| 1B PUB Jagquly USals) SASIYOE 0}
o/doad 96 1SES| Je 84 0} PEsU PINOM LINJNO S} OS ‘91 I 0Z 40 %08 ‘0z S! Juswanoidw | 12B1e} Buipesoxs 1o Bunssyy | iow 10 %00} uesid
pajable) ay) ‘eidoad gg| sI }06.e} ay) pue ajdoad g sI auljaseq ay} i ‘sjdwexs 104 _om>w__._on_m
‘Bunes Jequry uonduosag e orobaey | Y41 ouses
pay ke 106 |IM J0JBDIPUI 8} %G9 SA0QE ING %08 MOjeq S Juswanoidwi pejebie; sy J| 10 9,




This page is intentionally left blank

112



Directorate Revenue Breakdown

Adults and Communities

Births Deaths & Marriages

APPENDIX B: Revenue Monitoring by Delivery Unit

Community Well-Being Trans & Res Team (289) (289) (286) 3

Community Safety 1,965 1,965 1,976 11

Prevention & Well Being 6,967 6,634 6,630 (4)

Social Care Commissioning 918 934 932 (2)

Social Care Management (Adults) 1,396 396 399 3

Care Quality 1,363 1,349 1,614 264|The overspend is due to an increase in activity in
the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DOLS)
service as a result of recent Supreme Court
judgements. There is a risk that the year to date
activity may continue throughout the year. The
demand for this service is unpredictable and the LA
has a legal duty to support clients who come
forward for support.

Integrated care - Learning Disabilities & Mental Health 38,923 40,887 41,086 199|There is additional pressure resulting from 3 new
Ordinary Residence clients and an increase in
service users with Learning Disabilites compared to
last year.

Care Services - Older Adults - Physical Disabilities 38,403 38,862 39,141 278|The overspend is due to clients who were self
funders whose funds have depleted and are now
the responsibility of the LA - 14 in total. There
number of self funders who come forward is difficult
to predict but the LA has a legal duty to support
clients needs.

Dir Adult Soc Serv & Health 185 185 174 (11)

Total 89,669 90,761 91,503 741

Assurance

Assurance Management 562 527 527 -

Governance 2,582 2,631 2,559 (72)

Internal Audit & CAFT 861 900 904 4

|Total 4,005 4,057 3,990 (67)

Children's Education

E&S Management Team 195 195 161 (34)|Underspend relating to reduced costs in supplies &
services

Edu Partnership & Commercial Services 1,170 858 747 (110)|Underspend from managing the demand in the
schools causing concern budget

High Needs Support 5,806 6,067 6,547 479|Budget reductions not fully realised in 2013/14 and
the same underlying problems remain. Projects in
place in Streetscene and Education and Skills to
identify possible ways to achieve further savings

Schools Direct Management 11 - - -

Children's Education 7,183 7,120 7,455 335

Total (excluding SDM) 7,171 7,120 7,455 335

Children's Family Service

Management Team 660 479 479 -

Social Care Management 2,174 1,858 1,797 (61)|Underspend from staff vacancies.

Assessment & Children in Need 6,326 7,160 7,555 395|Overspend mainly from the use of agency staff to
cover permanent posts. There is also an overspend
identified in Direct Payments.

Childrens in Care & Provider services 20,829 22,253 22,204 (49)

Safeguarding & Quality Assurance 2,343 1,909 1,983 74|Overspend from the use of agency staff to cover
long term sickness

Commissioning & business improvement 3,006 3,276 3,201 (75)|Underspend from staff vacancies

Family Support & Early Intervention 5,689 5,564 5,662 98|Overspend mainly attributable to Children Centres

Youth & Community 7,200 7,861 7,767 (94)|Underspend from staff vacancies

Total 48,228 50,359 50,647 288

113



Commissioning Group

APPENDIX B: Revenue Monitoring by Delivery Unit

Commissioning Group 1,541 1,537 1,556 19|Overspend due to staffing costs in Commissioning
Management
Commercial 765 1,224 1,277 53|Overspend due to interim structure as previously
reported. Permanent staff now in place.
3,924 4,118 4,022 (96)
Overspends in staffing are offset by a combination
of an underspend in supplies and services and an
Deputy Chief Operating Officer overachievement of advertising income.
Commissioning Strategy 438 405 429 24
Total 6,668 7,284 7,284 -
Streetscene

Street Scene Management Team

Business Improvement 335 335 335 -

Mortuary 137 141 148 7|A slight overspend has resulted from keeping the
building maintained for public costs, as well as
meeting facilities costs such as telephone & internet
connections.

Transport ) 48 52 4

Parks, Street Cleaning & Grounds Maintenance 5,051 5,070 5,036 (34)|Higher than expected income from the hire of park
assets are helping to offset increasing costs
elsewhere within the service.

Street Cleansing 4,255 4,255 4,255 (0)[Careful management of staff costs should ensure this
service remains within budget.

Waste 1,944 5,178 5,238 60|Staff costs from the current service structure are leading
to an overall cost pressure which has exceeded a small
forecast overachivement of income from trade waste
customers.

Recycling 3,279 70 230 160|There is expected to be a shortfall in the £1.1m co
mingled recyclable materials income due to significant
market changes afecting the vlaue of this waste material
stream.

Total 15,650 15,747 15,944 197

Parking and Infrastructure

Street lighting

Parking and Infrastructure

Special Parking Account

(166)

(7.631)

(7.381)

63

(5,194)

©

2,187

The forecast underspend represents the
implementaiton of the controlled maintenance
system enabling a £0.2m saving to be delievered in
full this year.

A slight shortfall in sign shop income is expected
due to increased competition from external
competitors.

The SPA contribution to the general fund is
expected to be a £2.187m shortfall due to reduced
permit income (£1.02m) resulting from a judicial
review, £0.467m addiitonal contract payments to
ensure contractually required enforcement, and a
£0.606m reduction in PCN income due to reduced
volumes.

Total

(1,657)

(1,032)

1,143

2,175

Public Health

Public Health

14,302

14,335

14,296

(39)

The underspend of £39k relates to planned
contracted spend relating to Tobacco Control which
is no longer taking place (Royal Free Hospital
contract)

|Total

14,302

14,335

14,296

(39)

HB Public Law

Legal Services

1,782

1,952

2,126

The overspend relates to current income received.
Due to the variable nature of the work undertaken
the exact level and timing of income cannot be
accurately forecasted.

Total

1,782

1,952

2,126

174

114



APPENDIX B: Revenue Monitoring by Delivery Unit

Barnet Group

Barnet Group 3,338 4,254 5,209 5[A Temporary accommodation pressure has resulted
due to increasing demand and a high inflation rates
for emergency accomodation during 2014. The
demand is being controlled as far as possioble
through mitigations being undertaken within the
service.

Total 3,338 4,254 5,209 955

Re

Managed Budgets
Management Fee (295) (115) 157 272|The £0.622m overspend is due to a higher than
budgeted number of TUPE officers being funded
from RE's management fee. This is currently being
review and proposals of how to address this cost
pressure are being developed.

|Tota| 766 1,030 1,302 272

CSG

Baselining of income guarantees is currently taking
place and the income in certain areas such as
schools is lower than anticipated

|Total 22,153 22,922 23,070 148

Central Expenses

Corporate Subscriptions (58)|Underspend on subscriptions for LGA, London
Councils

Levies 31,252 31,252 30,046 (1,206)
Primarily NLWA & LPFA budgets higher than actual.

Central Contingency 13,182 6,879 6,879 -

Rate Relief 3 - - -

Capital Financing 22,816 22,816 22,816 -

Early Retirement costs 5,427 5,427 5,427 -

Local Area Agreement 105 105 101 4)

Car Leasing 2 2 - 2)

Corporate Fees & Charges 799 399 264 (135)|Underspend on audit fees

Miscellaneous Finance 424 426 392 (34)|Allowance for additional grants received (LSSG)

Total 74,324 67,621 66,181 (1,440)

Dedicated Schools' Grant

Childrens Social Care (DSG) 426 428 464

Early Intervention & Prevention (DSG) 6,173 5,965 4,739 (1,226) Underspend mainly from the take up in the 2 year
old offer

Education (DSG) (6,599) (6,393) (8,109) (1,716)|Net underspend relates to top up funding in high

needs due to more up to date information from out
of borough schools and the reduction in the use of
more expensive placements.

Schools Funding DSG - - - -
Total - - (2,906) (2,906)

Housing Revenue Account

LBB Retained (175)|This salaries budget is now used to offset other
pressures within the HRA, due to no staff being paid
from here anymore.

HRA Regeneration 1,126 1,126 1,326 200|The forecast represents possible unrecoverable
Regeneration staffing expenditure which is above
the Private developer agreement (PDA) value.

HRA Other Income and Expenditure (net) 1,549 1,549 1,536 (13)
Support Service recharges 576 576 576 -
Interest on Balances (80) (80) (80) -
HRA Surplus/Deficit for the year (3.346) (3,346) (3,346) -
Total - - 12 12

115



This page is intentionally left blank

116



olulwoq
passa|q /Alewd uolQ

(IHW) >Med Noouqiiin

117

(wiad) spieypeoig

wJiad - saoe|d Aewld juabin

pajeoojjeun- suoisuedxy Aiesodwa |

pajeoo||y - suoisuedx3 Aresodwa |

Aiepuooag 3 Aiewd uonesiuiapop

Kiepuooag g Alewid uonesiuIepol

uopeaNp3 s,uaIpYD

sanlUNWWOoY pue s)npy

1l

juess) Ayoededs Ayunwwo) SSd

BuiAl Juspuadapu) Joy a13us)

uonejeisu| ALDD

syIopN [ende)

L1dIMS

Bunsoo josfoid Jo ajijoid pasinay((961) 0S¢ ¥S 69€°C GlLET
Bunsoo josfoid Jo ajyoid pasinay|(1z) 62¢ 802 G9E'Y 951y
0 (o¥€) (ove) (0) ove
Gl/¥L ul pauinbal jou Jebpng
sBupsoo yosfoid pasiney 0v6 (ov6) 0 0 0
9L/GL Ul suopuslal pasiney .
$BUns0o 108l01d pesInGY (L1) ov6 £Z6 8.0°L Gsl
(zes) 69 (g9v) LS1°S 129's
swweibold uonesiutapopy
ays ul Buiuiq g uaydyy| o} Juswanow Buluiq g UsYIH . .
S310M B3 10} [00LDS LICY UORNGLILOD (zgsg) 69 (cov) 161°G 129's
91/510Z Ul anp 2inby uonusiel o} Juswisnipy
(008) vie (98¥) v.5°C 090°¢
"yosloud (005) (005)
14IMS aus Jo Hed se palojuow aq pjnoys josfoud siy | 0 00S. 008, 0 005
"90IAJ8S pa| puewad|0 0 0 €18 €Ls
1742
urjuads Ajiny a9 0} pajoadxa st JoBpnqg sy} Jey pasinpe sey|o 0 0 661 661
Jobeuew josfoid sy} pue Aemuspun Ajpuaiino sijosfoid sy
"S}S0D UOIIUB02aY d)e|d JoquiNN dREWOony pue (¥10Z aunf
WioJy) J0BJIUOD A DD MBU BU} Jo s}s02 uoiejuawaldul AlYIuopy
0 14%] 14%] 718 0
0 0 0 0 0
‘SL/pL Ul paunoul
a4 0} pajoadxa jJou a.e s}s02 Jeak ||} ‘Ynsal e sy "pasieul|(008) 0 (008) 8v/ 8¥S'L
Butag Apuauno st | 4IAS JO Juswaoe|dal sy} Jo) J1oeju0d ay |
papuswwoday pua (suopnmpsang
abeddi|s papuawwodady puadg suope|sg jaBpng pasinay L ieek 03 3se00104 pue abeddijg
pajsanbay B suonsjeq / suonippy 40j uonjeuejdxy paje.a|a29y / abeddis \m:o_.u_uu< wioJ) doUBLIBA S1-b10Z *|aul) 326png
o SL-¥102Z Juduny

sanlUNWWOoY pue s)npy

swuwelboud Aq uinpno swwesboud Bupoyuow [eNde) - O XIANIddY

uonduosag-qnsg

uonduosaqg awweiboid jeyden




Remuie4/AemypoN - | oAe,

—l

IH sBumuM - | 0ﬂm_>>

saoe|d Mewid Juabin

pajesojeun

sndwe) |IH Xe0

Awapeoy uopuo

Awapeody UsIA)

Ypuo

Jooyos Asewild abpisQ

100YoS sjueju| Oy s,ydasor
1S g Jowunp QY s,ydesor 1

AOYEA SIog

looyos ybiaieo

Aewud uipepn

suyor 33 pue skiely 1S

uoiepuNo4 yelous|y

syied yomsunig

siounp
pue sjueju| |ley Ssop

0 0 0 174 1 %4
0 0 0 (014 1014
(€98'v1) (ss%) (8Le‘sL) {4 AT wei'se
SalWapEDY UOPUOT pue UaIAA Jo} palinbai }obpng ) )
suyor 1S s,Auep 1S ' uolQ Joy adA} Buipuny o} Juswisnipy vvee (e0L'2) (65¥) 0 6sY
0 06¢ 0S¢ 0sc 0
Sull Swi Buliq JOIOBAUCD LM Sull u! Sbeddys (66€'S) oLy (686't) 822 YARAVA
S9|gEJUNOWSP JO [EAOWSI O} Uolje|as ul swwelboid o} uolppy
91/G1 OJuI pajyoidal 300 uononsuod|(6£1°9) 002 (6€6'S) 6€€’L 6.2'L
auN[ JO pus JO d)ep HE)S SHIOM 3U} YIIM aul (ssv'e) Ss6°€ 005 00s 0
0 (gs6'c) (gs6'c) (0) GS6'c
J8lq . . . .
Buiyojem ay} Joj }se9810) MOJ} Yseod uo paseq jsanbal abeddig (6er) 0 (6er) 8v0L 8le
91/G1 Ul 8np suopuajual 1o} paiinal abeddis|(5z) 0 (g2) 8ve €€
aunbiy uonusyal 0} Juswisnlpy
J0BJJUOD BWwes ay} ulyym sjiyoidal yobpng L (1) (¥) st 6vl
2inbly uonuajal o} Juswisnipy
JoeJjUOD Bwes ay} ulyym ajiyoidal yebpng ) 604 804 209 ey
(ov1) 0SS 14014 9e8'e zev'e
(8es'L) 00/ (8e8) .16 GS/'L
2inbly uonuayal o} Juswisnipy
JoeJjUOD Bwes ay} ulyym ajiyoidal yebpng s¢ ov 9 vs9 685
2inbly uonuajal o} Juswisnipy
JoeJjUOD Bwes ay} ulyym ajiyoidal Jebpng (ee) (801) (or)) sv. 588
9PUBWILLIODD; ua (suopnmpsang
abeddi|s papuawwodady puadg pap b jaBpng pasinay p pue abeddijg
suonsjeq Faeak 0} }sesaiog
pajsanbay B suonsjeq / suonippy 40j uonjeuejdxy paje.a|a29y / abeddis \m:o_.u_g«. wioJ) doUBLIBA S1-b10Z *|aul) 326png
o SL-¥102Z Juduny

uonduosag-qnsg

uonduosaqg awweiboid jeyden

swwelboid Ag uinyno swwesbold Buuoyuow [eyded - O XIANIddY




0 0 0 00l 00l |eroue@ 3
—

g |
0 0 0 z6¢ z6¢e syealg Hoys

891Al9G SaljiWey S,uaIp|yd

(zZLs‘Ly) (gsv) (996°21) £6.L°9¢ 69.L'PS uonesnp3 s,uaipiyd
(99) (29) (ez1) el §6S°L sawiayag JaYl0
0 0 0 009 009 pun4 [eyde) s|es|y [00YoS 9814 Juelu|
swuweiboid uonesiuIapoy )
U3 Ul BUILIC] ' USUOYY| O} JUBLISAOW BUILIC 9 USUONY (92) (£9) (c6) (0) €6 Buiuig 9 usyoyy - 401
0 0 0 (0) (0) N3S 61-¥1 [ended pajebie]
dI0Sd uo sjoajep Joj s3so) |Nd Joj ebeddiis|(0g) 0 (0€) ze8 z98 swweliboid [eyde) Aewd
(988°1) (988°L) i g swweiboid
EET g 988} 268 1801 uoisuedx3 Aiepuodag jJusueuwrniad
869]j0D) sSUYD Joj uonedolle 196png |ZHs (2v5°2) 0 0 0 pejeoo|eun
0 005 00S 00S 0 se|bnoQ douysig
Aynaiseay Joy pasnbal puads pajese|eooy |y 0 Lt Lt 0 N¥d Jo uonesojey
0 0 0 0 0 uoisinold 6L-v| Alepuoosg meN
suiweiboud [eubo (eze'y) ‘ (125'2) ' ‘ ooyos [eoedg ebpo e
ueyy Jeje] Buisq s)Is UO Sjep LEYS Lyim aul| Ul ajyoides Jbpng| £ct ¥ esLh bse ssel Leee 100U2S [eldoRds 8bpoT eo
91/G1 ul ainBly uonusyal o} Juswisnlpy|(c9) ool A z6l'e GSl'e uoydwog
91/51 Ul ainby uonusial o} Jusuwisnipy/|(oy) 0 (ov) 196°C 100°€ Ileuidon

91/G1 Ul 8inby uonusjal 0} Juswisnipy
"apesbdn syiom jo adoos ul sbueyd|(0g) 06l ovl 598 Gzl 86900 ssuyD
B pUE S)I0M 9DIAISS [BUOIHIPPE ‘SYIOM punolb usasiojun

(sz1) 0 (sz1) 6EY vi9 PIINg3y Sjooys jauleq jse3
8|geyns aq (s/1) 0 (521) 6eh ¥19 Repeie 109loid % Jouleqg yseq
1M suoiipuod punolb usym Bulds sy} ul soe|d axe} 0} SHIOAA .
awwelsbouid
0 0 0 154 Sy juawysau| [epde) sjooyog Aewrid
9PUAWILIODD ua (suopnmpsang
abeddi|s papuawwodady puadg pap b jaBpng pasinay p pue abeddijg
suonsleg 1eak 0} 3sesaloy uonduosag-qnsg uonduosaqg awweiboid jeyden
pajsanbay B suonsjeq / suonippy 40j uonjeuejdxy paje.a|a29y / abeddis /SUOHIPPY wioJ) doUBLIBA S1-b10Z *|aul) 326png

Si-¥102T Juaiing

swuwelboud Aq uinpno swwesboud Bupoyuow [eNde) - O XIANIddY



4L - shemybiy

sawayog Jolepy

=)
s TSONH;

swayos Ajenp Jiy Sl-¥L0Z 141
juswiessy abpug Sl-¥L0Z 141
Ajjiqisseooy dojs sng Sl-¥10Z 141
ueld :o:ﬁ:m&m_a—wﬂ\_mwwm Fpioe 4L
Sl-¥102 141

ueld uonejuswsaduw| (007

Z1-110T syIop Bugeus

syJopp Bulgeus

un A1aaneq 3y

sjooyas Aq pabeuepy sawayog |eyden

awwelboud YA pajioiuod Ajjeso]

0 (0s€) (0s€) 162°L 1v9°L
sawiayds ¢10g paje|dwod uo puadsiapun|o (8z1) (8z1) oL 8el
0 (34 (34 34 0
uoneoojie a6pug MaN|0 0z 0z 0z 0
'SaWaYos dI7 8y} jo sssalboud
uo Buipuadap teak mau sy} 0} psemuoy dijs Aew Buipuny siy | 0 00s 00s 00s 0
0 0 0 122'S 122'S
0 0 0 0 0
sawiayds ¢10Z paje|dwod uo puadsiapun|o (582) (582) 687'L v.2'e
0 0 0 S S
0 0 0 14 4
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
95¥'61
(1ev'L) 0 (1ev'L) 150°C TYs'e
0 0 0 785 85
91/G10Z Ul 0USWWOD 0} 8IS oMy Je sxiom [eyded|(1L6+°1L) 0 (9] 99/ 1522
0 0 0 Lel el
0 0 0 1L 1L
(suonnmysqng
abeddig papuawiwodady puadg vw_u:wm.””“”MM jaBpng pasinay L ieak 0} ummoh““ pue abeddis
pajsanbay B suonsjeq / suonippy 40j uonjeuejdxy paje.a|a29y / abeddis \wco_.u__u_u< wioJ) doUBLIBA S1-b10Z mr-“”_o.w HM_—“”M

sjooyas Aq pabeuep sawayog [eyden

891AI9G Saljiwey S,uaip|yd

Jajjo pjo Jesk g

KbBojens saueiq)| jo uonejuawsaidwy]

waysAg uonuaniau| Aueg

swalsAg uoieonpg

swuwelboud Aq uinpno swwesboud Bupoyuow [eNde) - O XIANIddY

uonduosag-qng

uonduosag swwesbouid jeyden




souoz Buiyied pa|joiuo) - Joy ojel] peoy

i
-uou - sAeml
BL 914_._

abeulelq

suadeleg

pun4 sjouiod

(z eseyd) syuswaned

Sjuswaned

FNNYHOO0Hd SHHOM FONVYNILNIVIN AINNVTd SAVMHOIH

(z @seyd) Aemjoo pue Aemabelie)

uonusjey sypsfoid ALDD

sawayds paja|dwiod
Uo sjusWHWWOY Hodsuel| Buipuelsino

uonejuswaldw| ue|d [oABIL

swweiboid [enuuy

skemjoo pue Aemeberen

swweiboid dIH 11/010Z

juswisanu| skemybiH

leyidsoH ajepuijod -Apnis Ayjigisesd
Mmainay Buniied zd0 elepuljod

swwelboid syuswanoidw| ueuysspad

juswanosdwi|
uonepodsuel] olgnd

SITOTUISEIJUT
pue uonesijeubis
9 Juswanosdw)

abueyoiayul
uonels sjepuljod

sauoz Buped pa|jouo)

sabpug
Kemjiey Jo uolONIISUOIDY

ealy juswdojaraq olepuljo)

uoReso|ly
peoy Asjsind g-,002

juswabeueyy oel |

UOISSIWIWOD Ul Joy Buniepn|o 62 62 1Sl (44"
(¥8) ovi 99 6588 £08‘8
0 0 0 g8y S8y
0 0 0 GG SS
0 1432% 143 143 0
pajoadxa puads |In4 (0 0 0 0/8'L 0/8'L
0 0 0 000°}L 000°}
saulT g subig 10} 8USDS J981)S O} JUBWBAO |0 (002) (002) oy ove
pajoadxa puads |In4 (o 0 0 I 44 fA44
Jeak siyy xoeq pred aq o} A@xIjun spuny uoRusley ((¥8) 0 (¥8) 0 8
0 0 0 € €
UOISSIWIWOD Ul Joy Buniepn|o 14 9C 214" (44"
0 0 0 060°'C 060
UOISSIWWOD Jual|o Jo} Buiiepn |0 0 0 G6G G669
UOISSIWIWOD Ul Joy Buniepn|o 0 0 Sl Sl
UOISSIWIWOD Ul Joy Buniepn|o 0 0 292 29¢
UOISSIWIWOD Ul Joy Buniepn|o 0 0 €0l €0l
UOISSIWIWOD Ul Joy Buniepn|o 0 0 9G¢ 9G¢
UOISSIWIWOD Ul Joy Buniepn|o 0 0 0S 0S
UOISSIWWOD Jual|d Jo} Buiiepn |0 0 0 vl 14
: :
UOISSIWIWOD Ul Joy Buniepn|o 0 0 514 34
pauoissiwwod aq o} Buniem Apuaiind s yiom ybnouyy
Jeak yoes uopeodo|e ay} Jo Yyl e puads Ajjesjuyosy pjnoys 0 0 0 ilde 6L
(suonnmysqng
abeddi|s papuawwodady puadg vou:wwﬁ%“ww jaBpng pasinay L ieak 0} ummoa_w“” pue abeddijg
pajsanbay B suonsjeq / suonippy 40j uonjeuejdxy paje.a|a29y / abeddis \m:o_.u_uue. wioJ) doUBLIBA S1-b10Z m—.“ww_wv uuww_m”nmv

uoioNJISU0DaY ABMOOS

swwelboid Ag uinyno swwesbold Buuoyuow [eyded - O XIANIddY

uonduosag-qnsg

uonduosaqg awweiboid jeyden




pajijoid-al aq o} 3ebpng - vlnIss pe| puewaq|(0S) 0 (09) e ¥8 Kyanoud jen4 - 903Q

o~

[qV}

—
pajijoid-al aq 0} }96png - so1AIes pa| puewaq|(000°Z) 0 (000°2) 9.8 9/56'2 sauadold Adwg
paijoid (00) 0 (00%) 195 196 juswisouByUT Wwnuojewsal) 3 Aljewa) UopusH

-9y 0} 19bpng - 91-G10Z Ul PaLINd20 8q 0} SISO [enusiod ’

(0ss‘t) 1S (66%°L) 0002 66v°C sjoafoud sanioed pajqesiq
pajyoid-a1 aq 0} }obpng - 8d1nI8s ps| puewsd|((0G5°L) 3¢} (66%°1) 0002 66¥'c juelo sapljioed psjgesiq
9¢2'e Sov wo'e 1128l 0.5'vL uonesauabay pung [esousn
0 0 0 GS. GG Aejysul4 YHON - pun4 uopuoT J8inQ
0 0 0 199 199 POOMB]YOLID - pung UopuoT J8inQ
(000°L) 0 (000°L) 000°} 0002 uone)s yul sawey |
(006°1L) 0 (006°1L) 00l 0002 aJue) umo|
0 0 0 0S 0S juswanoidw| AemybiH uopusH ISSAA

aIy0.d-a1 8q 0} }obpng - 1osloid ul Aejaq|(#98°1L) (658°1) ¢ siusuisnoidul uoljessusbay yed weyel
pall q 0} 396png - 1oofoud ut Aejeq|(vos'L S 698'L 002 655 sumonnsely| H ¥ Hed weyein
JUSWSOUSWWOD }JoM pue juswaalbe diysiauped Yym aul| U |005'2 0 0052 000'S 0052 syJom Buipjing uonelauabay 3led weyelo
0 00¥% 00¥% 00¥%'L 000°} JuawWalinoold - OXg

‘Juswia) abieye] 0} 19| A}s
B pue ssaulIsng Jajsuel} aysem uIano9o ayy st Aadoad ayy (0008 0 000°‘8 000’8 0
"aseyoind Apadold e 0y spiebau ul si puads pajelsjeooe ay|

uonsinbe pue| u0) Buipund - OXg

paubijess aq o} 32Bpng - sjuswauinbai josfoid ul sbueyd|(00S) 0 (009) 19 199

pajiyoid-a1 aq 0} 3ebpng - Josfoid ui Aejeq|(000°2) 0 (000°2) 8.y 8.¥'c uonesauabey pund [esousD
(8) (c81) (992) 9ve‘9lL zL9‘9lL juswuosiaug [ejol
0 62 62 061 191 Bunjied
UOISSILILIOD JUl[0 40} Buiep|o 0 0 6€ 6€ Bunyred

9PUAWILIODD ua (suopnmpsang

abeddi|s papuawwodady puadg pap b jaBpng pasinay p pue abeddijg
suonsleg 1eak 0} 3sesaloy uonduosag-qnsg uonduosaqg awweiboid jeyden

pajsanbay B suonsjeq / suonippy 40j uonjeuejdxy paje.a|a29y / abeddis /SUOHIPPY wioJ) doUBLIBA S1-b10Z *|aul) 326png

Si-¥102T Juaiing

swuwelboud Aq uinpno swwesboud Bupoyuow [eNde) - O XIANIddY




2uadg J9a1IS

yseuey S|

yainyQ s Arey 1S ‘[eHows|y yBumue)

sainses|\ Aousioly3 ABloug

}I730deQ suy

nun Asaaneg 989

juswabeuey jossy

aJjjua) AJunwwo)

uoneoojal Jodaqg

3Jjua) $s829k Jawoisn)

dnoug Bujuoissiwwon

Jun Aiaaijeqg 3y [ejol

pung [eiauas) - Buisnoy |ejol

0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 /102 /102
‘Junowe
JuswWapes paaibe mau 0} anp ODDY WOJj UOHNGUIUOD Y00 L F
pue Japea| sy} Aq pawuuod se 4003 Jo dn spew suonppy (£e9) 002 (Lev) 9es €56
a|iyoud 309foud ypm auy ur sbeddi|s
SYyIdS peaibe Amau puny o} puads psjels|eooy|0Z9 0 029 8¥9 8¢
"921j0U JSyUNy [jun paddils . . .
usaq sey joafoid syl ‘GL/p)L Ul payoadxe ainypuadxa oN (c66°2) 0 (c66°2) 0 662
(8v9°L) (019) (8s2°2) veL'Le 266°6€
(¥95‘1) (82v) (z66°L) 88¢°LT 08g°€T
(0s2‘€) (v88) (reL'y) 9LLL oLe's
9PUAWILIODD ua (suonnmipsang
abeddig papuawiwodady puadg pap S— oz jaBpng pasinay o3 mmuaﬂo pue abeddis
pajsanbay B suonsjeq / suonippy 40j uonjeuejdxy paje.a|a29y / abeddis He1eq wioJ) doUBLIBA s 4 “|oui) 396png
[suoppy SI-¥102 SL-pL0Z 3udLINY

syoafoad J8y10

swuwelboud Aq uinpno swwesboud Bupoyuow [eNde) - O XIANIddY

uonduosag-qng

uonduosag swwesbouid jeyden




subig pue saul

N
e

juswdinb3 pue ues|) Buudg/uwniny

awayog Hoddng uonas|j0) Apespn

Buisues|)

sisep

saoedsuaaln

suspie9
Auanag bunueyd sai)

Bunueld @a1] pue saoeds uadQ ¥ syied

e1G€ Sed Bupem
jouwdinba Aejd maN

Bunueld @ai1] pue saoeds uadQ % syied

(g9 Duusy
JO UoljE||e)SUl B SHNOD
SIUUS) JO JUBWIYSIGINBY

Bunueld @ai1] pue saoeds uadQ % syied

2652 211u8)
umo | aiembp3 seal] 084S

Bunueld @ai1] pue saoeds uadQ @ syied

098213 q0vC + 96 C86.3F
e/£Z JuUswysiginjas sunoY
sluua] Jed Aingaiembpg

Bunueld @a1] pue saoeds uadQ % syied

58T
ashoH HnoY p|O e Buiousy
Aiepunog mau jo uone|elsu|

Bunueld @a1] pue saoeds uadQ % syied

108(0id ealy
Keld 904 ed uopusH

Bunueld @a1] pue saoeds uadQ % syied

jyooloid Ayioud
904 - Yed IYspIyd

Bunueld @a1] pue saoeds uadQ @ syied

Hed
AingasemBp3 Jo anoibauolg
ul sanijioey syods g Aeiq

Bunueld @a1] pue saoeds uadQ @ syied

109foid
Yed Jed 3 ydld Jleyidod

Bunueld @a1] pue saoeds uadQ % syied

sled 3xo00d Aepp eley

Bunueld @ai1] pue saoeds uadQ % syied

Yied Asjyoul{ YHopN ‘peoy Aoiad

aJnjonJselyu| sed

$}9110} 91jqnd - 8SNOH HNOD PIO

Yed Jed jleydo)

. "Jeak }xau pasn aq 0} Junowe pJemio} (05) 00z 051 051 0
diis ‘swweiboud sauiq @ subiS [enuue ue Joj ainbly pasinay
(897) 0 (897) e SLL'T
0 0 0 0 0
‘JuesB SSOM Jo puads pajyoiday (052) 0 (052) 106 LGL°L
0 0 0 0 0
puads ulq pajyoiday|(8Lz) 0 (812) ore'l 18G'L
(8€¢) €8 (s52) 192 L10°L
0 0 0 4 4
sanss| Joesuo9 0} anp abedd)s s|qissod|(0z) 0 (02) 0 0z
0 0 0 (01 0¢
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 14 74
0 0 0 ol ol
0 0 0 [4°] [4°]
0 0 0 0§ 0g
Janl[ap 0} Jojoeuod oN - Aejeq|(s.) 0 (52) 0 S
0 0 0 89 89
0 0 0 Lcl 345
Ae/udy Ui passaisp aq 03 anp joafoid|(59) €8 8l 8l 0
ul s}soo seale Aeid % |leyydo) ‘siuusa] died dIA ‘dD cM%:NmF_.r_ (6eh) 0 (e<t) s 4dd
senss| Jueus} gyed o} anp abeddils s|qissod|(0y) 0 (o) 0 oy
0 0 0 0ol ool
0 0 0 vl 143
(suonnmysqng
abeddi|s papuawwodady puadg vov:wwﬁ%“ww jaBpng pasinay L ieak 0} ummoa_w“” pue abeddijg
pajsanbay B suonsjeq / suonippy 40j uonjeuejdxy paje.a|a29y / abeddis \m:o_.u_g«. wioJ) doUBLIBA S1-b10Z *|aul) 326png
S1-¥102 Juduny

Med
s,ybnolog ay} 4o Xis 0} sjuswanosdw|

uonduosag-qnsg

swwelboid Ag uinyno swwesbold Buuoyuow [eyded - O XIANIddY

uonduosaqg awweiboid jeyden




Lo
(9V]
sieday - eS|\

uoljesauabay

peoy s|jiAueI

(pY AuelS) [ox3) S3HIOAA Jolepy

V¥H - BuisnoH

(VyH
Buipnjox3) swweiboid jeyded jejol

BuisnoH

peoy eipuexaly

swiwelboid Juswysigingey [8}soH

0 0 0 9le’l 9le'l
'SMOPUIM MJed sweyels) Joj palinbal yabpng . .
paonpay ‘UOPUSH 1S9\ 1B SHIOM UOI}el0dapal JO Uole|j@oue) (0s8) 0 (0s8) glle Eeoy
Gl/ylL Ul pesesjal
aq 0} Ajyj1jun ‘uoiesiynoal syaep Buipuad play uonualey (eve) 0 (eve) 05 €62
'91/510Z 0} syJom palisjep swwelboud Juswaseldal
JO0J pasinal OS]y "palapisuod Buiaqg ale sjesieisdde uondo|(zgg) 0 (z88) /€97 6158
Jayuny Isjiym sjely Aeempeoug eQ juing o} sylom palisjeq
(¥sv‘se) (092) (v12's2) gcl's8 6eV'LLL
(8¥1) 9 (zv1) (412 V62
S]S0D) UONUB}Y [BUOHIPPY|0 9 9 o¢ ve
pajyoidal (8vL) (8vL)
aq 0} }9bpng - sjuswalinbai joafoid ur abuey) 8l 0 8l cet oze
0 0 0 09 09
0 0 0 09 09
(0s) 002 oSt [4:] 4}
0 0 0 cl cl
9PUAWILIODD ua (suonnmipsang
abeddig papuawiwodady puadg pap S— oz jaBpng pasinay o3 mmoaﬂo pue abeddis
pajsanbay B suonsjeq / suonippy 40j uonjeuejdxy paje.a|a29y / abeddis He1eq wioJ) doUBLIBA s 4 “|oui) 396png
[suoppy SI-¥102 SL-pL0Z 3udLINY

dnoug jauleg

abelio)g |ang

sue] abelo}s [en4

Bujied

saulyoe|y Buiyied

swuwelboud Aq uinpno swwesboud Bupoyuow [eNde) - O XIANIddY

uonduosag-qng

uonduosag swwesbouid jeyden




126

(289°s) 0 (z89°s) 286°LE $99°L¢ WVYH - Buisnoq
psjediolue uayj isey BuissaiBoud Josfoid|((ze6'e) 0 (zes'e) 006°'C zes'e SOWOH 8|qepioyy MoN
0 0 0 086°L 086'L sBue pue spiop
‘speay }9Bpnq JaYio Uo puadsiapun SSaIppe o} PIEMIO) . .
JuBnolq spalold Jusweoe|del sue) Jayem g i leuonippy| 2S¢ 0 sce gce vl Lol vl SVO /38N

papuawiwodsy
abeddig papuawiwodady puadg S,
pajsanbay B suonsjeq / suonippy 40j uonjeuejdxy pajela|a29y / abeddils \m:o_.“__“_u@

swuwelboud Aq uinpno swwesboud Bupoyuow [eNde) - O XIANIddY



APPENDIX D: Capital programme funding adjustments

Directorate Year Capital Programme Funding Type Funding Detail if if Slippage/ Explanation for request
Additions/Dele Accelerated
tions Spend
Amount| Amount (£'000)
(£'000)
Street Scene 2014/15 Percy Road, North Finchley |Grant £18 New addition to the programme
Park
Street Scene 2014/15 Percy Road, North Finchley |S106 £65 New addition to the programme
Park
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Bridge Assessment Grant £20 New bridge allocation
Commissioning Group 2014/15  |Customer access Centre |Capital Receipt (£2,992)|Slippage in line with project delivery
2014/15
Commissioning Group 2014/15 |Community Centre Revenue (£253)|Project Briefly on hold, slippage in line
with project delivery
Commissioning Group 2014/15 Depot Relocation Capital Receipt £465|Accelerated spend required due to new
planning application and change control
costs.
Children’s Family Services 2014/15 Implementation of libraries |Capital Receipt (£1,365)|Delays in project due to procurement
Strategy and purchase timings
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Infant Free School Meals  |Grant DFE (£4)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Capital Fund payment in 15/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 TCF - Kitchen & Dining Grant Basic Needs (£26)|Slippage required for potential costs in
15/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Primary Capital Capital Receipt (£30)|Slippage required for payments due in
Programme 15/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Christ's College Grant Basic Needs (£52)|Slippage required for retentions due for
payment in 15/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Copthall Grant Basic Needs (£39)|Slippage required for retentions due for
payment in 15/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Compton Grant Basic Needs (£61)|Slippage required for retentions due for
payment in 15/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Permanent Secondary Grant Basic Needs (£100) Additional contractor costs
Expansion Programme
Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Compton Grant Basic Needs £100 Additional contractor costs
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£4)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Danegrove Primary School payment in 15/16
(Ridgeway) - window
replacement
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£5)|Slippage required for retentions due for

Cromer Road Primary payment in 15/16
School - dining hall,
windows, roofing and
external works

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£4)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Courtland Primary School - payment in 15/16
window replacement & roof
renewal

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£2)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Underhill Primary School - payment in 15/16
roofing works

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£5)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Summerside Primary - payment in 15/16

Rewire design and tender,
Electrical upgrade

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£6)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Friern Barnet Rewire & payment in 15/16
Electrical Upgrade

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£5)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Danegrove Primary School payment in 15/16
(Ridgeway) - electrical
upgrade

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£1)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Hampden Way Nursery & payment in 15/16
CC rewire

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |ModPri&Sec - 13/14- St |Grant (£2)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Margarets Nursery & CC payment in 15/16
rewire

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£6)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Wessex Gardens Primary payment in 15/16
school

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£2)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Hollickwood Primary School payment in 15/16

(Junior) - boiler renewal

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£2)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Woodridge - boiler renwal payment in 15/16

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£3)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Osidge - boiler renewal payment in 15/16

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant £0|Slippage required for retentions due for
Chalgrove - mains water payment in 15/16
conversion

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£5)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Friern Barnet - boiler payment in 15/16
renewal

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Dollis|Grant (£2)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Junior - boiler renewal payment in 15/16

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£2)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Foulds - boiler renewal payment in 15/16

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant £0|Slippage required for retentions due for
Manorside - heating payment in 15/16
installation upgrade 127
(pipework)

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 14/15 - Grant (£7)|Slippage required for retentions due for

Foulds Primary School - payment in 15/16
Heating System Renewal




APPENDIX D: Capital programme funding adjustments

Directorate Year Capital Programme Funding Type Funding Detail if if Slippage/ Explanation for request
Additions/Dele Accelerated
tions Spend
Amount| Amount (£'000)
(£'000)
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 14/15 - Grant (£6)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Brookhill Nursery School - payment in 15/16
Heating System Renewal
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 14/15 - Grant (£5)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Church Hill Primary School payment in 15/16
Main Boiler Plant Renewa
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 14/15 - Dollis |Grant (£6)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Infant School - Main Boiler payment in 15/16
Plant Renewa
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£6)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Underhill kitchen payment in 15/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 14/15 - Holly |Grant (£5)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Park Kitchen payment in 15/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |ModPri&Sec - Grant (£6)|Slippage required for retentions due for
14/15Woodcroft Kitchen payment in 15/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |ModPri&Sec - 14/15 - Grant (£450)|Slippage required - project timeline
Hollickwood School - Re- reprofile in to 15/16
provide Dining Hall and
Kitchen
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - Summerside |Grant £27 Addition required for temporary building
- school 2 form entry costs
(portakabins)
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation Grant (£27) Addition required for temporary building
(Unallocated) costs
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 11/12 - Holly |Grant (£2) Budget reprofile
Park Roof
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation Grant £2 Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 12/13 - Grant £0 Budget reprofile
Edgware Infants roof and
gutters
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation Grant £0 Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 12/13 - Moss|Grant (£3) Budget reprofile
Hall Infant and Junior roof
Phase 2
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation Grant £3 Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 12/13 - Bell |Grant £1 Budget reprofile
Lane roof Phase 2
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation Grant (£1) Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant £1 Budget reprofile
Edgware Infant School -
Asbestos Removal
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation Grant (£1) Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£12) Budget reprofile
Wessex Gardens Boundary
Wall
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation Grant £12 Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant £26 Budget reprofile
Danegrove Primary School
(Ridgeway) - window
replacement
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation Grant (£26) Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |{2014/15  |ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£167) Budget reprofile
Cromer Road Primary
School - dining hall,
windows, roofing and
external works
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation Grant £167 Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£11) Budget reprofile
Courtland Primary School -
window replacement & roof
renewal
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation Grant £11 Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£64) Budget reprofile
Underhill Primary School -
roofing works
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation Grant £64 Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 14/15 - Bell |Grant £30 Budget reprofile
Lane - Reception Refurb
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation Grant (£30) Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  {2014/15  |ModPri&Sec - 14/15 - Bell |Grant £20 Budget reprofile
Lane - Boundary Wall
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation Grant (£20) Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 14/15 - Grant £20 Budget reprofile
Martin Primary - Boundary
Wall 128
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation Grant (£20) Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)




APPENDIX D: Capital programme funding adjustments

Directorate

Year

Capital Programme

Funding Type

Funding Detail

if
Additions/Dele
tions

if Slippage/
Accelerated
Spend

Amount
(£'000)

Amount (£'000)

Explanation for request

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec - 13/14 -
Summerside Primary -
Rewire design and tender,
Electrical upgrade

Grant

(£75)

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

£75

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec - 13/14 -
Friern Barnet Rewire &
Electrical Upgrade

Grant

(£126)

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

£126

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec - 13/14 -
Brookland Infant and Junior
Schools - Phase 1

Grant

(£42)

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

£42

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec - 13/14 -
Danegrove Primary School
(Ridgeway) - electrical
upgrade

Grant

£8

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

(£8)

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec - 13/14 -
Hampden Way Nursery &
CC rewire

Grant

£44

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

(£44)

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - St
Margarets Nursery & CC
rewire

Grant

£96

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

(£96)

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec - 13/14 -
Wessex Gardens Primary
school

Grant

£226

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

(£226)

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec - Holly Park -
Re-Wire

Grant

£45

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

(£45)

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec - Sunny Fields
- Re-Wire - Design

Grant

£50

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

(£50)

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec - 11/12 -
Garden Suburb Boiler
Room

Grant

£3

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

(£3)

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec -
12/13Claremont (Jr side) -
Boiler Plant replacement

Grant

")

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

£1

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec - 12/13 -
Deansbrook Jr - Boiler
Plant replacement

Grant

(£3)

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

£3

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec - 12/13 -
Hollickwood - Boiler Plant
replacement

Grant

(£16)

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

£16

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec - 12/13 -
Manorside (Nursery) -
Boiler Plant and heating
replacement

Grant

£

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

£1

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec - 13/14 -
Hollickwood Primary School
(Junior) - boiler renewal

Grant

£65

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

(£65)

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec - 13/14 -
Woodridge - boiler renwal

Grant

£23

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

(£23)

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec - 13/14 -
Osidge - boiler renewal

Grant

£63

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

(£63)

Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

ModPri&Sec - 13/14 -
Chalgrove - mains water
conversion

Grant

(£48)

Budget reprofile

129

Children’s Education and Skills

2014/15

Modernisation
(Unallocated)

Grant

£48

Budget reprofile




APPENDIX D: Capital programme funding adjustments

Directorate Year Capital Programme Funding Type Funding Detail if if Slippage/ Explanation for request
Additions/Dele Accelerated
tions Spend
Amount| Amount (£'000)
(£'000)
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£8) Budget reprofile
Friern Barnet - boiler
renewal
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation Grant £8 Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant £8 Budget reprofile
Foulds - boiler renewal
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation Grant (£8) Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£44) Budget reprofile
Manorside - heating
installation upgrade
(pipework)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |Modernisation Grant £44 Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |{2014/15  |ModPri&Sec - 14/15 - Grant £94 Budget reprofile
Foulds Primary School -
Heating System Renewal
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |Modernisation Grant (£94) Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |{2014/15  |ModPri&Sec - 14/15 - Grant £83 Budget reprofile
Brookhill Nursery School -
Heating System Renewal
Children’s Education and Skills |2014/15  |Modernisation Grant (£83) Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  {2014/15  |ModPri&Sec - 14/15 - Grant £105 Budget reprofile
Church Hill Primary School
Main Boiler Plant Renewa
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation Grant (£105) Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 14/15 - Dollis|Grant £110 Budget reprofile
Infant School - Main Boiler
Plant Renewa
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation Grant (£110) Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 13/14 - Grant (£14) Budget reprofile
Underhill kitchen
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation Grant £14 Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 14/15Holly  |Grant £200 Budget reprofile
Park Kitchen
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation Grant (£200) Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 ModPri&Sec - Grant £220 Budget reprofile
14/15Woodcroft Kitchen
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation Grant (£220) Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 ModPri&Sec - 14/15 - Grant £800 Budget reprofile
Hollickwood School - Re-
provide Dining Hall and
Kitchen
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |Modernisation Grant (£800) Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |{2014/15  |ModPri&Sec - 11/12 - Grant (£92) Budget reprofile
Danegrove Winsor Drive=
Replace Mobiles
Children’s Education and Skills |2014/15  |Modernisation Grant £92 Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |ModPri&Sec - 11/12 - Pupil |Grant (£2) Budget reprofile
Referal Unit - Meadway
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |Modernisation Grant £2 Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |{2014/15  |ModPri&Sec - 11/12 - Grant (£7) Budget reprofile
Summerside - FSU
Children’s Education and Skills |2014/15  |Modernisation Grant £7 Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 DDA Allocation Holding Grant (£161) Budget reprofile
Budget (Schools bid for)
13/14
Children’s Education and Skills |2014/15  |DDA - Queenswell Junior |Grant £45 Budget reprofile
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 DDA - Brookhill Nursery Grant £4 Budget reprofile
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |DDA - Moss Hall Infant Grant £42 Budget reprofile
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 DDA - Childs Hill Grant £29 Budget reprofile
Children’s Education and Skills |2014/15  |DDA - Coppetts Wood Grant £7 Budget reprofile
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 DDA - Foulds Primary Grant £8 Budget reprofile
Children’s Education and Skills |2014/15  |DDA - Courtland Grant £3 Budget reprofile
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 DDA - Deansbrook Grant £25 Budget reprofile
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |Emergency Reactive Grant (£148) Budget reprofile
Works (13/14)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |Modernisation Grant £148 Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |Air Raid shelter works Grant (£2) Budget reprofile
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation Grant £2 Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Emergency works Grant (£12) Budget reprofile
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |Modernisation Grant £12 Budget reprofile 130
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |Emergency Reactive Grant £150 Budget reprofile

Works (14/15) - Various




APPENDIX D: Capital programme funding adjustments

Directorate Year Capital Programme Funding Type Funding Detail if if Slippage/ Explanation for request
Additions/Dele Accelerated
tions Spend
Amount| Amount (£'000)
(£'000)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation Grant (£150) Budget reprofile
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Emergency Reactive Grant (£40) Budget reprofile
Works (14/15) - Various
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Coppetts Wood Sch, Grant £40 Budget reprofile
Asbestos, Gas and HWS
Works
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Permanent Secondary Grant Basic Needs £2,352|Accelerated spend for Compton,
Expansion Programme Oaklodge and Bishops Douglas from
Unallocated 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Permanent Secondary Grant Basic Needs (£500) Allocation for Bishops Douglas from
Expansion Programme 2015/16 Unallocated
Unallocated

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Bishops Douglas Grant Basic Needs £500 Allocation for Bishops Douglas from
2015/16 Unallocated

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Permanent Secondary Grant Basic Needs (£1,752) Allocation for Oaklodge from 2015/16

Expansion Programme Unallocated (Comparative costings &
Unallocated benchmarking)

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Oak Lodge Special School |Grant Basic Needs £1,752 Allocation for Oaklodge from 2015/16
Unallocated (Comparative costings &
benchmarking)

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Oak Lodge Special School |Borrowing Basic Needs (£2,988)|Slippage in line with project time line

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Temporary Expansions -  (Grant Basic Needs (£20)|Slippage required for retentions due for

Allocated payment in 15/16

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Temporary Expansions -  [Grant Basic Needs (£978) Allocation in line with requirement

Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Danegrove Junior - Grant Basic Needs £1 Budget reprofile
Demountables

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Brunswick Park - Grant Basic Needs £0 Budget reprofile

demountables

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Claremont Grant Basic Needs £159 Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Queenswell Infants - Grant Basic Needs (£4) Budget reprofile

modular classroom

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |St Catherines Grant Basic Needs £73 Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Summerside - modular Grant Basic Needs £40 Budget reprofile

classroom

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Underhill infants - modular |Grant Basic Needs (£4) Budget reprofile

classroom

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Fairway Temp expansion |Grant Basic Needs (£35) Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |Claremont - temp Grant Basic Needs (£224) Budget reprofile

classroom

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Livingstone - internal Grant Basic Needs (£8) Budget reprofile

remodelling

Children’s Education and Skills |2014/15  |Grasvenor - bulge class Grant Basic Needs (£7) Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Northside - bulge class Grant Basic Needs (£42) Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills |2014/15  |All Saints N20 Grant Basic Needs (£11) Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Holy Trinity Grant Basic Needs (£40) Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |St Vincents - Toilets Grant Basic Needs £30 Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Chalgrove School - Grant Basic Needs £250 Budget reprofile

modular Unit

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Monkfrith School - bulge Grant Basic Needs £50 Budget reprofile

class

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Manorside School - bulge |Grant Basic Needs £70 Budget reprofile

class

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Mapledown - modular unit |Grant Basic Needs £200 Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Livingstone - bulge class  |Grant Basic Needs £80 Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 St Vincents - Buldge Class [Grant Basic Needs £150 Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Pavilion Study Centre - Grant Basic Needs £250 Budget reprofile

Bulge Class
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Temporary Expansions -  (Grant Basic Needs £978|Accelerated spend in line with
Unallocated requirement

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Broadfields (Perm) Capital Receipt Basic Needs (£334) Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 |Broadfields (Perm) Revenue (£7) Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Urgent Primary Places - Capital Receipt Basic Needs £334 Budget reprofile

Permanent - Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 |Urgent Primary Places - Revenue £7 Budget reprofile
Permanent - Unallocated

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Orion Borrowing Basic Need (£202)|Slippage required for retentions due for
payment in 15/16

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Orion Rebuild - 46735 Borrowing (£1,500) Budget reprofile

Children’s Education and Skills  {2014/15  |Blessed Dominic - OPS -  |Borrowing £1,500 Budget reprofile

46786
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Moss hall Infants and Borrowing (£10)|Slippage required for retentions due for
Juniors payment in 15/16

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Menorah Foundation Capital Receipt (£905)|Slippage required based on project plan

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Menorah Foundation Borrowing (£633)|Slippage required based on project plan

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |St Mary's and St Johns Grant Basic Needs (£146)|Slippage required for retentions due for
payment in 15/16

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |Oakleigh School Borrowing (£2)|Slippage required for retentions due for
payment in 15/16

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Beis Yakov Borrowing (£25)|Slippage required for retentions due for
payment in 15/16

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Wren Academy Capital Receipt (£297)|Slippage in line with project construction
commencement 1191

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Wren Academy Borrowing (£2,215)|Slippage in line with proje&%truction

commencement




APPENDIX D: Capital programme funding adjustments

Directorate Year Capital Programme Funding Type Funding Detail if if Slippage/ Explanation for request
Additions/Dele Accelerated
tions Spend
Amount| Amount (£'000)
(£'000)
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Urgent Primary Places - Grant Basic Need (£365) Allocation for London Academy for site
Permanent - Unallocated abnormals from 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 London Academy Grant Basic Need £365 Allocation for London Academy for site
abnormals from 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Urgent Primary Places - Grant Basic Need (£250) Allocation for Oak Hill Campus from
Permanent - Unallocated 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Oak Hill Campus Grant Basic Need £250 Allocation for Oak Hill Campus from
2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Moss hall Infants and Borrowing (£94) Budget reprofile within the same
Juniors contract
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Martin Borrowing £94 Budget reprofile within the same
contract
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Martin Borrowing £15 Budget reprofile within the same
contract
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Oakleigh School Borrowing (£15) Budget reprofile within the same
contract
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Brunswick Park Borrowing £46 Budget reprofile within the same
contract
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Oakleigh School Borrowing (£46) Budget reprofile within the same
contract
Adults and Communities 2014/15 SWIFT Grant £500 (£300)|Budget reprofiled
Adults and Communities 2014/15  |IT Grant (£500) It project is part of Swift and therefore
merging together.
Adults and Communities 2014/15 |CCTV Installation Revenue £36 Installation costs of the new contract
HRA 2014/15 New Affordable Homes Capital Receipt HRA Capital (£4,000)|Delays in project due to planning
Receipts permission
HRA 2014/15 Granville Road MRA (£243)|Retention held pending defects
rectification, unlikely to be released in
14/15
Re delivery unit 2014/15 BXC - Procurement S106 £400 £400k Addition requested via S106
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Disabled Facilities Grant Capital Receipt (£400) |Reprofiling of budget - due to DFG
being a demand driven service
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Disabled Facilities Grant Borrowing (£600) |Reprofiling of budget - due to DFG
being a demand driven service
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Mill Hill East Borrowing (£300)|Reprofiling of budget
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Hendon Cemetry & Capital Receipt (£250)|Project is currently behind schedule
Crematorium Enhancement
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Housing Association S106 (£800)|Budget to Slip to 2015-16 Due to delays
Development Programme - in project
New Affortable Homesicat
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Housing Association S106 (£884) Project to be deleted - Due to money
Development Programme - secured from other sources
Catalyst Housing
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Town Centre Capital Reserve (£1,900)(Budget to Slip to 2015-16 Due to delays
in project
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Thames Link Station Capital Reserve (£1,000)(Budget to Slip to 2015-16 Due to delays
in project
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Pothole Fund Grant £314 New allocation for Pothole fund
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Bus stop Accessibility Grant £500 Additional funding for Bust Stop
Accessibility
Re delivery unit 2014/15  |Air Quality Scheme Grant £43
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Major Schemes Grant (£43)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Relocation of PRU Grant Basic Needs £47 |Accelerated spend required for
feasibility
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 DDA Allocation Holding Grant (£39) Re profiling of unawarded bid money
Budget (Schools bid for)
13/14
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 DDA Allocation Holding Grant £39 Re profiling of unawarded bid money
Budget (Schools bid for)
14/15
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation Grant (£100) Allocation for 2014/15 DDA bid
(Unallocated)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 DDA Allocation Holding Grant £100 Allocation for 2014/15 DDA bid
Budget (Schools bid for)
14/15
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation Grant (£60) Allocation for Childrens Centre Maint &
(Unallocated) Risk Bid
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Childrens Centre Grant £60 Allocation for Childrens Centre Maint &
Maintenance and Risk Risk Bid
Provision (14/15) (Schools
Bid For)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |Osidge Borrowing (£2,000) Change of Project approved by
DFE/EFA
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Monkfrith Borrowing £2,000 Change of Project approved by
DFE/EFA
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Urgent Primary Places - Capital Receipt (£229) Allocation for Mill Hill East from 2015/16
Permanent - Unallocated Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Mill Hill East Capital Receipt £229 Allocation for Mill Hill East from 2015/16
Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Urgent Primary Places - Capital Receipt (£105) Allocation for Orion/Blessed Dominic
Permanent - Unallocated from 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 |Urgent Primary Places - Revenue (£7) Allocation for Orion/Blessed Dominic
Permanent - Unallocated from 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Urgent Primary Places - Grant (£139) Allocation for Orion/BlesseblDetninic
Permanent - Unallocated from 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Orion Capital Receipt £105 Allocation for Orion/Blessed Dominic

from 2015/16 Unallocated




APPENDIX D: Capital programme funding adjustments

Directorate Year Capital Programme Funding Type Funding Detail if if Slippage/ Explanation for request
Additions/Dele Accelerated
tions Spend
Amount| Amount (£'000)
(£'000)
Children’s Education and Skills  {2014/15 |Orion Revenue £7 Allocation for Orion/Blessed Dominic
from 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Orion Grant Dfe £139 Allocation for Orion/Blessed Dominic
from 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Urgent Primary Places - Grant (£316) Allocation for St Mary's & St John's
Permanent - Unallocated from 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Urgent Primary Places - Borrowing (£4) Allocation for St Mary's & St John's
Permanent - Unallocated from 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Urgent Primary Places - Grant Basic Needs (£230) Allocation for St Mary's & St John's
Permanent - Unallocated from 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |St Mary's and St Johns Grant Dfe £316 Allocation for St Mary's & St John's
from 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |St Mary's and St Johns Borrowing £4 Allocation for St Mary's & St John's
from 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |St Mary's and St Johns Grant Basic Needs £230 Allocation for St Mary's & St John's
from 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Urgent Primary Places - Grant Basic Need £1,101|Accelerated spend Programme from
Permanent - Unallocated 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 |Urgent Primary Places - Revenue £100|Accelerated spend Programme from
Permanent - Unallocated 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Urgent Primary Places - Borrowing £344|Accelerated spend Programme from
Permanent - Unallocated 2015/16 Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Urgent Primary Places - Grant Basic Need (£256) Additional needs of the project
Permanent - Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills |2014/15 |Urgent Primary Places - Revenue (£100) Additional needs of the project
Permanent - Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Urgent Primary Places - Borrowing (£344) Additional needs of the project
Permanent - Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Menorah Foundation Grant Basic Need £256 Additional needs of the project
Children’s Education and Skills  |{2014/15 |Menorah Foundation Revenue £100 Additional needs of the project
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Menorah Foundation Borrowing £344 Additional needs of the project
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |Orion Borrowing £0
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Urgent Primary Places - Borrowing £0
Permanent - Unallocated
Re delivery unit 2014/15 HIGHWAYS PLANNED Development Reseny (£200) Movement to Street Scene for Signs &
MAINTENANCE WORKS Lines
PROGRAMME
Street Scene 2014/15 |Parking Revenue Development £200 Movement to Street Scene for Signs &
Reserve Lines
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Road Traffic Act - s106 £29 New additions to the programme for
Controlled Parking Zones Permit Exemptions
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Travel Plan Implementation [s106 £26 New additions to the programme for
Travel Plans
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Infrastructure Grant £645 Funding Adjustment
improvements
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Infrastructure S106 £51 Funding Adjustment
improvements
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Infrastructure Reserve (£697) Funding Adjustment
improvements
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Infrastructure Reserve £696|Funding Adjustment
improvements
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Building Work MRA (£1,250) Funding Adjustment
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Building Work Borrowing £1,250 Funding Adjustment
Re delivery unit 2014/15 Building Work Borrowing £2,500|Accelerated spend In line with
Partnership agreement and work
commencement
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 St Joseph's RC Junior & St (Grant Targeted Basic (£759)|Slippage required based on cash flow
Joseph's RC Infants School Need forecast for the watching brief.
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 St Joseph's RC Junior & St (Grant Basic Need (£380)|Slippage required based on cash flow
Joseph's RC Infants School forecast for the watching brief.
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Osidge Grant Targeted Basic (£1,815) Change of Project approved by
Need DFE/EFA
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Osidge Grant Basic Need (£140) Change of Project approved by
DFE/EFA
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Monkfrith Grant Targeted Basic £1,815 Change of Project approved by
Need DFE/EFA
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Monkfrith Grant Basic Need £140 Change of Project approved by
DFE/EFA
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Wren Academy Grant Targeted Basic (£2,939)|Slippage in line with project construction
Need commencement
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Wren Academy Grant Basic Need (£488)|Slippage in line with project construction
commencement
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 London Academy Grant Targeted Basic (£2,399)|Slippage in line with project construction
Need commencement
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 London Academy Grant Basic Need (£1,000)|Slippage in line with project construction
commencement
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Urgent Primary Places - S106 £222 Amendment to order of funding - S106
Perm - Millbrook Park ref 630, 10 20001053
(MHE)
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Urgent Primary Places - Capital Receipt (£222) Amendment to order of funding
Perm - Millbrook Park
(MHE)
Re Delivery Unit 2014/15 General Fund Capital Receipt (£2,000)|Delay in project - Budget to be re-
Regeneration profiled
Re Delivery Unit 2014/15 Mill Hill East Borrowing (£200)|Change in Project requirements -
Budget to be realigned
Re Delivery Unit 2014/15  |Graham Park Regeneration|Grant GAF (£1,652)|Delay in project - Budget tb B:3e-

- Infrasturture Improvement

profiled




APPENDIX D: Capital programme funding adjustments

Directorate Year Capital Programme Funding Type Funding Detail if if Slippage/ Explanation for request
Additions/Dele Accelerated
tions Spend
Amount| Amount (£'000)
(£'000)
Re Delivery Unit 2014/15 Graham Park Regeneration |S106 (£908)|Delay in project - Budget to be re-
- Infrasturture Improvement profiled
Re Delivery Unit 2014/15 |Graham Park Regeneration|Revenue £5 Revenue Contribution TFL
- Infrasturture Improvement

Re Delivery Unit 2014/15 Disabled Facilities Grant Borrowing (£550)|Demand led service - Budget to be re-
profiled

Re Delivery Unit 2014/15 |Disabled Facilities Grant Revenue £22 Revenue Contribution from Refunds &
Housing Associations

Re Delivery Unit 2014/15 Disabled Facilities Grant Grant £29 DFG Grant

Re Delivery Unit 2014/15 Hendon Cemetry & Capital Receipt (£150)|Potential costs to be occurred in 2015-

Crematorium Enhancement 16 - Budget to Re-Profiled

Re Delivery Unit 2014/15 Empty Properties Borrowing (£2,000)(Demand led service - Budget to be re-
profiled

Re Delivery Unit 2014/15 |DECC Grant DECC (£50)|Demand led service - Budget to be re-
profiled

Barnet Group 2014/15 Hostel Refurbishment Capital Receipt (£148)|Change in project requirements -

Programme Budget to be reprofiled

Barnet Group 2014/15  |Alexandra Road Capital Receipt HRA £6 Additional Retention Costs

HRA 2014/15 New Affordable Homes Capital Receipt HRA £68|Project progressing fast then anicipated

HRA 2014/15 Major Works (excl Granv  |MRA MRA (£882)|Delay in project - Budget to be re-

Rd) profiled

HRA 2014/15 Regeneration MRA MRA (£850)|Delay in project - Budget to be re-
profiled

HRA 2014/15 M&E/ GAS MRA MRA £225|Accelerated spend - Budget to be re-
profiled

Commissioning Group 2014/15 |Community Centre Revenue £100 Additional funding was agreed by the
leader

Commissioning Group 2014/15 |Community Centre Revenue £100 Contribution from RCCO increased due
to new agreed settlement amount.

Commissioning Group 2014/15 |Community Centre Revenue (£374)|Slippage in line with project profile

Commissioning Group 2014/15 Depot Relocation Capital Receipt £155|Accelerated spend to fund newly agreed
SPIRs

Commissioning Group 2014/15  [Asset Management Borrowing (£1,017) Budget being split out between
programme maintenance and
compliance and condition

Commissioning Group 2014/15  |Asset Management - Borrowing £1,017 Budget being split out between

Compliance & Condition programme maintenance and
compliance and condition

Re Delivery Unit 2014/15 Local Implementation Plan [Grant TfL (£785) Underspend on completed 2013
schemes

Re Delivery Unit 2014/15 TFL 2014-15. Major Grant TfL (£85) Underspend on completed 2013

Schemes schemes

Re Delivery Unit 2014/15 CCTV Projects Retention |Capital Receipt (£84)|Retention funds unlikely to be paid back
this year

Street Scene 2014/15  |Waste Capital Receipt (£218)|Reprofiled bin spend

Street Scene 2014/15 Weekly Collection Support (Grant DCLG (£250)|Reprofiled spend of WCSS grant.

Scheme
Street Scene 2014/15 |Lines and Signs Revenue Development (£50)|Revised figure for an annual Signs &
Reserve Lines programme. Slip forward amount
to be used next year.
Adults and Communities 2014/15 Investing in IT Grant Community (£500) To correct error, the transfer of £500k to
Capacity this project was applied twice.
Adults and Communities 2014/15 Investing in IT Grant (£500)|The linIT proposal was made at the end
of September and is currently under
review and therefore only partial costs
could be considered as an accurate
forecast of expenditure.
Adults and Communities 2014/15 |CCTV Installations Revenue RCCO £778 Monthly implementation costs of the
new CCTV contract and ANPR costs
Children’s Family Services 2014/15 Implementation of libraries |Capital Receipt (£126)|Capital works at two sites to commence
Strategy in 2015/16

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Woodcroft |Grant (£75) Revised project costing
Kitchen

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Holly Park |Grant (£72) Revised project costing
Kitchen

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Brookhill  |Grant (£22) Revised project costing
Nursery School - Heating
System Renewal

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Foulds Grant (£18) Revised project costing
Primary School - Heating
System Renewal

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Grant (£11) Revised project costing
Summerside Primary -
Rewire design and tender,
Electrical upgrade

Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Childrens |Grant (£8) Unused budget in year
Centre Maintenance and
Risk Provision (13/14)

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Underhill  |Grant £5 Revised project costing
Primary School - roofing
works

Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Danegrove |Borrowing £11 Revised project costing

Primary School (Ridgeway)
- window replacement

134




APPENDIX D: Capital programme funding adjustments

Directorate Year Capital Programme Funding Type Funding Detail if if Slippage/ Explanation for request
Additions/Dele Accelerated
tions Spend
Amount| Amount (£'000)
(£'000)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Courtland |Grant (£2) Revised project costing
Primary School - window
replacement & roof renewal
Children’s Education and Skills  {2014/15  |Modernisation - Cromer Grant £0 Revised project costing
Road Primary School -
dining hall, windows,
roofing and external works
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Grant (£19) Revised project costing
Hollickwood Primary School
(Junior) - boiler renewal
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Woodridge |Borrowing £1 Revised project costing
- boiler renwal
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Osidge -  |Borrowing £2 Revised project costing
boiler renewal
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Moderinsation - Chalgrove -|Borrowing £3 Revised project costing
mains water conversion
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Moderinsation - Church Hill |Borrowing £28 Revised project costing
Primary School - Main
Boiler Plant Renewa
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Moderinsation - Dollis Borrowing £15 Revised project costing
Infant School - Main Boiler
Plant Renewa
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Moderinsation - Foulds - Grant £0 Revised project costing
boiler renewal
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Dollis Grant £25 Revised project costing
Junior - boiler renewal
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Hampden |Grant £0 Revised project costing
Way Nursery & CC rewire
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Wessex Grant £0 Revised project costing
Gardens Primary school
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Wessex Grant £1 Revised project costing
Gardens Boundary Wall
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Danegrove |Grant £2 Revised project costing
Winsor Drive= Replace
Mobiles
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Underhill  |Grant £10 Revised project costing
kitchen
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Danegrove |Grant £11 Revised project costing
Primary School (Ridgeway)
- electrical upgrade
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Bell Lane - |Borrowing £23 Revised project costing
Reception Refurb
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Friern Grant £34 Revised project costing
Barnet - boiler renewal
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Grant £100 Due to delay in agreeing final account
Summerside - FSU costs
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Frith Grant £37 New project allocation from unallocated
Manor - Defect
Rectification
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Frith Capital Receipt £104 New project allocation from unallocated
Manor - Defect
Rectification
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Frith Borrowing £8 New project allocation from unallocated
Manor - Defect
Rectification
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Capital Receipt (£104) New project allocation for Frith Manor
Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Borrowing (£525) New project allocation for Frith Manor
Unallocated and revised project costings
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Moss Hall |Borrowing £300 New project allocation from unallocated
Roof
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Friern Borrowing £40 New project allocation from unallocated
Barnet - Fire alarm
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Holly Park -|Borrowing £95 New project allocation from unallocated
Boiler Renewal
Children’s Education and Skills  {2014/15 |Modernisation - Revenue other £2 Contirbution from school towards the
Unallocated contribution works (47434)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Danegrove |Grant £0|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Primary School (Ridgeway) 2015/16
- window replacement
Children’s Education and Skills  {2014/15  |Modernisation - Cromer Grant £2|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Road Primary School - 2015/16
dining hall, windows,
roofing and external works
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Courtland |Borrowing (£1)|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Primary School - window 2015/16
replacement & roof renewal
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Underhill  |Grant £1|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Primary School - roofing 2015/16
works
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Bell Lane - |Borrowing (£1)|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Reception Refurb 2015/16




APPENDIX D: Capital programme funding adjustments

Directorate Year Capital Programme Funding Type Funding Detail if if Slippage/ Explanation for request
Additions/Dele Accelerated
tions Spend
Amount| Amount (£'000)
(£'000)
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Grant £0|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Summerside Primary - 2015/16
Rewire design and tender,
Electrical upgrade
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Danegrove |Borrowing £0|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Primary School (Ridgeway) 2015/16
- electrical upgrade
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Hampden |Grant £0|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Way Nursery & CC rewire 2015/16
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - St Borrowing £0|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Margarets Nursery & CC 2015/16
rewire
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Wessex Grant £0|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Gardens Primary school 2015/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Grant £0|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Hollickwood Primary School 2015/16
(Junior) - boiler renewal
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Friern Borrowing (£1)|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Barnet - boiler renewal 2015/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Dollis Grant £0|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Junior - boiler renewal 2015/16
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Foulds - Grant £0|Adjustment to retention figure due in
boiler renewal 2015/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Foulds Grant £5|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Primary School - Heating 2015/16
System Renewal
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Brookhill  |Grant £4|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Nursery School - Heating 2015/16
System Renewal
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Underhill  |Borrowing £0|Adjustment to retention figure due in
kitchen 2015/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Modernisation - Holly Park |Grant £2|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Kitchen 2015/16
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation - Woodcroft [Grant £2|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Kitchen 2015/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Temporary Expansions Grant £30 Revised project costings
Allocated - Holy Trinity
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Temporary Expansions Grant (£10) Revised project costings
Allocated - St Vincents -
Toilets
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Temporary Expansions Grant (£23) Revised project costings
Allocated - Chalgrove
School - modular unit
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Temporary Expansions Grant (£28) Revised project costings
Allocated - Monkfrith
School - bulge class
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Temporary Expansions Grant (£31) Revised project costings
Allocated - Manorside
School - bulge class
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Temporary Expansions Grant (£9) Revised project costings
Allocated - Pavilion Study
Centre - Bulge Class
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Temporary Expansions Grant £11 Revised project costings
Allocated - All Saints N20
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Temporary Expansions Grant £10 Revised project costings
Allocated - St Vincents -
Mapledown - modular unit
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Temporary Expansions Grant £10 Revised project costings
Allocated - St Vincents -
Buldge Class
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Temporary Expansions Grant £2 Revised project costings
Allocated - Woodridge
Modular Building — Final
Payments
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Temporary Expansions Grant £38 Revised project costings
Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Temporary Expansions Grant (£38)|Budget not required in 14/15
Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Temporary Expansions Grant Basic Need £1|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Allocated - Chalgrove 2015/16
School - modular unit
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Temporary Expansions Grant Basic Need £1|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Allocated - Monkfrith 2015/16
School - bulge class
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Temporary Expansions Grant Basic Need £1|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Allocated - Manorside 2015/16
School - bulge class
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Temporary Expansions Grant Basic Need £1|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Allocated - Pavilion Study 2015/16
Centre - Bulge Class
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Orion Rebuild Borrowing £250 Interproject budget re-alignment
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Blessed Dominic - OPS Borrowing (£250) Interproject budget re-alignment
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Orion Rebuild Borrowing (£371) Interproject budget re-alignment
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Temporary Accomodation - [Borrowing £371 Interproject budget re-alignment
OPS
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Moss Hall Infants and Borrowing (£14) Budget reprofile within thelsa@
Juniors contract
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Brunswick Park Borrowing (£7) Budget reprofile within the same

contract




APPENDIX D: Capital programme funding adjustments

Directorate Year Capital Programme Funding Type Funding Detail if if Slippage/ Explanation for request
Additions/Dele Accelerated
tions Spend
Amount| Amount (£'000)
(£'000)
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Oakleigh - Increase Borrowing £21 Budget reprofile within the same
capacity contract
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Orion Rebuild Borrowing £6|Amendment to retention figure
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Millbrook Park (MHE) S106 (£21)|Amendment to retention figure
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Moss Hall Infants and Borrowing (£22)|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Juniors 2015/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Brunswick Park Borrowing £25|Adjustment to retention figure due in
2015/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Martin Primary S106 (£1)|Adjustment to retention figure due in
2015/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Oakleigh - Increase Borrowing £38|Adjustment to retention figure due in
capacity 2015/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Urgent Primary Places Borrowing £245|Budget required for London and Wren
Permanent Expansions Academies
Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Wren Academy Borrowing £200 Budget to be increased for ICT
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Wren Academy Borrowing (£200)|ICT not required until 2015/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |London Academy Borrowing £45 Budget to be increased for removal of
demountables
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Urgent Primary Places Borrowing (£245) Budget allocation for Wren and London
Permanent Expansions Academies
Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 London Academy Borrowing (£2,000)|Budget reprofile in line with offsite
construction start date
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Monkfrith Borrowing (£2,000)|Budget reprofile in line with construction
start date
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Monkfrith Grant Basic Needs (£140)|Budget reprofile in line with construction
start date
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Monkfrith Grant TBN (£1,315)(Budget reprofile in line with construction
start date
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Urgent Primary Places Grant Dfe £139 Adjustment to funding type
Permanent Expansions
Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Urgent Primary Places Grant Dfe £316 Adjustment to funding type
Permanent Expansions
Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Urgent Primary Places Grant Dfe (£139) This is DFC contribution and is not part
Permanent Expansions of the School expansion programme.
Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Urgent Primary Places Grant Dfe (£316) This is DFC contribution and is not part
Permanent Expansions of the School expansion programme.
Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Orion Grant Dfe (£139) Adjustment to funding type
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |St Mary's and St John's Grant Dfe (£316) Adjustment to funding type
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |Orion Borrowing £139 Adjustment to funding type
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 St Mary's and St John's Borrowing £316 Adjustment to funding type
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Urgent Primary Places Borrowing (£139) Adjustment to funding type
Permanent Expansions
Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Urgent Primary Places Borrowing (£316) Adjustment to funding type
Permanent Expansions
Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Urgent Primary Places Borrowing £455|Adjustment to funding type
Permanent Expansions
Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Permanent Secondary Grant Basic Need £190|Budget required for Christ's College
Expansion Programme
Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Christ's college Grant Basic Need £190 Budget allocation for Christ's College
Children’s Education and Skills |2014/15  |Permanent Secondary Grant Basic Need (£190) Budget allocation for Christ's College
Expansion Programme
Unallocated
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |Christ's college Grant Basic Need £2|Adjustment to retention figure due in
2015/16
Children’s Education and Skills  |{2014/15  |Copthall Grant Basic Need £0|Adjustment to retention figure due in
2015/16
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |Compton Grant Basic Need (£2)|Adjustment to retention figure due in
2015/16
Children’s Education and Skills  {2014/15  |Oak Lodge Special School |Borrowing (£12)|Budget reprofile in line with offsite
construction start date
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |Oak Lodge Special School |Grant Basic Need (£1,323)|Budget reprofile in line with offsite
construction start date
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15  |Infant Free School Meals |Grant DFE (£5) Project reprofile
Capital Fund
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Deansbrook Dining Hall Grant DFE £5 Project reprofile
Extension
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15 Deansbrook Dining Hall Grant DFE £4|Adjustment to retention figure due in
Extension 2015/16
Children’s Education and Skills 2014/15  |East Barnet/JCOSS Borrowing (£125)|Works to take place in the spring when
Changing Facilities ground conditions will be suitable
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 East Barnet playing field Borrowing (£50)|Works to take place in the spring when
ground conditions will be suitable
Re Delivery Unit 2014/15 BXC - Funding for land S106 Developer £8,000
aquistion contribution
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 TCF - Kitchen & Dining Grant Basic Need (£67) Kitchen & Dining movement to Kitchen
& Dining in the Modernisagj
Programme 31%7
Children’s Education and Skills  |2014/15 Modernisation Grant Basic Need £67 Kitchen & Dining movement to Kitchen

& Dining in the Modernisation
Programme




APPENDIX D: Capital programme funding adjustments

Directorate Year Capital Programme Funding Type Funding Detail if if Slippage/ Explanation for request
Additions/Dele Accelerated
tions Spend
Amount| Amount (£'000)
(£'000)
Street Scene 2014/15 Old Court House - public  [S106 (£40)|Possible slippage due to café tenant
toilets issues
Street Scene 2014/15 Park Infrastructure Borrowing (£138)|Hendon CP, Vic Park Tennis, Copthall &
play areas costs in 11202
Street Scene 2014/15 Percy Road, North Finchley |S106 (£65)|Project due to be delivered in April/May
Park
Street Scene 2014/15 Play & sports facilities in S106 (£75)|Delay - No contractor to deliver
Stonegrove or
Edgwarebury Park
Street Scene 2014/15 New play equipmnet S106 (£20)|Possible slippage due to contract issues
Watling Park
(£260) (£31,136)

138




“Aoljod Buiyted dojansp o} Apljoe pue uopeynsuod ‘wajsAs MaN|0 000°'20€ y6¥'LGL 8vE'6 905051 000°20€ Bunped
‘ssaifoud ul mainal In4f(981'g) ¥25'298 ¥9€£'86. 101'06€ 091'¥9 oLl'0/8 dwwelboud uojeunojsuel) SAIUNWIWOY PUe SHNPY

‘Bunia}so} punoJe a2In0sal [BUOHIPPE Joj Judwaiinbai

B U93(q OS|e Sey aIay] "WEea)s}Iom sadlnias BuipueisinQ
Buuanijeg poddns 0} yuom aouelinsse Ajjenb Joj Juswalinbai 0y ana|o00‘ L€ 00€'GG.° L G10'G9Z°L 20901 G8Z'06¥ 00€'¥2Z. L awweiboid uonewiojsuel] sadlnIBS Ajlwe
‘seoI/uss Aliwe jsulebe Josyo o} puadsiepun| - 000'659 #95'G6€ 9E¥'€92 000659 N3S pue spaaN x2|dwo - s|IHS pue uojeonp3

‘umopmelsp

|leuonippe aJinbai [im Asanijap jo abeys Jayun4 3obpng sweiboid
Kianijag ausosjaalls %0023 Aq 1osy0 ag [Im puadsiano siyL|(0) 18¥'91€ 18¥'9Le 809'8LL - 187'9L€ (2 @seyd) alse\ pue s}eauisuaalg - dUddsjealS
0 000°'c) 000°c) - 000'c} sswwelboud ¥1/¢10z - Aousbunuod

*Apnis Ajjqiseay ay} Jo }s09 paonpal ybnoayy panaiyoe sbuineg

"pieoq josfoid sy} Aq panoidde HOgES s1 (G102/20/8C
-#102/L0/12) @seyd juswainooud-aid ayy Joy }96png MaN|(000'0F 1) 00¥'0€L 68€'62€ olLG'er L10'L9z 00¥'0.8 Aoy ainsia] g spods Jo malnay olbajens
jouleg UelS SWoH 0} 00'05.'923 J0 sjuswAed Auspenp|(168°01) 6v¥'9.2 000'20L 052'08 67691 00€'282 sajunWWoy Jajes
‘sabejs umopasolo ul st psfosd 8y |(210'GE) £€9'79L 82265 #,0'LL S0¥'601 Gv9'661 20I/UBG sieysiBay By} Jo MaISY

'10Y aAisod Y)im ‘|nyssaoons

J1 uonejuawiajdwi Joy wns jeuonippe ue snid spuny asay} Jo asn
1IN} s}sanbas yolym MaIAaJ Joj PajILgNs Uaag Sey ased ssaulsng|o 000'0Z L0'68S'vv 9sz'ze Sly'se 000'0L 90IAI9g AlenUO| BU) JO MaInaY

*MOJaq awwelbold uonewlojsuel} SaIIUNWWOD pue
S)npy uo awooul A paJan0d aq ||im deg “papiwiwo Ajiny 3ebpng|9/y'z L 9L¥'TLL 0S¥' v 0S¥'vv 920'89 000°001 uopesbaju| aie) [B100S B YlesH
0 £6€'18¢ Sv9'Le 69561 80L'€ve £6€'18¢ ALDD
"pajoadxa Seol0AUl el PUE 850jo 0} anp Jd8loid|(000°E 1) 000°26€ 8v1',6 258662 00001 uopuaalu| Ales

sieak ainny 9 yjuow
2 SLVLOZ pajosfoid pajoafoid 0} |enjoy an3ds
sjusWWoy aoueleA o} puadg [ejoL|  91/5102 SLIV1L0Z SLIv10T HVIA HORId 1obpng |ejoL sjo8foid uadQ
JUNLIANIdXI

awwesoid uonewJoysued] - 3 XJdNIddV

139



awwesoid uonewJoysued] - 3 XJdNIddV

(sz0'vog) £89'98Z°C1 Sy 00V 1v1'G66'S ZLLLSYL 28¥'0S.'S 80.2'065°21 1ejoL
‘sajejs3 9SO woly papuny aq pjnoys puads
40 Ajuiofew se uo paxom Burag Ajua.nd aie z sseyd Joy sjsedslo |(€16'95) 180'€0L - 180'€0L 180'€0L - 000°09} Bupop Jopews
Ajoeded YH [euonippe pawnsse pue juswabeuew abueyo
‘s}s00 uojjeuliojsues) N1 ‘Awapede diysiapes) ‘sjsod QN sapnjouljo LL0'0bY') ¥SP'0S1L €9€'0L2'L GlG'TLL 00zZ'6L LL0'0bY'L 90.03J0M pue QN ‘ollojod
- 000°'00€ 000°00€ 858'9¢ - 000°'00€ SIS pue uoieanp3
S| ooo'ee 000'68 000's8 £96'L2 - 000‘9% siea Aue3
-abe)s sy} e mouyun ale s|iejap Jayuny ing
‘siy) uo pajesjeooe aq Aew puads sy} jey) Angissod ews e st assyy| - 000052 000052 ¥.6'20€ 06L9LL 920'261 000'06. yo6png Buuoissiwwoy
pajoadxa s}s02 Jaypny oN ‘Isnbny ul papua sey joafoid|(1+5'zz) 28¥'L.T 091'62 091'62 22£'8¥C 220'00€ MaInaY Bulpuads pue s
0 000122 008'6¥C G60'08 00212 000°'LL2 jouleg yum Bugosuuo)
sieak ainny 9 yjuow
B GLVLOZ pajosfoid pajoafoid 03 |enjoy anN3ds
sjuawwo asuenep o} puads ejoL|  91/5102 SLVL0Z SLvL0zT HVIA HORd 1abpng |ejoL sja8foid usdo

140



APPENDIX F: Prudential Indicator Compliance

Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable Interest Rate
Exposure

» These indicators allow the Council to manage the extent to which it is
exposed to changes in interest rates.

» The upper limit for variable rate exposure allows for the use of variable
rate debt to offset exposure to changes in short-term rates on our
portfolio of investments.

Limits for 2014/15
%
Upper Limit for Fixed Rate

100
Exposure
Compliance with Limits: Yes
Upper Limit for Variable Rate 40
Exposure
Compliance with Limits: Yes

Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate Borrowing

» This indicator is to limit large concentrations of fixed rate debt needing
to be replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates.

Actual % Fixed |Compliance
Upper | Lower | Fixed Rate Rate with Set

Maturity Stru_cture of Fixed Limit | Limit | Borrowing [Borrowing, Limits?
Rate Borrowing % %

as at as at
30/09/14 | 30/09/14

Under 12 months 0 50 0 N/A
12 months and within 24 0 50 0 0 N/A
months

24 months and within 5 years 0 75 0 N/A
5 years and within 10 years 0 75 0 0% N/A
10 years and above 0 100 |304,080,000 100% Yes

141



This page is intentionally left blank

142



APPENDIX G: Deposits Oustanding

DEPOSITS OUTSTANDING AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2014 FOR LONDON BOROUGH OF BARNET

Rate of
Interest Principal
Deal Number  Counter Party Start Date Maturity Date % Outstanding
Local Authorities £
2000011422 Doncaster Metropolitan Council 22-Mar-13 22-Mar-15 0.76 2,000,000
2000011438 Newcastle City Council 28-Jun-13 29-Jun-15 0.70 10,000,000
2000011442 LB Islington 02-Sep-13 02-Sep-15 0.70 5,000,000
2000011445 Greater London Authority 01-Apr-14 01-Apr-16 1.04 10,000,000
2000011463 Glasgow City Council 27-Nov-13 27-Nov-14 0.80 10,000,000
2000011488 Warrington Brough Council 15-Apr-14 15-Oct-15 1.00 5,000,000
2000011502 Gwent CC 01-Aug-14 03-Aug-15 1.10 3,000,000
2000011505 Lancashire CC 22-Jul-14 21-Jul-15 0.70 5,000,000
2000011506 Newcastle City Council 30-Jul-14 29-Jul-15 1.00 5,000,000
2000011510 Lancashire CC 15-Sep-14 16-Mar-15 0.65 5,000,000
60,000,000
Money Market Funds
2000011284 Goldman Sachs 14-May-13 0.36 3,600,000
2000011251 Aviva 06-Sep-13 0.38 6,250,000
2000011482 Ignis Ligidity Fund 26-Mar-14 0.43 22,800,000
2000011377 Invesco 07-May-13 0.32 3,600,000
36,250,000
Money Market Funds Non specified
2000112434 Federated Prime Rate Cash 15-May-13 15-May-15 0.70 10,000,000
UK Banks & Building Societies
2000010341 BANK OF SCOTLAND 09-Sep-12 CALL A/IC 0.40 12,500,000
2000011476 BARCLAYS COMMERCIAL BANK 07-Feb-14 CALL A/IC 0.50 25,000,000
2000011485 LLOYDS BANK PLC 09-Apr-14 09-Apr-15 0.95 5,000,000
2000011486 LLOYDS BANK PLC 10-Apr-14 10-Apr-15 0.95 5,000,000
2000011490 LLOYDS BANK PLC 15-Apr-14 15-Apr-15 0.95 2,500,000
2000011500 LLOYDS BANK PLC 03-Jun-14 03-May-15 0.95 2,500,000
2000011509 LLOYDS BANK PLC 15-Sep-14 31-Mar-15 0.70 10,000,000
2000011481 NATIONWIDE BUILD. SOC. 21-Mar-14 31-Mar-15 0.70 5,000,000
2000011496 NATIONWIDE BUILD. SOC. 21-Mar-14 20-Mar-15 0.81 10,000,000
2000011508 NATIONWIDE BUILD. SOC. 15-Aug-14 16-Feb-15 0.64 10,000,000
2000011494 STANDARD CHARTERED BANK 29-Apr-14 29-Apr-15 0.80 10,000,000
2000011378 Co-op Bank Public Reserve 30-Sep-14 01-Oct-14 0.38 337,000
97,837,000
Non UK Banks & UK Building Societies
2000011498 AUSTRALIA and NEW ZEALAND BANK 27-May-14 27-Nov-14 0.53 5,700,000
2000011499 COMMMONWEALTH BANK OF AUSTRALIA 30-May-14 29-May-15 0.67 7,700,000
2000011501 COMMMONWEALTH BANK OF AUSTRALIA 03-Jun-14 03-Jun-15 0.66 1,200,000
2000011503 COMMMONWEALTH BANK OF AUSTRALIA 17-Jun-14 17-Jun-15 0.82 5,400,000
2000011504 NATIONAL AUSTRALIA BANK 18-Jun-14 18-Dec-14 0.47 5,200,000
25,200,000
Sep-14 Average rate of return 0.70 229,287,000

143



This page is intentionally left blank

144



4}
ubiH € 14
wnIpaIAl | 8|q1ssod Jolely

Buney Ayjiqeqold yoedw
Juswissassy 1ebie |

Lo

<
—
sjuswalinbal 32bpng pue sainssa.d puewsp joaw
90IMIBS se paonpal Buiaq si Ajuiepasun 0} Buisnoy sjgep.oye pue saoINISs
‘'sabueyd oiydeibowap pue uonejndod ‘saoeds usalb pue |eaisAyd
10 sjoedwi ay) 0} puodsal 0} 9|ge pue ‘(sawoy ajdoad Jsp|o ‘sjooyos)
Joj pasedaud Ajjuaioyins s uoiesiueblio 2INjoNJ)Seljul |BIO0S JUSI0INSUl
8y} buunsus 0} asuodsal Aoy ypm (uonelsbiws ‘uonesbiwiw
sl (4YSd) mainal Buipuads pue saiLioud ‘Uieap ‘yuiq) arel ymoib
ay (exep Bunsixa jo Aouaiolap uone|ndod Jo/pue (JuswAodwa
‘ejep jo Ajjigejieae) syas ejep ui sdeb ‘uoneonpa ‘Ayjigesip ‘Ajoiuyle ‘ebe
jenuajod Ayjuspl pue (uonelbiw jnoyui) ‘Japuab ‘6-8) sabueyo oiydeibowap
s}as ejep ouoads jo uonebolisyul JO syoedwi 8y} 0} puodsal
Jadaap ‘siyoid Jawolsnd uo ybisul 0} 9|qe Jo paledaid aq jou [Im
1suiebe sisayjodAy yimoub uonendod uonesiuebio ayj 1ey; ysu e si alay |
pue abueyo oiydeibowsp 1s9 | ¥ ¥ 6200990 :sebuey)
Alsuenp jeal| :9AI}BJUBASId EN! Jolepy uonendog pue osiydeibowag
(Buiwn)
aoueINSSY  Snjels Buney Aljgeqold 1oedw
pieoq NN SUOIJ9Y |0JJU0D JUSWISSBSSY Jualn) )Siy
>
E
=
m
<
m
(@]
14
o

1OVdNI

"YsIl yoes Jo juswieal)} pasodoid ay) pue

)s1 yoes 1oy aoe(d ul saibajenys uonebijiw ay) ‘z Jauenp je Buinodal jo sawi ay) e aoejd ul sysil asoy} sjuasaidal Jaysibal ysu Buimoloy ay |

19)s169Y sty ajeso0dio) :H XIANIddV



146

"SawI09]N0 anoidwil

pue uonew.loysuel} JaAIIBP Yiog

0} sue|d ainyny Jo JuswdojaAap a8y} uo
8]eJI0ge||09 pue J030as alignd ay} buioey
sabuaj|jeyo [eloueul) 8y }98W 0} J8pIo
ul Bunjom sdiysisuped ssueyus o}
paonpoJjul usag sey g0s diysisuped

"S|0J3U0D pue SaWo2)No ‘suonduwnsse
USIAS) ‘Blep JapISU0D 0} S|eAlaul
Jejnbal je sisAjeue ysu Buluuidispun
M3IABI [[IM pieog Buluoissiwwo)
Yl "SYS. pue saway} Bumno ssouo
uo snooy Jejnoijied e yum saibajens
Buluoissiwwons jo Juswdojanap

pue sawoo)no dibsjens jo bumes ay)
suoddns dnoug Buluoissiwwod ay |
:aA130319(Q

‘'salnjonJ)s aosueuIanob

aAjoadsal pue Abajesg uonelsusbay
‘ABsjens buisnoH ‘Abajens

ymolo) ‘sjuswssasse joedwi buiaqgjam
pue yjesy pue saiijenbs ‘uswabebus
Juapisal yum saiouspuadsp

pue yoeoidde pueisispun

-abusjjeyo siy)
0} puodsa. 0} saiedaid uonesiuebio
3y} se plleA ulewsal Aay} ainsua
0} paulal pue paJojiuow suondwnsse
BuiAliepun pue pasAjeue Buiag ale
(Buiwn)
Buney Ajjigeqoud 1oeduw aouelnssy  snjejs Buney Ajjgeqoud 1oeduw
juswissassy jable ] pJeog NN SUOIJOY |0JJU0D JUBWISSaSSY Jualng NN



©
Mo [4

wnipsN - Aeyiun

4
ubiH g
wnipsj\l| 8|qissod

Buney Anjigeqold yoedw
Juswssassy 1abie |

‘ABajeus [eloueuld WIS WnIpan

10 A1aniap Buloyuopy ssauisnq

BY} SS0JOE 3SN Ul SIojedipul Asuow

J0} anje -buiyoid swweiboid [ejdes
MB3INDY "SPUSdSIBaA0 Y}IM SEaJ. Ul
pamainal suondo aAijeussye pue sued
Kianooay "0} passype Buiaqg spiepuels
Juswabeuew |eioueuly pue (jeydes pue
anuanal) Buliojuow }obpng :aAos18Qg

‘abuajieyd siy) 198w 0} ssas0.d ay)

pue [19unoD 8y} Joj abusjieyo [eloueuly

3y} N0 S}as Yolym aunp Q| uo uodal

B PaAIS0a) 98I0 S80IN0SaY pue

Koljod ‘juaiouins si Aousbuuoo pue

SaAISSaJ UO uonisod |eloueuly |[BISAO

S|1I2UNOY 3y} JBY} SINSUS pUB puUBWSP

ul saseasoul Jo Joedwi ay) ajebiiw

0} |IoUNoY) ayj sa|qeus peaye buluueld

"S9OIAISS 10} pUBWISP Ul SBSEaIOUl pue

Buipuny ul suoioNpal YIMm pajeloosse

5 sy sl ay} sajebniw aj04o buiuueld
ajesopoly  Apsuenp jeal] [BIOUBUIY S,|IOUNOD By :9AIIBIUSASId

‘aouew.opad pue

sbuines YSd Janiap 0} sjuswanosdu
pue sabueyo aoinIss |enusjod

Jo abues apIm Jo malAal - 1102 udy
Burouswwoo buluueld j108loid aysepp
‘uonjoejsiies Jawojsno pue Buljohos.
10} SI0}eOIpU| S0UBUILIOLISd :9A108}a(

diysisuped YAATIN ‘€102
19q0}0Q Wou}
% Bulouswiwoo Aemiapun [apow yojaas

Jolepy Alsuenp jeal| ypum AlaAljap asnoy-u| :aAiejuUsAald
(Buiwn)
[0uelnssy snjels
pleog Ysiy SUOIJOY [043U0D

147

"S9OINISS

uo puewap pue ainssaid ay)

0} Jayuny sppe yoiym ‘sidoad BunoA
10 s1aquinu bBuisealoul pue uoneindod
Buiebe ue ‘uone|ndod Buimoib e
S82E} |1I0UN0Y 3y} 1By} ueaw sabueyo
olydelbowaq "speojaseo yauaq

Ul S9SEaIOUl pUB UOI}BPOWWOIo.
Aieiodwa} uo ainssaid

JO SWUd) Ul 9|dwexa I0} ‘S9OINISS
[IoUNOY JO S}SOD By} Uo sjoedu

os|e uonisod o1wouods ay] bBuipuny
[IDUNOD Ul UOONpPal B 888 [[IM Jauleg
ur AJIAI}OB 21LWOU0D9 Ul UOIOBIIUOD

e Agasaym ‘swiiojal ajel ssauisng

JO }Insal e Se SySl [euolippe

sleaq Mou [Iouno) ay} siy} apisbuoly
"9peoap 8y} JO pua ay} 0} AjYI1| alow
pue 8| 0¢ 1Ses| Je [jun Snuiuod [|IM
Buipuny juswuianob 0} sINo Jey; Jes|o
SI I ‘uoijisod 21U [|BJan0 By}
USAID) 1G200DH 0 uoljisod |eldueuld
‘uonoejsSHES JaWol}sno

wnwiido Buusalap aoud s|gepioye
ue je saoInIss Ajienb ainsus 0}
JSPIO Ul palapISuod aq 0} pasu yjoq
S92IAISS UOI109]|00 a)sem Buibeuew
pue [esodsip ajsem Asuow 1o} anjea
Bulnoouid -aininj ay} ul 8)e|eISs

[IM S}S0D ‘AjjIqeule}sns punole
sinoineyaq Buibueys pue buljohoal
Buinoidwi jJo sAem aaijeuls)e Jo
uoljeIapISUOD

Inouynm :L1L009OHO Ajljiqeureisng
pue juswiobeue 9)Sepn

cl
ybiH € 14
WNIPSIAl  9]qIssod Jolep

4"
ubiH € 4
WwnIpaAl | 8]9Issod Jolepy

Buney Ayjigeqold yoedw

Juswissassy jualiing 3siy



6
ubiH € €
WNIPSJ\l  9|qISSOd djesspoly  Ausuend jeal ]

9
MO 4 €
wnipapy >_®v___cD 9]eJISPOIAN >_‘_mtm30 leal]
(Buiwn)
buney Ayjigeqoud 10edw aouelnssy  shjels
Juswssassy 1abie | pleog Ysiy

sajoud ysu yun Aisaiap jo Buuojiuow
pue sisAjeue s snonujuod pue
}shgoJ pue jJomawed} Juswabeuew
3S1 8y} ybnolay] :aAnoslaQq

"siswoisnd pue ajdoad syl ‘uonesiuebio
ay) Jo} synsal apinolid o} ‘(sieuped
ybnouyy buipnjour) Juswabebua

a|doad pue diysiapes| ybnouyy
abueyo uoddns o] -diysinauaidanua
pue seapl Mau jo uoieiausb

By} Saje}l|I0.) Jey} JUSWUOIIAUS |eulajul
ue ajeald 0} pasu ay} buisiuboos.
‘sdeb 0) puodsai 0} sueid jun A1aaiap
pue ajetodiod dojaasp pue sanijigeded
9]e10d109 paJsinbal pue Jusa.Ind

8y} puejsiapun 0] :9AljBjUSASId

"8Jed JBWO}SND pue Uoijoe)snes
JBWOISND 10} SI0}edIpul S0UBWIONSd
"Suonje)Nsuod Joud pue sisAjeue ejep
sjuiejdwod jo mainal ybnouyj [1ouno)
2y} ulyum juswabebus usaziio sy

Jo Buipuejsiapun uowwo? :aA981eQg

a)isgam ayj o} sajepdn ainyny ybnouy)
palojdxa aq 0} sjuapisal yym buibebua
JO SpoylaW aAijeuls)|e — BIpSW |BID0S
aoual|isal

Aunwwod /Absjels 10joss pig
990D 82IN0SaY pue Adljod Jo
Bunesw 1sJi4 JB paWLIJUOD JUSWHWIWOD
Koualedsuely pue ABsjens uone}nsuo)

‘dnolg
BuluoissiwwoD sy} UIyIM pappaquia
s| saljiienba buunsug ‘ubisap aoiAles
OJul suone)nNsuod Bbuipasy — Buluue|d
ssauisng pue aoueuld :SAIlBJUSASId

SUOIOY |0A3U0D

cl
ubiH € %
WNIPS|\l 9]qISsod Jolepy

6
ubIH g €
WNIPSIAl  9]9ISSOd 9)elapoln

Buney Ayjigeqold yoedw
JUBWISSassY jualind

148

‘s|eob wi.a}

Buoj sy ana1yoe 0} palinbal uoieAouUUl
pue abueyo buiob-uo pue Alaniep
90IAISS Ul Sjuswanoldwi ay} JaAlBp
0} 9|ge g JOU |[IM pUB UonoaJIP
olbsjens wis) buo| pue wnipaw

S}l yym paubije jou aie ain}nd

pue (abpajmouy ‘s|is ‘@ous}adwo9)
a|doad s.uonesiuebio ay} jeyy

%Sl e sl alsyl :9¢009DHO0 3|doad

‘sjuapisay
yum Apadoud abebuas o} ainjieq
16200930 juawasbebu3z juapisay

JSiy



8
ubiH 4 %
wnips|y| Alxiiun  Jolepy

8
ubIH 4 4
wnips|y| Alxiun  Jolepy

Buney Anjigeqold yoedw
Juswssassy 1abie |

AlJeuenp

AlJeuenp

(Buiwn)
[0uelnssy
pleog

paseq aoe|d yym sbuiesw Jejnbay
IILIETg|

‘siseq |e}iqJo ue

uo ainjonJiseljul Lodsuel; ayj Jo M3IA
Japeouq e aye) 0} uoiisod e ul aq os|e
[m ‘ssaooud siyy ybnoay ‘sqofl ‘sjis
‘ymmolb dojanap 0} swwelboud yobpnqg
Aunwuwod ybnouyy sybnolog uopuo
1S9 Jaylo aAl yim Bujiopy :eouel|y
UOpUOT ISSAA SaAlenul/salbalens
jueasjal ayy dn buiuiof

uoIsIA gingns Ainjuad 3s| g dojaaaQ
:9AI}BJUBASId

Arepunoq aseyd yoes je piemio} snow
0} aNUIBUOD 0} UOISIDapP YIm ssaiboud
ssasse Ajjenunuod [[Ip “AJsAlBp pue
ssalboud Jojuow 0} pieog uoewIoU|
pue sS820Y Jawoisn :8A308}e(d

1eal]

ABuipioooe Ayjiqissaooe pue Ayjenb

ul sjuswanoidwi uejd pue sanssi ejep
aul|eseq pue ssasse 0} sn buimole
bisul Joj yoeoidde Alaniap paseyd
WISy} UO SJUIBJ}SUOD puUB S82IN0S Ejep
puejsiapun 0y buiuuibag Juem am eyep
196 Ajjuendwoo 0y sn ajqeus 0}

sao1jou Buissaosoud Jieq :aAiejUaAaId

‘weals JIopA Aljenp eleq
1eal| e sapnjoul pue panroidde Absjens ||
"‘abueyo o16sjens pue Alaalap a2IAI8S

uo AjaAnebau Bunoedwi si 1oadsal
SIY} Ul ainjiey aiaym swajsAs Buiuiem
Ajes, Ajjuspl 0} pue suoluaAIS)uI
b1 8y ainsua pue Ayuapl

0} 9|qissod aq ||im }I sue|d uoloe pue

snjels

sty SUOIJOY [0)U0D

4}
ubiH € 4
wnipsAl | 3|q1Ssod Joley

4
ubiH € 14
wnipsAl | 3|q1Ssod Joley

Buney Ayjigeqold yoedw
JUBWISSassY jualind

149

‘uUopuoT
0} saoejd mau pue aijow Bunosuuod
sjuswanoidwl ainjonJiselyul pue
A0 plJom B se uopuo o} sjealy}
JBpPIM WOJ} Jealy} Jepun sI

8€009¥0 9ingnsg

snoJadsoid e se uonisod s,jouieg

Absjens

$S902€ Jawo)sno ay} uoddns

0} 92IAJ8s-}9s ‘Jybisul ybnoayy
uonew.lojul pue ejep ajeldoidde 106
0} 9|g. J0U |[IM M XSl B S| a1ay |
*2£009d0

juswiebeuepy uonewlIou|

JSiy



"'saAlasal Bunsixe wWoly Jow aq 0} S!
uonepowwodoe Aousbisws jeuonippe
3y} Jo pue suonebiiw Jo }s0d Y] €O
ul 617G 0} O Ul 8€9 WOJ} ‘||e} O} paye)s
aABY Y3 Ul SIaquINN ‘puBwWSp aonpal

pue A|ddns }s00q 0} suoluaAIS}UI

J0 abuel e jo A1anap ay) Buleasiano s
Jabeuel 10B1JU0D PUE IBUOISSILUWOD
pes| ay} buipnjoul pJeoq j08foid
sawoH jauieg v “Alyjuow Buuojuow s
pieog Alaaljeg oyl ‘pieog Aisaileq au)
pue pieog Buluoissiwwo? oibsjens

Ag panoidde se sswoH jauleq
pawuswaldwi Buiaq si uejd uonebiw v
"Joedwi Jojluow 03 ade|d ul SiojedIpul
aouewlopad ‘Joedwi suiwis}ep

0} @oe|d ul (sisuped Buipnjour)
awwelbold jauag pue aleyspn
LIS ETg|

SUOI}ED0| S|gEep.Ioye aiow Ul

Aiddns ajgepioye jo suondo dojans( -

Aiddns Buisnoy

a|gepJoye jo saniunyoddo asealoul -

snid

aJ3uao qol ypm Bupjiom juiol Buipnjoul

‘saljiAjoe uonuaald Buisealoul -

9 seale rA)
MO Z 5 931y punole sue|d buidojeaag | ybiH € v

wnips|y  Aiiun  8yelspoly  Apsuend 1eal| :OAI}BJUBABId | WINIPSIAl | 3[qissod  Joley

"salouspuadap pue saniunuoddo
‘sysil Jo uoneoyuapl buiob
-Uo pue Bulojuow 8AO8YS aInsus
[IM - (8uads jau3s ‘Buisnoy) saibajel)s
SSNosIp 0] ISIXa Apeal|e SaoIAIeS
(Buiwn)
Buney Aljigeqold 1oedw aouelnssy  snjejs
juswissassy jable ] pJeog NN

Buney Ayjigeqold yoedw

SUOIOY |0A3U0D Juswissassy jualiing

150

‘oSl

0} SNUIIUOI [|IM UOI}EPOWILIOIJE
wus) poys Aousbiswa buipinoid
J0 1509 juanbasqgns ayj pue
SSaUSSa[aWOoY 1By} YsU B S| a1ay |

7620090 SSOUSSIoWIOH

JSiy



8
ubiH 4 %
wnips|y| Alxiun  Jolepy

8
ubIH 4 4
wnipsl. Alexiun - Jolepy

Buney Anjigeqold yoedw
Juswssassy 1abie |

Auspenp

Alsuenp
(Buiwn)
2ouBINSSY
pJeog

1881

1eal]

Sniels
JSiy

‘padojansp

ale sjuswsalby Juswabeuely

pue sue|d Buluoissiwwo)

M3U SB Yjuow 9 }Xau 8y} JOAO pJemioy
uae) aq [|IM SSW09)N0 JO JUSWAASIYOe
ay} buimainal Jo sueaw ay |

"S3WOJ}N0 0} payul| .le Jey} SIo}edipul
aouewuoyad anneyenb [njbuiuesw
ylm panaiyoe aq |im uejd ajesodio)
s|IouNo0) 8y} Jo sanuoLd wusl-isbuol
8y} MOY U0 shooj yoiym padojaasp aq
(M Sjuawaalby Juswabeuely pasins.
anoge ay} jo Juswsalbe buimo|o4

‘ABajens

[elouBUI{ WIa| WNIpa pue ue|d
a)el0dloD Yelp s jlouno) ayy spisbuoje
Jaguwieoa( g UO 990D S82IN0SaY
pue A21jod 0} ob |im pue padojarsp
Bulag ale gzogz 01 senoud pue

sue|d Buluoissiwwo) s,j1ouno) ay |
M3INDY J9ad Buipienbajesg

uonoadsul g31S40 30
:aA1199)(]

awwelbold YoM pue Jieyd mau
(80S7) pJeog s,uaip|iy) Buipsenbajes
[ED07 [9pPOW 82UBUISA0H Mau sy} ul
saiwwo) Buipienbajeg pue saleiqi]
‘uonyeonp3 ‘s,ualp|iyd swwelbold
uoneuwloyjsuel; a2IAI8S Ajlwe Buleys
uoneuwJojul pue Bunssw Jejnbay
|000j01d Buipienbajes asueinssy 90S
:9AI}BJUBASId

SUOIOY |0A3U0D

151

"9A3IYOE 1O Jojluow
0} }NoIIP SBW023g SaARdalqo

uayj saliiAloe 8|94 Buluoissiwwo)
Jo uonjeoldde jus}sISUOD SaINsus jey)
aoe|d ul Buluoissiwwod 0} yoeoidde

A paulap AjJes|d e jou sl aiayy J|
ubiH € 14 ‘1700940
WnNIpPSAl | 3]qIssod Jolep yoeouddy buiuoissiwuwiod

‘paulwIspun

pue pasljiqe}sap aq Aew

yoeolidde |10unod BuluoISSILIWOD

rA) ay} uay} Juapioul buipienbsjes
ybiH € v s, uaJp|iyo Juesyiubis e atam alay} |

wnipsjy | a|gissod  Jolepy “0v00D Y0 JUapIou| buipienbajes

Buney Ayjigeqold yoedw

Juswissassy jualiing 3siy



This page is intentionally left blank

152



Appendix |

CSG SCHOOLS HR SERVICE UPDATE

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

Executive Summary

On 1% April 2014 the Councils Schools HR service was relocated to Carlisle
as part of the planned CGS transformation improvements and contribution to
the £126m of savings that Capita committed to within the CSG contract. A
local presence was also maintained in Barnet to provide schools with
employee relations advice and forums and user groups with schools.

As part of this transformation, a new a new HR system was introduced called
“‘My View”. At the Performance and Contract Management committee on 23
July 2014 it was highlighted that a number of issues with the new system had
been reported by schools, in particular in relation to its functionality, usability
and the time taken to complete actions. There was a perception that the
system had not been adequately tested and that schools now found it harder
and more time consuming to find and input data. CSG was therefore asked to
report back to this committee with further information on the issues and to set
out what improvements have been implemented or progressed.

This report sets out the background and provides an update on these matters
raised at the Performance and Contract Management Committee meeting of
1% September, along with timeframes for their resolution.

Background

There were a number of drivers for the move of payroll administration to
Carlisle and the implementation of the new “My View” system, these included:

¢ Flexibility — the Carlisle centre is a national centre of excellence for
Capita HR Schools services and by using it for the provision of services for
Barnet we are able to offer flexible staffing based on demand, provide
greater resilience and pass on the benefits of existing experience and
platforms

o New Technology — Service enhancements through the use of wider
capacity processes and systems, specifically the MyView modules, will
help automate previously manual processes and self-service reporting will
allow schools to access information more effectively and quickly.

e Cost savings — The CSG contract is already contributing £126m towards
the Council’s current MTFS savings including significant savings as a
result of reducing manual tasks and reducing the calls and operating costs
of the HR service.

153



2.2

The outcome of the HR Schools Service transformation is to ensure that those
schools who can self serve do so and that those schools who still need to call
Capita get an efficient, high quality service where the person that they speak
to knows who they are, understands the history of the issue or enquiry and
owns the completion of their enquiry as far as possible.

Reported issues
The schools fed back that there were a number of issues with the new
systems, these included:

e Processing transactions in MyView took too long — (e.g. timesheet input/
navigation of system)

e Schools wanted closer engagement on system developments

e Schools wanted one user log—on for the 2 systems, ResourceLink and
MyView

e Schools wanted the staff establishment list reports as previously provided

e Schools wanted access to additional information , for e.g. (continuous
service of staff), and

¢ Schools wanted visibility of the named Schools Business Manager

Context

It should be noted that as part of the aim of the transformation we were
seeking to remove manual processes and paper entries as processing these
caused delays for the schools and naturally led to more errors.

Mitigating actions

CSG committed to address all the issues and to develop a closer working with
school representatives through:

A Newsletter specifically addressing the issues prior to the 2014 summer
closure, explaining developments in progress and dates when these will be
available. This was issued on 8" September.

A review of thesystem with service users to determine further improvements in
system configuration, this was undertaken at St Marys CE High School 24
July 2014

Establishing a Forum with group of school representatives from September
2014 to discuss service improvement implementation Some Super Users
from schools volunteered to work with us to help identify issues and ensure all
captured and in progress

154



6.1

CSGs Schools Business Manager, Kim Garrood — to attend forums, and

increase visibility

Progress to date

Since September CSG has undertaken a number of activities as follows:-

System Developments

Since the committee meeting in July there has been a number of system
developments introduced, as well as progress made to towards further
improvements. The implementation of the system improvements have been

phased in 3 releases as follows:-

e \

September
Complete

N /

Improved pre and post payroll reports\
— include staff info from October
Reduced drop down categories in

time management

Improved processes for efficient input
including Fixed Term Contracts

Set un and met with school rebs to /

)

October/
November

[ |

In

progress

Employees changing schools:
improved process

Enable to select a staff list for
timesheet input

Enable processes to be viewed after

—

155



6.2.

=  Ability to set event reminders e.g.
temp contract end

f e Improved single employee reports

- submission
= Visibility of future dated starters
" View leavers details
" |Improved payslips

Novemli»oer/ e.g. Sickness on the dashboard.
29‘;’"‘ € s Improved timesheet & absence data
SR e A entry (currently planning with NGA)
NGA) :
| * Time management: enable
n alphabetical list of employees
Progreéss '« Apility to save a process before

NorthgateArinso (NGA), are the payroll software provider, who CSG are
working with to develop improvements to their MyView system. As such, there
is a dependency upon NGA to deliver these within the timescales requested.
The implementation dates for the developments in Phases 2 and 3 above are
therefore provisional, pending confirmation from NGA. Any changes in delivery
dates will be communicated to the schools.

Whilst system developments have been in progress, CSG has been mindful of
feedback from schools regarding the time it is taking them to process
transactions on line. As an interim, schools have been given the option to
submit forms to the payroll service in Carlisle notifying them of required
changes, and for the Carlisle team to input these on their behalf. For
information there has been a very low take up of this, and schools are still
using the system to process transactions.

A number of schools who advised of the slow speed of the system have been
asked to provide specific feedback so this can be reviewed by NGA.

Schools Engagement

A forum of School Business Managers, representative of a cross section of
Barnet schools has been formed. There are 11 schools represented, as well
as members of the schools finance service. The first meeting was held on the
24™ September 2014. This proved extremely helpful in obtaining feedback
from system users, and provided an opportunity to discuss and review planned
developments.

156



6.3.

6.4

The next session is planned for the 13" November 2014 and will also be
attended by the Technology Product Manager, and Managing Director, for
Capita HR Solutions who wish to receive feedback direct from users of the HR
& Payroll systems which will help inform future developments.

In addition, CSG are keen to increase the level of face to face engagement
with key stakeholders within schools. Representatives from the HR & Payroll
Service, and the Schools Services Manager attended a meeting of School
Business Managers on the 21% October 2014 to discuss system developments
and respond to queries for the managers. CSG welcome the opportunity to
engage with schools in these forums and are exploring further opportunities to
attend other networking sessions with school representatives.

Communications with Schools

CSG recognise the importance of ensuring schools are aware of the actions in
progress to improve the functionality of the systems, and as such issued its
2" edition of the “Service Development Newsletter” in September 2014, with
the 3™ one planned for issue in November 2014.

All system users were provided with a User Guide and an opportunity to attend
training sessions in March/April 2014 as part of the system implementation. It
is intended that as the system developments are implemented these guides
will be updated to reflect changes in the systems, and support will be offered
to system users to ensure they are aware of any changes in the processes.

In addition the HR & Payroll Termly Newsletter was issued to schools in
September 2014. This is delivered as part of the traded services, and provides
schools with information and advice on all HR and payroll aspects within the
Education sector, as well as advertising training events.

Schools Feedback so Far

Feedback to date from schools representatives is that they welcome the
improvements advised, as their frustrations are with the systems, particularly
the time it takes to process transactions; and the fact that the processes within
the system are “clunky”.

There has been positive feedback in the meeting on the 24" September and
the 21% October on the developments planned. In particular the schools have
welcomed the report providing staffing information. This will be available for
schools for the October payroll. A number of schools have also provided
positive feedback on the customer service provided by the delivery team in
Carlisle.

We recognise that a number of schools are reviewing the provision of services
for 2015/6, and experiences to date may influence their decision on who to

157



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

purchase services from. \We are very keen for schools to be able to experience
the improvements planned for MyView so that they can make informed
decisions.

Conclusion

There were a number of issues occurred during the early months of the new
service, some of which could have been managed better had there been
longer timescales for engaging with schools, and refining the system
functionality to improve school user experience and timescales for processing
transactions.

There is a rigorous programme of system developments in place, a number of
which have been implemented, and others due for implementation in the next
three months.

The increased engagement with schools, in particular through the payroll
forum will support the identification of further system enhancements for 2015.

CSG apologises for the issues that Schools have experienced during these
challenging months but hopes that the committee accepts that it is taking
appropriate action and has acted promptly to address the issues since the last
committee.

CSG, and specifically Capita HR Solutions are committed to improving the
system functionality and thereby the experience for school users.

158



APPENDIX J

Council Tax procedures - reviewing a Single Person Discount

A query has been raised in relation to letters recently sent out by the Revenues and
Benefits Service in relation to the resident’s eligibility to Single Person Discounts
(SPDs). This query included a request for clarification against a number of
observations noted by Councillor Cooke below, the letter was dated the 22
September 2013.

o with salutation 'Dear' and then his surname with no title or forename

e requiring a reply within only 14 days of the date of the letter with no allowance
for the date received being after the date of the letter or for the resident
possibly being away

« threatening to remove the discount (previously applied for and approved) if no
reply was received when stipulated

e providing no envelope or postage for the reply so answering the Council's
unsolicited query would be at the resident's expense

« stating that any telephone call to query the letter would be charged to the
resident (at local rate)

The letters were sent as part of a review that is undertaken every year in line with
best practice across all Councils. This annual survey has been undertaken for a
number of years prior to the CSG contract being signed. The Review is undertaken
to ensure that SPD is being correctly claimed by the Council Tax payer. This protects
the Authority from fraudulent claims, from discounts continuing to be applied where a
customer’s circumstances may have changed or where the Council Tax payer has
simply forgotten to advise us that the SPD is no longer valid as other people are now
resident in the house and the full Council Tax should be paid.

These letters are not sent to all those claiming the 25% discount. We undertake
some filtering prior to issuing the review documents. This is done using the data held
in the Council Tax system on what households have a SPD in place and matching
this with data provided by Equifax. Equifax are a credit rating agency who use data
provided by customers which is shared with their agreement and allows us to assess
how many people may live in a household based on activity. The cross match they
provide indicates the likelihood that there is only one person in a household and
therefore that the SPD had been correctly applied, giving a green flag, or that other
residents may be in the house based on the credit activity at the address in which
case an amber or red flag is returned. No personal information is exchanged and
only household level data is used.

This information itself cannot however be guaranteed to reflect the occupancy at the
premises as members of the family may live away from the address but still use it for
credit applications (for example students). This is why we send a review letter
requesting a validation of our findings. The letter always gives customers 14 days to
respond and although this is not set within 14 days this timeframe is widely used
across all our discount reviews as an acceptable time frame to respond in.

159



APPENDIX J

No reply paid envelopes are provided with the review forms, this is consistent with
previous years and was the case prior to CSG running the service.

The publication on the notice of call charges is also standard on all our
correspondence from Revenues and Benefits. This is meant to provide reassurance
that customers will be charged at a local rate call, not any premium rate (as often
used by retailers) and equally not a higher rate because they are calling the
Coventry Contact centre provided by CSG.

Unfortunately the date of the review letter we issues was shown as 2013. This was
an error and we apologise for this. As soon as this was identified we ensured that the
CSG contact centre was made aware of this so that they could confirm to customers
who contacted them that the review was correct and they needed to respond to the
letter.

We have also been advised of some examples of missing names on letters where
the salutation showed as “'Dear' and then a surname with no title or forename. While
this is not ideal, the letters are based on the information held on the Council Tax
system which does not in all cases hold a title or forename if we have not been
provided with the information when the council tax account was set up. However if
there is any specific example of this that can be provided to CSG with an account
number we can confirm what records we hold and ensure that there is not a more
fundamental issues with the addressing of the letters for future reviews.

In terms of the process we will follow with these reviews. If no response is received
to the first review letter, a reminder will be issued to prompt a response. However if
after the reminder we have still not received a completed form the discount will be
removed as no positive response has been received to confirm that the customer is
still entitled to the discount. This is standard practise and in line with guidance. It is
good practice from a fraud protection perspective that a positive response is needed
for a discount to be confirmed as correct, particularly given the cross check to other
data sources as good practice that has called the discount into question.

Benefit to the Council

Based on CSGs due diligence and analysis on the Council Tax data prior to contract,
CSG believed that a large number of households were potentially claiming a 25%
Single Person Discount that were not entitled to it.

As a result and based on Capita’s experience of the market, of successfully
managing target discount review campaigns and of utilising other household data to
validate discounts, CSG contractually guaranteed to generate and collect additional
Council tax revenue. The guarantee was for £318k additional revenue in year 1 of
the contract and rising up to year 3 in order to deliver a total additional revenue of
£4.6m over the term of the CSG contract. The first year target was lower due to the
Council Tax year 2013/14 being the first year of the Council Tax Discount scheme,
the effects of which on overall collection activity could not be qualified.

In line with the contract, since commencing the September 2013 CSG have been
undertaking targeted reviews using the Equifax data described above and have

160



APPENDIX J

completed the annual SPD campaign in line with best practice. During the first year
of the Contract and for the Council Tax year 2013/14 Capita actually generated
£655k of additional revenue following the removal of SPDs where Council Tax
payers were confirmed as no longer being eligible for the discount.

161



This page is intentionally left blank

162



Putting the Community First BJA[R|N|E|T

LONDON BOROUGH

AGENDA ITEM

Performance & Contract Management
Committee

11 November 2014

Title

Performance & Contract Management
Committee Work Programme

Report of

Deputy Chief Operating Officer
Commercial Director

Wards

All

Status

Public

Enclosures

Appendix A - Committee Work Programme June 2014 to May
2015

Officer Contact Details

Anita Vukomanovic - Governance Team Leader
anita.vukomanovic@barnet.gov.uk 020 8359 7034

9

Summary

The Committee is requested to consider and comment on the items included in the 2014/15

work programme

Recommendations

1. That the Committee consider and comment on the items included in the
2014/15 work programme

www.barnet.gov.uk




1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

3.1

4.1

5.1

5.1.1

5.2

5.21

5.3

5.3.1

WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED

The Performance & Contract Management Committee Work Programme
2014/15 indicates forthcoming items of business.

The work programme of this Committee is intended to be a responsive tool,
which will be updated on a rolling basis following each meeting, for the
inclusion of areas which may arise through the course of the year.

The Committee is empowered to agree its priorities and determine its own
schedule of work within the programme.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

There are no specific recommendations in the report. The Committee is
empowered to agree its priorities and determine its own schedule of work
within the programme.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED

N/A

POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION

Any alterations made by the Committee to its Work Programme will be
published on the Council’'s website.

IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION

Corporate Priorities and Performance

The Committee Work Programme is in accordance with the Council’s strategic
objectives and priorities as stated in the Corporate Plan 2013-16.

Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT,

Property, Sustainability)

None in the context of this report.

Legal and Constitutional References

The Terms of Reference of the Policy and Resources Committee is included
in the Council’'s Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A.

164



5.4

5.4.1

5.5

5.5.1

5.6

5.6.1

6.1

Risk Management

None in the context of this report.

Equalities and Diversity

None in the context of this report.

Consultation and Engagement

None in the context of this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

165



This page is intentionally left blank

166



b | j.\fow-ﬁmu uieq MANAA

)Nn'A0B }auleq@oInoUBWONNA BUUR €0/ 6SES 0Z0 JIAOUBLIONNA BUHUY :J0BJUOD

6102 AelN - ¥10Z 41990300
awuweaboid
YIOAN @9RHWWO) Juswabeuely
JOBIJUO0) puk 3duUerWIOMdd
jouleg jo ybnoiog uopuo-]

HONOYOoOdY NOAQNO1

NEINEIKEE] 1114 Aylunwwo) ayy Suimng




€ jo z abed

[e0]
(o]
—

uinpnQ uswabeuel
Ainseal| Buipnjoul 1 suun Alaaljeq
[eula)x3 pue [eulsiu| o} Hoday

Sduewliopsd pue sdueuld GL/yL0¢ GL/¥1L0Z Hoday
¢ lapenp ay} anoidde pue mainal 0| BuLioyuop ¢ Jauend

¥10¢ Jequisldeg - |udy
‘Hoday aouewlopad

p1] dnolg) Jauleg ay |

"dH looyds
UO UOIBWIOJUI 8pN|oul 0} Joday

‘uInpnQ Juswabeuely Ainseal |
Buipnjoul | suun AlaAleq |eulsixgy
pue |eulaju| Joj Joday aouewlouad

pue adueuld Gl/¥10¢ ¢ J8uenp GL/710Z Hoday

Jao1yO bBunesadp ja1yn Aindeq | 8y 1episuod anosdde pue mainal o | BuLioyuopy z Japenp
Jouleg

9010y NOA pue SsWoH lauleg Hoday |enuuy

soo Aaoel] | jo @ouewlopad [EloURUILL BAISDD) O | - dnolog jouleg ay |

(s)492140 Bunnqryuon JO Moday pajsanbaui uoisioag




169

lojoalig @oueInssy

Ao1j0d j1ouno) o3 paubije pue

aoe|d ul sI yJomawel} Juswabeuew
3sU 8y} Jey} Buunsus ‘ylomawel}
Juswabeuew ysu ay} anoidde o |

ABajens pue jusweles
Aolj04 1uswabeuep
3siy ajesodion

Jao10 BunesadQ ja1yn AindeQ

uInpnQ Juswabeuel

Ainseas] Buipnjoul G1/t102
Hoday aouewlopad Ino4 1spend
pue uwnynQ |eul4 ay} anoidde o |

Hoday

Buloyuol GL/¥10g pul
1ea A pue Ino- Jspend

(s)1@2130 Bunnqiyuo)

JO Hoday

pajsanbai uoisioaq

3oalqng




This page is intentionally left blank

170



	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6a Members Item - Councillor  Cooke - Thin Client Model
	7 The Barnet Group - Annual Report
	Appendix A - The Barnet Group Annual Report

	8 Quarter 2 Monitoring Report 2014/15
	Appendix A - Performance Report Quarter 2 201415
	Appendix B - Revenue Monitoring by Delivery Unit
	Appendix C - Capital Monitoring Programme outturn
	Appendix D - Capital programme funding adjustment
	Appendix E - Transformation Programme
	Appendix F - Prudential Indicator Compliance
	Appendix G - Investments outstanding as at 30th Sept 2014
	Appendix H - Corporate Risk Register
	Appendix I - CSG Schools Service Update
	Appendix J - Single Person Discount

	9 Committee Forward Work Programme
	Appendix A - Performance and Contract Management Committee Work Programme


